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An investment in the Debentures is subject to risk.
Investors should carefully consider the risks and exercise their own decision in making a decision to invest in the Debentures.



Disclaimer

This draft Prospectus has been prepared for the purpose of giving information with respect to Nam
Ngum 2 Power Company Limited (the "Issuer" or the "Company") which, according to the particular
nature of the Issuer and "The Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche
1 Due 2020", "The Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 2 Due
2024" and "The Amortized Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 3
Due 2027" (collectively, the "Debentures") which will be offered to "Institutional Investors" and "High Net
Worth Investors" as respectively defined in the Notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission
No. KorChor. 5/2552 Re: Determination of Definitions Used in the Notifications on the Issue and Sale of
All Types of Debt Instruments, dated 15 March 2009, as may from time to time be amended, modified,
supplemented or replaced (collectively, the "Qualified Investors"), is necessary to enable Qualified
Investors to make an informed assessment of the assets and liabilities, financial position, profit and
losses and prospects of the Issuer.

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation other than those
contained in this draft Prospectus in connection with the issue or sale of the Debentures and, if given or
made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the
Issuer or the Joint Lead Arrangers whose names are listed on the cover page of this document. Neither
the delivery of this draft Prospectus nor any sale made in connection herewith shall, under any
circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer since the
date hereof or the date upon which this draft Prospectus has been circulated or most recently amended
or supplemented or that there has been no adverse change in the financial position of the Issuer since
the date hereof or the date upon which this draft Prospectus has been circulated or most recently
amended or supplemented or that any other information supplied in connection with the Debentures is
correct as of any time subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or, if different, the date indicated in
the document containing the same.

Each of the Joint Lead Arrangers has not separately verified the information contained in this draft
Prospectus. The Joint Lead Arrangers do not make any representation, express or implied, and do not
accept any responsibility, with respect to the accuracy or completeness of any of the information in this
draft Prospectus. Neither this draft Prospectus nor any other financial statements should be considered
as a recommendation by the Issuer or any of the Joint Lead Arrangers that any recipient of this draft
Prospectus or any other financial statements should purchase the Debentures. Prospective investors
should have regard to the factors described under the section headed “Risk Factors” in this draft
Prospectus. This draft Prospectus does not describe all of the risks of an investment in the Debentures.
Each potential purchaser of Debentures should determine for itself the relevance of the information
contained in this draft Prospectus and its purchase of Debentures should be based upon such
investigation as it deems necessary. The Joint Lead Arrangers do not undertake to review the financial
condition or affairs of the Issuer during the life of the arrangements contemplated by this draft
Prospectus or to advise any investor or potential investor in the Debentures of any information coming to
the attention of any of the Joint Lead Arrangers.

This draft Prospectus does not constitute an offer of, or an invitation by or on behalf of the Issuer or any
of the Joint Lead Arrangers to subscribe for, or purchase, any Debentures.

The distribution of this draft Prospectus in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into
whose possession this draft Prospectus are required by the Issuer and the Joint Lead Arrangers to
inform themselves about and to observe any such restriction.



Clause

Part 1

Part 2

Part 3

Part 4

Part 5

Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3

Appendix 4

TABLE OF CONTENT

Factsheet

Executive Summary

Description of Issuer

1

2.

. General Information of the Company

Business Operation

. Risk Factors

. Operating Assets

. Legal Disputes

. Capital Structure

. Organization Structure

. Financial Data

Page

Factsheet Page 1

Executive Summary Page 1

Description of Issuer Page 1
Company Information Page 1

Nature of Business Operation Page 3
Risk Factors Page 13

Operating Assets Page 21

Legal Disputes Page 22

Capital Structure Page 23
Organization Structure Page 25

Financial Data Page 33

9. Management Discussion and Analysis on Financial Data
Management Discussion and Analysis on Financial Data Page 38
10. General Information and Other Related Information

General Information and Other Related Information Page 43

Information Relating to the Offer Sale of Debentures

Information Relating to the Offer Sale of Debentures Page 1

Certification of the Accuracy of Information

Certification of the Accuracy of Information Page 1

Draft Terms and Conditions of the Debentures
Draft Debentureholders’ Representative Appointment Agreement
Financial Statements

Credit Rating Report



Part 1 Fact Sheet Information as of 27 September 2017 unless specified otherwise.

This Fact Sheet is a part of the Registration Statement and the Prospectus which is only a summary of offering information,
characteristics and risks of the securities offered and relating to the securities issuer (the "Company" or the "Issuer"). Investors shall
carefully and thoroughly read and study information in details from the full Prospectus before making an investment decision. Investors
may request for the full Prospectus from the Joint Lead Arrangers and the Company, or may study the information in the Registration
Statement and the Draft Prospectus submitted to the Office of the Securities Exchange Commission (the "Office of the SEC") on its
website.

PART 1 FACT SHEET
"THE DEBENTURES OF NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED NO. 1/2017 TRANCHE 1 DUE 2020" ("Tranche 1 Debentures")
"THE DEBENTURES OF NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED NO. 1/2017 TRANCHE 2 DUE 2024" ("Tranche 2 Debentures")
and
"THE AMORTIZED DEBENTURES OF NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED NO. 1/2017 TRANCHE 3 DUE 2027"
("Tranche 3 Debentures", and together with Tranche 1 Debentures and Tranche 2 Debentures the "Debentures")
issued by
NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated under the law of the Lao People's Democratic Republic)

Key Information relating to Debentures

Type of Instruments (1) Tranche 1 Debentures and Denomination Thai Baht
Tranche 2 Debentures: Name-
Registered, Unsubordinated and
Unsecured Debentures with a
Debentureholders' Representative

(2) Tranche 3 Debentures: Name-
Registered, Unsubordinated,
Unsecured and Amortized
Debentures with a

Debentureholders' Representative

Credit Rating (] None L] issuer Type of Offering L] po

[] Guarantor M Issue M pp (H&HNW)
The Debentures were assigned credit
ratings of 'A-' (with Stable outlook)
according to reports published by TRIS
Rating Co., Ltd. on 31 August 2017.
The Issuer will arrange for the credit
rating agency as approved by the
Offering of the Securites and
Exchange Commission (the "Office of
the SEC") to provide a credit rating for
the Debentures throughout the tenors
of the Debentures.

A credit rating is not a recommendation

Part 1 Fact Sheet Page 1




Part 1 Fact Sheet

to buy, sell or hold the Debentures and
may be subject to revision, suspension
or withdrawal at any time by the credit

rating agency.

(1) Tranche 1 Debentures: Up to
Baht 1,000,000,000

(2) Tranche 2 Debentures: Up to
Baht 1,400,000,000

(3) Tranche 3 Debentures: Up to
Baht 3,600,000,000

Baht 1,000

Up to Baht 6,000,000,000

Information as of 27 September 2017 unless specified otherwise.

(1) Tranche 1 Debentures: Up to
1,000,000 units

(2) Tranche 2 Debentures: Up to
1,400,000 units

(3) Tranche 3 Debentures: Up to
3,600,000 units

Baht 1,000

6,000,000 units

M Fixed rate

(1) Tranche 1 Debentures: 2.59
percent per annum

(2) Tranche 2 Debentures: 3.48
percent per annum

(3) Tranche 3 Debentures: 3.69
percent per annum

L] Floating rate

The Debentures may be redeemed
for taxation reasons at the option of
the Issuer in accordance with the
conditions specified under Condition
10.4 of the terms and conditions in
relation to the Debentures (the
"Conditions"). Please see more
details in the draft of the Conditions
The calculation of the interest attached as Appendix 1 of the
payable in respect of the Debentures Registration Statement and Draft
is based on the basis that 1 (one) year Prospectus.
has 365 (three hundred and sixty five) The Issuer may also repurchase of
days and the amount of interest shall the Debentures from the secondary
be calculated by the product of the market by the Issuer as specified in
principal amount outstanding on each the Conditions.
unit of the Debentures. In this regard, The Debentureholders are not
each interest period shall be entitled to request the Issuer to
commenced (and including) from the early redeem the Debentures.
Issue Date or the preceding Interest
Payment Date (as the case may be) to
(but excluding) each Interest Payment
Date with respect to such interest
period or the Maturity Date (as the
case may be).

The withholding tax shall be applied in

accordance with the applicable laws.

Part 1 Fact Sheet Page 2



Part 1 Fact Sheet

Information as of 27 September 2017 unless specified otherwise.

Issue Date

5 October 2017

Subscription Period

3 -4 October 2017

Maturity Date

(1) Tranche 1 Debentures:
5 October 2020

(2) Tranche 2 Debentures:
5 October 2024

(3) Tranche 3 Debentures:
5 October 2027

Tenor

(1) Tranche 1 Debentures: 3
(three) years from the Issue
Date

(2) Tranche 2 Debentures: 7
(seven) years from the Issue
Date

(3) Tranche 3 Debentures: 10

(ten) years from the Issue Date

Redemption Dates

In respect of Tranche 3 Debentures, the Issuer shall redeem each unit of Tranche 3 Debentures in

installments on the Redemption Dates as follows.

Installment Redemption Date Outstanding Paid Principal Total Payment
Principal Amount Amount Per Unit (Baht)
Per Unit (Baht) Per Unit (Baht)
5 October 2025 1,000.00 333.33 333.33
2 5 October 2026 667.67 333.33 666.66
3 5 October 2027 333.34 333.34 1,000.00
Interest Period Interest on the Debentures shall be | First Interest Payment Date | 5 April 2018

payable semi-annually on every 5
April and 5 October of each year
commencing 5 April 2018 and
ending on the Maturity Date in

respect of the Debentures

Lead Arrangers (1) Bangkok Bank Public Company Registrar Thailand Securities Depository Co.,
Limited; Ltd. or any other person

(2) Krungthai Bank Public Company subsequently appointed as registrar

Limited; and in accordance with the Registrar

(38) The Siam Commercial Bank Public Appointment Agreement and as

Company Limited permitted by relevant laws and

regulations

Debentureholders' Bangkok Bank Public Company | Paying Agent Bank of Ayudhya Public Company
Representative Limited or any other person duly Limited or any other person duly

appointed as replacement appointed as replacement paying
debentureholders' representative agent
Issuer's Representative | The Legists Group Guarantee/Collateral None

in Thailand

Part 1 Fact Sheet
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Part 1 Fact Sheet

Information as of 27 September 2017 unless specified otherwise.

Transfer Restriction

(if any)

The offering of the Debentures will be made to the institutional investors or the high net worth investors
pursuant to the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board regarding the Application for and,
Granting of Approval for Offering of Newly-Issued Debt Instruments As a result, the Issuer and/or the
Registrar shall not accept or register any transfer of the Debentures to any person who is not an
institutional investor or a high net worth investor, unless such transfer is made by way of inheritance.
Please see more details in the Condition 4.3 of the Conditions.

The transfer restriction of the Debentures has also been: (i) acknowledged by the Bank of The Lao
People's Democratic Republic; and (i) endorsed and acknowledged by the Lao Securities Commission

Office that no Debenture will be transferred to any person other than the Qualified Investors.

Covenant on
Maintenance of

Financial Ratio (if any)

The Issuer shall ensure that the ratio of Debt to Equity, in accordance with its Financial Statement, shall not
exceed 3:1 as at the last day of the fourth quarter of each year. Please see more details, including the

definitions of the terms "Debt," "Equity" and "Financial Statements" in the draft of the Conditions

attached as Appendix 1 of the Registration Statement and Draft Prospectus.

Rank of Repayment in case of the Issuer's Bankruptcy or Liquidation

I
Secured

Creditors

a i ——

Ordi%lalry Subordinated Preferred i Ol:d‘mary -
Unsubordinated Creditors Shareholders Shareholders

Creditors

Risks of the Instrument

Tranche 1 Debentures

Tenor of Instrument

A

more than 5 years

1-5years

less than 1 year

Tranche 2 Debentures

AAA - AA A - BBB non-lg;/;;ément unrated Credit rating

Tenor of Instrument

Fy

more than 5 years v

1-5years

less than 1 year

AAA - AA A - BBB non—lg;/::ément unrated Credit rating
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Part 1 Fact Sheet Information as of 27 September 2017 unless specified otherwise.

Tranche 3 Debentures

Tenor of Instrument

4 more than 5 years v

1-5years

less than 1 year

AAA - AA A - BBB non-'gy:dSément unrateq  Credit rating

B—

Warnings

- Due to low liquidity of the debt instrument market in Thailand, if the Debentureholders sell their Debentures in the
secondary market prior to the Maturity Date, the Debentureholders may receive lower or higher selling price
depending on particular market circumstance and demand. In addition, the Debentureholders may not be able to sell
the Debentures freely since the Issuer has registered a transfer restriction of the Debentures with the SEC that no
Debentures will be transferred to any person other than those qualified as institutional investors or high net worth,
unless such transfer is made by way of inheritance.

- The transfer restriction of the Debentures has also been: (i) acknowledged by the Bank of The Lao People's
Democratic Republic; and (ii) endorsed and acknowledged by the Lao Securities Commission Office that no
Debenture will be transferred to any person other than the Qualified Investors.

- Credit rating of the Debentures is provided for making a decision on investment only. They neither recommend the
purchase and selling of the Debentures, nor secure the Issuer's leverage ratio.

- The Debentures are offered in three tranches which contain different tenor and risk level. The Debentures with a longer tenor

constitute higher risks.

Special Characteristics and Risks of the Debentures

Risks in relation to the Issuer

Significant risks and guidelines for risk management are summarized in ltem 3 (Risks Factors) in Part 3 (Description of Issuer)
of the Registration Statement and Draft Prospectus. Those include:

Operational Risks

- Risk in respect of raw materials in electricity production
- Risk in respect of availability of power plants

- Risk from natural disaster

- Risk in respect of Concession Agreement

- Risk in respect of Power Purchase Agreement
Financial Risks

- Risk in respect of financial liquidity

- Risk from exchange rate fluctuations

- Risk from interest rate fluctuations

Part 1 Fact Sheet Page 5



Part 1 Fact Sheet Information as of 27 September 2017 unless specified otherwise.

Risks related to investment in the Company's Debentures
Risk in respect of limited enforceability of rights under the Debentures against the Issuer in the L ao PDR

The Issuer is a limited company incorporated under the laws of Lao PDR. Substantially all of the Issuer's assets are located in the
Lao PDR. As a result, it may not be possible for the Debentureholders to effect service of process outside the Lao PDR, or to enforce
against them or us outside the Lao PDR judgments obtained in foreign courts. Enforceability of foreign court judgements in the Lao
PDR will be subject to conditions and/or restrictions set out below.

As for the enforceability of foreign court judgments or foreign arbitral awards (collectively "Foreign Judgments") in the Lao PDR, the
Lao PDR is a party to one multilateral treaty and two bilateral treaties providing for reciprocal recognition and enforcement of foreign
judgments: the New York Convention and bilateral treaties separately with Vietnam and China on the recognition and enforcement of
foreign judgments. Accordingly, Foreign Judgments from foreign tribunal may not be enforceable in the Lao PDR in the absence of
reciprocity under bilateral or multilateral treaties from the jurisdiction of the foreign tribunal in question. Pursuant to the Law on Civil
Procedures (Amended) No. 13/NA dated 4 July 2012, Lao PDR acknowledges and executes the decisions of foreign court through
its embassy, or the consular or representative offices of the Lao PDR in such foreign country. In order to be recognised by Lao
PDR's courts, a Foreign Judgment is subject to:

- be translated into Lao language;

- be from a country which is a signatory to a treaty to which the Lao PDR is also a signatory or party;

- not impact adversely on the sovereignty of the Lao PDR or not contradict with Lao PDR's laws; and

- not affect security and social order.

Moreover, Lao PDR courts may decide not to recognise a Foreign Judgment if:

- such judgment is subject to continuing proceedings or appeals and is not a final decision;

- the losing party in the foreign judgment did not participate in the proceeding and the judgment was made in default;

- the matter considered by the foreign court should have been considered under the jurisdiction of the Lao PDR courts;

- such judgement conflicts with the Constitution or Lao PDR laws; and

- other non-specified issues relating to the foreign judgment are brought to the attention of the Lao PDR courts.

Enforcing Debentureholders' rights under the Debentures across multiple jurisdictions may be difficult.

The Debentures will be issued by the Issuer which is incorporated under the law of the Lao PDR. The Debentures and the
Debentureholders' Representative Appointment Agreement will be governed by Thai law. In the event of a bankruptcy, insolvency or
similar event, different proceedings could be initiated in the Lao PDR or Thailand. Such multi-jurisdictional proceedings are likely to
be complex and costly for creditors and otherwise may result in greater uncertainty and delay regarding the enforcement of the
rights of Debentureholders. Debentureholders' rights under the Debentures will be subject to the insolvency and administrative laws
of the Lao PDR and there can be no absolute assurance or there can be some difficulty that Debentureholders will be able to
effectively enforce their rights in such complex multiple bankruptcy, insolvency or similar proceedings. Furthermore, the bankruptcy,
insolvency, administrative and other laws of the Lao PDR and Thailand may be certain difference from, or possibly be in conflict with,
each other and those with which Debentureholders may be familiar, including in the areas of rights of creditors, priority of
governmental and other creditors, ability to obtain post-petition interest and duration of the proceedings. The application of these
laws, or any certain conflict among them, could call into question whether the laws of any particular jurisdiction should apply which
may, adversely affect Debentureholders, and their ability or difficulty to enforce their rights under the Debentures in the relevant
jurisdiction or limit any amounts that Debentureholders may receive.

Risk in relation to exchange control

Unless specified in the Registration Statement and Draft Prospectus, currently, there is no specific risk in relation to exchange
control restriction or any other restriction in the Lao PDR which may prohibit, delay or impact payments by the Issuer under the
Debentures, subscription and subscription payments for the Debentures and the issue, delivery and transfer of the

Debentures.
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Part 1 Fact Sheet Information as of 27 September 2017 unless specified otherwise.

Risk in respect of Lao Political, legal and regulatory factors

The Company is subject to political, legal and regulatory conditions in Lao PDR that differ in certain respects from those
prevailing in other countries with more developed economies. The GOL'’s intervention in Lao PDR’s economy can result in
significant changes in economy policy and have a negative impact on the Company. The Company’s future prospects may be
adversely affected by changes in the GOL'’s policies involving electricity concession, exchange controls, tax policies and other
matters. However, according to the CA between the GOL and the Company, the Company shall be entitled to compensation
from the GOL in the case of any change in the Lao Law (a new law is generally not retroactive) having an adverse effect to the
economic position of the Company.

Amortized debentures

Tranche 3 Debentures are amortized debentures where the issue price of each unit is payable in installments. Failure to pay
any subsequent installment on an amortized debenture could result in an investor losing all of its investment.

Please see details in Item 3 (Risks Factors) in Part 3 (Description of Issuer) of the Registration Statement and Draft
Prospectus.

Please see other risks related to investment in the Company's Debentures in ltem 3.3.1 (Risk in respect of the right to receive
payments on the Debentures that is effectively junior to existing and future secured debt of the Issuer), ltem 3.3.5 (Interest rate
risks on an investment in the Debentures) and Item 3.3.6 (Inflation risk on an investment in the Debentures) of Part 3
(Description of Issuer) in the Registration Statement and Draft Prospectus.

Substantial Similarities and Differences between the Terms and Conditions of the Debentures and Sample of Terms and Conditions
prepared by SEC

The Conditions and the sample of terms and conditions prepared by SEC (the "Sample Conditions") are substantially different
in the following issues:

- Condition 7 (Covenants of the Issuer) There are additional covenants from those found in the Sample Conditions; such

as, an undertaking to maintain the ratio of Debt to Equity under Condition 7.2, a requirement for the Issuer to deliver a
report setting out the Debt to Equity Ratio to the Debentureholders' Representative and the Registrar under Condition
7.3*, and a requirement for the Issuer to deliver copies of English translations of its audited annual consolidated
financial statements under Condition 7.10*.

- Condition 13 (Events of Default) An occurrence of event each of which constitutes an Event of Default are difference

from the Sample Conditions:

- payment default. a default made on the payment of any amount of principal or any interest due in respect of the
Debentures when and as the same ought to be paid in accordance with the Conditions, however, such payment
default shall not constitute an Event of Default if it arises from a delay and/or mistake in funds to make payment of such
control of the Issuer and the Issuer has sufficient funds to make payment of such principal or interest as they fall due,
and the Issuer has made payment of such principal or interest within 3 (three) days from the relevant due date;

- cross default: the Issuer fails to pay any indebtedness, having an aggregate nominal amount of more than Baht
500,000,000 (five hundred million baht) (or the equivalent in any other currency or currencies) when it bec omes
due and payable (following the giving of such notice, if any, as is required under the document governing such
indebtedness and as extended by any applicable grace period) or such indebtedness was declared to be
prematurely due and payable due to a default by the Issuer, however, such failure to pay which the Issuer is
disputing in good faith and is under consideration of a court of competent jurisdiction (for so long as there is no

final judgment in relation to the dispute) shall not constitute an Event of Default;

Part 1 Fact Sheet Page 7



Part 1 Fact Sheet Information as of 27 September 2017 unless specified otherwise.

- final judgment or arbitration award: the Issuer is subject to any final judgments of a court of law or arbitration awards
ordering it, in an aggregate amount, to pay a sum of more than Baht 500,000,000 (five hundred million baht) (or
the equivalent in any other currency or currencies), unless the Issuer is capable of paying such amount in
accordance with such final judgments or arbitration awards and such payment does not have a material
adverse effect on the ability of the Issuer to perform its payment obligations under the Conditions.

Please see more details in the draft of the Conditions attached as Appendix 1 of the Registration Statement and Draft
Prospectus.

* Under Condition 7.3, the report setting out the Debt to Equity Ratio shall be delivered to the Debentureholders'
Representative and the Registrar within 15 (fifteen) days from the date the relevant Financial Statement is sent to the Tax
Department, Ministry of Finance of the Lao PDR. Under Condition 7.10, the copies of English translations of its audited
annual consolidated financial statements shall be submitted within, if applicable, the same period as that required under
applicable laws or regulations, but in any case, shall be no later than 180 (one hundred and eighty) days from the end of
the financial year of the Issuer. If, after the Issue Date, such submission period to the SEC or method for the submission is
changed under the applicable laws or regulations, the Issuer shall comply with the new submission period, method for the
submission or requirements according to such amended applicable laws or regulations, as the case may be.

In accordance with the Lao PDR law as at January 2017, the Issuer is required to send such financial statements to the Tax
Department, Ministry of Finance of the Lao PDR on the 1st of March of the following year. If there is any change in Lao PDR

law regarding to this issue, the Issuer will inform by way of posting on the website www.ckpower.co.th.

General Risks

Risks in relation to Instrument

Credit Risk The Debentureholders are subject to the risk that the Issuer might not be able to pay interest or principal in
respect of the Debentures in case the Issuer's business and financial performance are below expectation or the Issuer's properties
are insufficient to make the payment in respect of the Debentures. Investors should carefully consider the Issuer's financial position
and capacity to repay its debt from the information contained in the draft prospectus. In addition, in the consideration of the credit
risk, investors may study the credit rating provided by the credit rating agency before making a decision to invest in the Debentures.
A low credit rating implies higher credit risk of the Issuer or the Debentures and thusly, a higher return rate can be expected,
however, a high credit rating implies lower credit risk of the Issuer or the Debentures and thusly, a lower return rate can be expected.
Each investor should update itself the Issuer's information including a review of credit rating posted on the website of SEC, the
credit rating agency or the Thai Bond Market Association

Price Risk Value of the Debentures may be changed according to several factors, such as interest rate in the money market,
the Bank of Thailand's policy, general economic circumstance, rate of inflation, tenor of the Debentures, excess or deficiency of the
Debentures' demand, therefore, the Debentureholders may be affected by the fluctuation of the Debentures' price when selling the
Debentures in the secondary market prior to the Maturity Date.

Liquidity Risk The Debentureholders may not be able to immediately sell the Debentures in the secondary market prior to
the Maturity Date at their preferred price since there is a low liquidity of the debt instrument secondary market. In addition, the
Issuer does not procure the Debentures to be traded in the Bond Electronic Exchange (BEX) but the Debentureholders are
able to sell or purchase the Debentures with commercial banks, securities companies or other juristic persons having debt

instrument trading license.

In addition, the Debentureholders may not be able to sell the Debentures freely since the Issuer has registered a
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transfer restriction of the Debentures with the SEC that no Debentures will be transferred to any person other than those
qualified as institutional investors or high net worth, unless such transfer is made by way of inheritance. The transfer restriction
of the Debentures has also been: (i) acknowledged by the Bank of The Lao People's Democratic Republic; and (ii) endorsed

and acknowledged by the Lao Securities Commission Office that no Debenture will be transferred to any person other than the

Qualified Investors.

Nature of Business

Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited ("NN2" or "Company" or "Issuer") is a company registered in the Lao People's
Democratic Republic ("Lao PDR") and which is awarded the concession for the development of the Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric
Power Project from the Government of the Lao PDR.

Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project ("NN2HPP") has an installed capacity of 615 MW achieved its Initial
Operation Date ("lOD") on March 26, 2011, and thereafter the Commercial Operation Date ("COD") on January 1, 2013. The
Company is established by the joint venture between SouthEast Asia Energy Limited ("SEAN") holding 75 percent of the total
share capital and EDL-Generation Public Company ("EDL-Gen") holding 25 percent of the total share capital.

NN2HPP has generating capacity of 2,310 GWh per year. All the power generated is sold to Thailand via the Electricity
Generating Authority of Thailand ("EGAT") pursuant to the Power Purchase Agreement ("PPA") for a period of 25 years from the
COD which would result in the benefits of both Thailand and Lao PDR.

Please see more details in Iltem 1 (Company Information) and Item 2 (Nature of Business Operation) of Part 3

(Description of Issuer) in the Registration Statement and Draft Prospectus.

Objectives for Utilizing the Proceeds

The Issuer will use the proceeds received from the offering of the Debentures for the repayment or refinancing of its

existing debt.
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Summary of Financial Position and Operating Results for the Past 2 Years

Unit: Baht (unless otherwise indicated)

Information Year 2016 Year 2015
Total assets 27,138,189,901 28,876,453,129
Total liabilities 16,837,446,845 16,735,734,186
Shareholders' Equity 10,300,743,056 12,140,718,943
Total Income 3,833,141,150 3,944,550,681
Total Expenses 2,348,076,882 2,035,773,997
Net Profit 617,644,662 1,013,815,803
Current Ratio (time) 2.1 1.5
Quick Ratio (time) 1.8 1.2
Average Collection Period (day) 66.9 88.8
Net Profit Margin Ratio (percent)* 26.0 25.7
Interest Coverage Ratio (time)* 3.4 3.3
Debt to Equity Ratio (time) 1.6 1.4
Debt to Equity Ratio (time)** 1.5 1.2

*

full year adjustment

The Conditions provide that the Issuer shall ensure that the ratio of Debt to Equity, in accordance with its Financial Statement, shall not exceed 3:1 as at the

last day of the fourth quarter of each year, whereby "Debt" and "Equity" are defined in the Conditions

Default Record

M No [ ves

Contact Information

1. The investors may request for more information or obtain the prospectus at:
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Address: 333 Silom Road, Silom, Bangrak, Bangkok 10500

Telephone: 0-2230-2295

Krungthai Bank Public Company Limited

Address: 35 Sukhumvit Road, Klong Toey Nua, Wattana, Bangkok 10110
Telephone: 0-2111-1111, 0-2208-4631-39

The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited

Address: 9 Rutchadapisek Road, Jatujak, Jatujak, Bangkok 10900
Telephone: 0-2544-5740

2. For any complaints, please contact:

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Address: 333 Silom Road, Silom, Bangrak, Bangkok 10500

Telephone: 0-2230-2295

Krungthai Bank Public Company Limited

Address: 35 Sukhumvit Road, Klong Toey Nua, Wattana, Bangkok 10110
Telephone: 02-111-1111 (KTB Call Center) or +02-208-8989 (Mon — Fri: 08.30 — 16.30 hrs.)
The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited

Address: 9 Rutchadapisek Road, Jatujak, Jatujak, Bangkok 10900
Telephone: 0-2544-5740
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PART 2
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1. COMPANY INFORMATION

Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited (“NN2PC” or “Company” or “Issuer”) is a
company registered in the Lao People’s Democratic Republic (“Lao PDR”) and is awarded
the concession for the development of the Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project from
the Government of the Lao PDR.

Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project (“NN2HPP”) has an installed capacity of
615 MW. NN2HPP achieved its Initial Operation Date (“IOD”) on March 26, 2011, and
thereafter the Commercial Operation Date (“COD”) on January 1, 2013. The Company is
established by the joint venture between SouthEast Asia Energy Limited (“SEAN”) holding
75 percent of the total share capital and EDL-Generation Public Company (“EDL-Gen”)
holding 25 percent of the total share capital.

NN2HPP has an electricity supply target of 2,310 GWh per year. All the power
generated is sold to Thailand via the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand (“EGAT”)
pursuant to the Power Purchase Agreement (“PPA”) for a period of 25 years from the COD
which would result in the benefits of both Thailand and Lao PDR.

2. COMPANY FINANCIAL POSITION

In 2016, the Company reported Total Revenues of Baht 3,833.1 million, a decrease of
Baht 111.5 million or 2.8% compared to the previous year. This is mainly due to the
Company’s recognition of the remaining balance of the Primary Energy Account (PE
Account) of 94.1 GWh, which the Company accumulated prior to 2015, as sales of electricity
during 2015 on top of the Company’s declaration of plant’s availability of 2,104.8 GWh
during 2015, while no PE Account was used during 2016.

Total Cost of Sales of Electricity decreased by Baht 130.6 million or 7.3% compared
to the previous year mainly due to the decline in Operation and Maintenance Costs as a result
of the Company’s effective operation cost management and the decline in repair and
maintenance expenses compared to 2015. However, Administrative Expenses increased by
Baht 397.5 million or 162.0% in 2016 compared to 2015 primarily due to the one-time write-
off of Baht 377.6 million from the termination of Nam Bak Hydroelectric Power Project
development in the fourth quarter of 2016.

These results in Net Profit of Baht 617.6 million in 2016, a decrease of Baht 396.2
million or 39.1% compared to the previous year

3. RISKS FACTORS

Investor should carefully consider the risks identified below and all other information
contained in this Prospectus, including our financial statements and related notes, before
making an investment decision. If any of the following risks, as well as other risks and
uncertainties that are not currently known or that the Company currently thinks are
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immaterial, are actually realized, our business, financial condition and results of operations
could be materially and adversely affected. The Company realizes the significance of risk
management from the perspective of electricity production and distribution business.

1. Operational Risks

Risk in respect of raw materials in electricity production
Risk in respect of availability of power plants

Risk from natural disaster

Risk in respect of Concession Agreement

¢ Risk in respect of Power Purchase Agreement

2. Financial Risks
¢ Risk in respect of financial liquidity
¢ Risk from exchange rate fluctuations
¢ Risk from interest rate fluctuations

3. Risks related to investment in the Company’s Debentures
¢ Risk in respect of the right to receive payments on the Debentures that is
effectively junior to existing and future secured debt of the Issuer
Risk in respect of limited enforceability of rights under the Debentures
against the Issuer in the Lao PDR
Enforcing Debenturcholders’ rights under the Debentures across multiple
jurisdictions may be difficult.
Risk in respect of Lao Political, legal and regulatory factors
Interest rate risks on an investment in the Debentures
Inflation risk on an investment in the Debentures
Amortized debentures

4. OFFERING INFORMATION

The Company intends to issue and offer (1) name-registered, unsubordinated and
unsecured debentures with a debentureholders' representative namely "The Debentures of
Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 1 Due 2020" ("Tranche 1
Debentures") and "The Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017
Tranche 2 Due 2024" ("Tranche 2 Debentures™) and (2) name-registered, unsubordinated,
unsecured and amortized debentures with a debentureholders' representative namely "The
Amortized Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 3 Due
2027" ("Tranche 3 Debentures,” and together with Tranche 1 Debentures and Tranche 2
Debentures, the "Debentures™)

Tranche 1 Debentures have a tenor of 3 years, Tranche 2 Debentures have a tenor of 7
years and Tranche 3 Debentures have a tenor of 10 years. A total of 6,000,000 units of the
Debentures will be issued, with a nominal value of Baht 1,000 each. Each of Tranche 1
Debentures, Tranche 2 Debentures and Tranche 3 Debentures will be offered in an aggregate
total principal amount of Baht 1,000,000,000, Baht 1,400,000,000 and Baht 3,600,000,000,
respectively. Interest on Tranche 1 Debentures, Tranche 2 Debentures and Tranche 3
Debentures will accrue at the rate of 2.59 percent per annum, 3.48 percent per annum and
3.69 percent per annum, respectively.
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The Debentures will be offered to "Institutional Investors” and "High Net Worth
Investors” as respectively defined in the Notification of the Securities and Exchange
Commission No. KorChor. 5/2552 Re: Determination of Definitions Used in the
Notifications on the Issue and Sale of All Types of Debt Instruments, dated 15 March 2009,
as may from time to time be amended, modified, supplemented or replaced.

The Debentures were assigned credit ratings of 'A-' (with Stable outlook) according to
reports published by TRIS Rating Co., Ltd. on 31 August 2017.

The Issuer will use the proceeds received from the offering of the Debentures for the
repayment or refinancing of its existing debt.

(Investor should carefully consider all information in Part 3 and Part 4 before
making an investment decision.)
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PART 3
DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 General Information of the Company

Company Name : Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited
Incorporation Date 21 April 2006
Type of Business . Production and distribution of electricity from

hydroelectric power.

Head Office : 215 Lanexang Avenue, Ban Xieng Yuen,
Chanthabouly District, Vientiane, Lao PDR.

Registered Capital : 880,900,000 ordinary shares, at the par value of
Baht 10 per share, fully paid-up, being the total
registered and paid-up capital of Baht 8,809,000,000

Telephone Number . (+856-21) 251-718
Facsimile Number . (+856-21) 215-500
Use of Proceeds . For the repayment or refinancing of its existing debt

1.2 Company Background

Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited (“NN2PC” or “Company” or “Issuer”)is a

company registered in the Lao People’s Democratic Republic (“Lao PDR”) and is awarded
the concession for the development of the Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project from
the Government of the Lao PDR.

Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project (“NN2HPP”) has an installed capacity of
615 MW. NN2HPP achieved its Initial Operation Date (“IOD”) on March 26, 2011, and
thereafter the Commercial Operation Date (“COD”) on January 1, 2013. The Company was
established by the joint venture between SouthEast Asia Energy Limited (“SEAN”) holding
75 percent of the total share capital and EDL-Generation Public Company (“EDL-Gen”)
holding 25 percent of the total share capital.

NNZ2HPP has an electricity supply target of 2,310 GWh per year. All the power generated is
sold to Thailand via the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand (“EGAT”) pursuant to
the Power Purchase Agreement (“PPA”) for a period of 25 years from the COD, which would
result in the benefits of both Thailand and Lao PDR.
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1.3 Vision

To be a reliable and reputable company in the hydropower sector that offers
sustainable benefits and growth via a competent system and a highly qualified team.

1.4 Mission
1. Prudent Operations & Maintenance

2. Continuous development in Southeast Asia

1.5 Key Milestones

Date Major Development

14 September 2016 : The Company entered into long-term agreements with the
lending financial institutions for refinancing of existing
long-term loans and additional financing for improvement
and construction of the Nabong Substation.

October 2013 : The Company reduced interest rate of Tranche A Facility
from MLR to be MLR less a margin per annum.

1 January 2013 . Commercial Operation Date

April 2012 : The Company reduced interest rate of Tranche A Facility
from MLR plus a margin to be MLR per annum.

26 March 2011 . Initial Operation Date
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2. BUSINESS OPERATION
2.1 Company Profile

NN2HPP is located on the Nam Ngum River between Phou Xay and Phou Houat, Ban
Houaymo, Muang Hom, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR, 35 kilometers northeast and upstream
of the existing Nam Ngum 1 Dam, and 90 kilometers from Vientiane, the capital city of Lao
PDR.

Group Structure

NN2PC is a member of CK Power Public Company Limited, a listed company in
Thailand. The following chart shows the ultimate shareholders of the Company.

’ l 29.98%2 l 19.40%)
= Bangkok Expressway and ° 5
\ CH.Karnchang Public =en Tyl TTW Public Company £
/ Company Limited (CK) * mm;:l}téﬁél‘;:)ompany o, Limited (TTW) Public

i 19.40%(" l 25.31%

28.77%" CK Power Public 26.52%("
‘ Company Limited (CKP)

Cogeneration: 238 MW

Solar: 22 MW

RATCH

”

56% ¥ 30%
Bangpa-in SouthEastAsia ..\ Xayaburi Power s Bangkhenchai
(-] Cogeneration @ Energy Company “~" . Company Limited — @ Company Limited
Company Limited (BIC) Limited (SEAN) “2Y (xayaburi HPP) (BKC)
: ::g; 30% Chiangrai Solar
EDL-Gen 56 b Company Limited
| 25% 75% (CRS)
30% Nakomn
N D Ratchasima Solar

Nam Ngum 2 Company Limited
Power Company ‘ ) (NRS)
i lelted (NNZPC) Ultimate shareholder

NAM NGUM 2 POWE) CKP = 42%

RATCH : 25% Notes: ( Shareholding percentage as of 23 March 2017
EDL-gen : 25% 3 Shareholding percentage as of 27 April 2017
3 Shareholding percentage as of 16 March 2017

Project Information of NN2PC

Summary of project information of NN2HPP is as follows:

Initial Operation Date (I0D) : 26 March 2011

Commercial Operation Date (COD) : 1 January 2013

Project Cost : ~USD 1 billion

Concession Period : 25 years from COD

Capacity : 615 MW (3 turbines*205 MW)
Spillway Capacity (PMF) £ 8,263 m*/s

PWW Length : 600 m.

Diameter :10.7 m.

Penstock Length 13 X265 m.

Part 3 Description of the Issuer Page 3



Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited

Summary of important technical information of NN2HPP is as follows:

1. Reservoir
Reservoir Area : 5,640 km2
Yearly averaged discharge capacity : 6,270 MCM
Full supply level : 378.75 masl
Maximum flood level : 375 masl
Reservoir area (full supply level) : 122 km2
Storage (full supply level) 6,774 MCM
Minimum operating level : 345 masl
Storage (minimum operating level) : 3,780 MCM
Active storage 22,994 MCM
2. Dam
Type : Concrete face rockfill
Crest length :485m
Crest level : 381 masl
Height from foundation :181m
Width of concrete face :0.30-0.90m

3. Headrace Tunnel

Type . Concrete-lined divided into
three
tunnels
Diameter :11.7m
Length of the first tunnel :1,141m
Length of the second tunnel 1,263 m
Height (above the penstock) : 209.1 masl

4. Tailrace Canal

Amount : 3 units
Diameter :5.35m
Length :212m

The PPA determines the Annual Supply Target of 2,310 GWh (million units)
to be purchased by EGAT, which is divided into:

(@) Primary Energy (“PE”): 2,218 GWh per year, with the production
capacity not exceeding 16 hours per day, the payments for which will be made
partially in Thai Baht and partially in USD according to the tariff designated by the
PPA.

(b) Secondary Energy (“SE”): 92 GWh per year. This refers to the
electrical energy generated only during August, September and October each year, all
payments for which will be made in Thai Baht.
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(©)

Excess Energy (“EE”) is the excess electricity generated when

NN2PC’s volume of water exceeds the forecasted amount, thereby, in such month,
generating electricity in excess of the target designated in (a) and (b) as declared to
EGAT in advance. The excess electricity will be considered the Excess Energy. All
payments for which will be made in Thai Baht.

In addition, if NN2PC is able to generate electricity in excess of the designated target
of PE or SE as determined in the Agreement, such Excess Energy may be accumulated in the
Reserve Account, which may be utilized in the future in any year in which it cannot generate
and sell electricity to EGAT to meet the target as specified in the PPA. The Excess Energy
accumulated in the Reserve Account in form of electricity credit can be retained for up to 10
years and will be settled three times in 2022, 2032, and at the end of the CA.

Company’s Business Strategy

1. Continuous development of Human Resources and

management system
2. Strict adherence to Good Corporate Governance
3. Uphold the Corporate Responsibility to both society and environment

2.2 Revenue Structure

improvement of the

The following table sets forth a revenue structure of our business for the periods

indicated.

(Unit: Million Baht)

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Business Segment 31 December 2016 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Revenue from sale of 3,814.9 99.5% 3,883.2 98.4% 3,976.5 99.8%
electricity
Gain on exchange - 0.0% 42.0 1.1% - 0.0%
Other income 18.2 0.5% 19.4 0.5% 9.1 0.2%
Total 3,833.1 100.0% 3,944.6 100.0% 3,985.5 100.0%
Tariff Structure
PE Tariff SE Tariff EE Tariff
Year . . .
50% in 50% in THB equi.
USD/KWh | THB/KWh JKWh* R= UL
2011 — 2012 0.02475 0.9630 1.8045 1.2530 1.0600
2013 - 2018 0.02475 0.9650 1.8065 1.2550 1.0620
2019 Thereafter 0.02668 1.0410 1.9481 1.3530 1.1450

*Assume exchange rate of Baht 34 per USD
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2.3 Production Process

The NN2HPP is a storage dam, which impounds water in a reservoir for power
generation. The dam was constructed with the water storage level higher than the powerhouse
to establish different levels of water to generate high pressure when water is released. The
volume of water released from the reservoir down through tunnels towards the powerhouse is
controlled to be at the desired quantity. The immense pressure of water in the tunnels will
drive the turbine to spin at high velocity. The spinning turbine will then drive the generator,
connected to the turbine through shaft, to spin and produce electricity.

The powerhouse of the NN2HPP comprises three vertical Francis Turbines, a reaction
turbine type suitable for hydropower plants with moderate water level such as the NN2HPP.
The generators comprise three synchronous generators with a capacity of 205 MW each,
thereby bringing the total capacity to 615 MW.

Powerhouse Section

+242.30 = _'_j'l 2]
Transformer _j
+227.00 s Generator
L1 !
+215.40 __T?; 1
ST [o—— o ea® 1| :
i L :I Turbine
+206.20 r—
+198.60 = e

Inlet Valve

The NN2HPP relies solely on the water in the Nam Ngum River, which originates
from the Xiangkhouang Plateau, with a total length of approximately 354 kilometers.
NN2HPP’s reservoir covers approximately 107 square kilometers, with the full water
capacity of 4,886 million cubic meters at full supply level of 375 meters above Mean Sea
Level (“masl”).

Despite the fact that the water supply has no cost for power generation as it is derived
from natural sources, hydropower generation is subject to some limitations due to the
uncertain and unpredictable volume of water from time to time depending on weather
conditions and seasons. According to the feasibility study of Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric
Power Project, which takes into account the 50-year rainfall database (during 1954 - 2003),
the amount of storm water in the Nam Ngum River is sufficient to feed the dam and for
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storage for power generation to meet the supply target under the Power Purchase Agreement
with EGAT in the respective years.

The volume of water in the NN2HPP in 2014 to 2016 was as follows:

2016 2015 2014

Water Water Water
Height* Volume Height* Volume Height* Volume

(masl) cubic (masl) cubic (masl) (cubic

meters) meters) meters)
January 372.45 4,309.82 373.72 4,771.96 372.33 4,604.72
February 369.43 4,376.89 373.93 4,560.22 370.64 4,431.54
March 370.10 3,987.35 371.90 4,140.04 368.23 4,190.92
April 366.13 3,452.00 367.71 3,390.05 358.93 3,333.79
May 360.29 2,918.03 359.58 2,669.52 350.62 2,667.29
June 354.68 2,610.26 350.65 2,258.43 343.85 2,192.50
July 349.85 2,753.04 344.84 2,829.75 343.89 2,195.29
August 351.76 3,586.16 352.76 3,906.65 351.76 2,753.04
September 361.60 4,057.45 365.28 4,554.07 367.35 4,104.97
October 366.86 4,118.60 371.84 4,735.18 374.30 4,811.22
November 367.49 4,310.82 373.58 4,553.05 373.78 4,755.82
December 369.44 4,481.30 371.83 4,617.17 373.76 4,749.59

* Height as at the beginning of each month

2.4 Operation and Maintenance

The Company manages reservoir’s water level and electricity generation by using an
operating rule curve, which acts as an operating guideline for NN2PC to operate more
efficiently and generate more electricity. Moreover, the operating rule curve is used to predict
probability of various weather and water volume scenario for further improvement of
reservoir management and electricity generation in the future periods.

The Company has an Operation and Maintenance Agreement with EGAT to operate
and maintain its dam and powerhouse camp facilities. Additionally, the Company has an
Operation and Maintenance Agreement with Electricite Du Laos (“EDL”), the state enterprise
of Lao PDR to operate and maintain its transmission line.

The maintenance of the Company’s production facilities is a critical aspect of the
Company’s business. Proper maintenance allows the Company to operate more efficiently
and generate more electricity. The Company manages the maintenance of its power plant to
minimize disruption to its electricity generation. This includes coordinating the maintenance
outages with the requirements of EGAT as well as planning and scheduling the maintenance
to achieve maximum efficiency and minimize the time that the Company’s facilities are not
in operation.
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The Company’s PPA provides allowances for scheduled maintenance outages and the
Company works to ensure that it falls within these parameters. Through the Operation and
Maintenance Agreement with EGAT and EDL, the Company maintains highly experienced
technicians and engineers at its hydropower plant to provide day-to-day operation and
maintenance services. The Company typically maintains key components and spare parts in
order to handle any outage situation. The Company’s regular maintenance program focuses
on ensuring that all relevant performance targets are met. These services include the
following:

2.4.1 Daily, monthly and yearly maintenance of the following machines by
employees in operation & maintenance department:

= Generator;

= Governor;

= Inlet Valve;

= Cooling water system;

= Excitation system;

* Main transformer;

= Station Service Transformers;
= 15kV Bus Duct;

= Generator Circuit Breaker;

= 22KV switch gear;

= 400V AC system;

= DC&UPS system;

= Gas insulation switch gear;

= Spillway gate control cubicle;
= Line protection system;

= Communication system;

= Control & Protection system;
= [ntake gate control cubicle;

= HVAC system;

= Diesel engine generator;

= Motor for water pump cubicle control;
= Spillway galleries;

= Generator protection system;
= Crane control system;

= Low voltage switch gear;

= Low pressure system;

» Drainage & Dewatering system;
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= Fire Fighting system;
= Transmission line system.

2.4.2 Daily, monthly and yearly maintenance of the machines and plant by
civil & service department as follows:

= Plant maintenance
o Maintain penstock to machines;
o Maintain audit tunnel;
o Inspect and record sedimentation;
o Inspect and record deflection;
o Inspect water leakage;
o Maintain log boom;
o Dam and Instrument record;
o Reservoir patrol.
= Residence and road maintenance
o Repair and maintain employees and workers’ dwelling;

o Repair and maintain offices, machinery houses, security
shelters and houses, main housing club;

= Repair and maintain access road to each employees and
workers’ residence

In addition, the Company has arranged for regular maintenance and inspection plan,
which comprises (1) Annual Inspection, (2) Check-up, conducted every 2 years, (3) Partial
Overhaul, conducted every 6 years, and (4) Major Overhaul, conducted every 12 years,
emphasizing inspection of the main equipment including electrical equipment and relay
equipment (i.e. generators, turbines, guide vanes, transformers, switch yard equipment, etc.).
These inspections also include repairing and replacing such equipment, as the case may be.
Moreover, the Company uses manufacturer services for station service equipment to support
main equipment such as crane, low pressure system, elevator, HVAC system, etc.

2.5 Insurance

The Company procures and maintains policies of insurance on reasonable
commercial terms and under prudent utility practices with reputed insurers throughout the
concession period.

With respect to the operating phase insurances, the Company’s insurances must at
least cover:

2.5.1 “All Risks (including Machinery Breakdown)” insurance;
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2.5.2 “Business Interruption” insurance following All Risks (including
Machinery Breakdown), as necessary and beneficial to the Company;

2.5.3 “Public Liability” insurance;
2.5.4 “Workmen’s Compensation” insurance; and
2.5.5 “Employer’s Liability” insurance.

With respect to the construction phase insurances, the Company’s insurances must
at least cover:

2.5.6 “Marine Cargo/Transit” insurance;
2.5.7 “Construction All Risks” insurance;
2.5.8 “Public Liability” insurance; and

2.5.9 “Delay in Start-Up” following Marine Cargo and Construction All Risks, as
necessary and beneficial to the Company.

The Company believes that it has maintained adequate insurances to protect the
Company against the most likely events. However, there can be no assurance that a severe
event impacting one or more of the Company’s assets will be adequately covered by
insurance.

2.6 Environmental and Social Policies and Commitments

NN2PC is determined to engage in hydroelectric power generation with
minimization of environmental, community, and social impacts following the Company’s
mission to be responsible to environment, community and all stakeholders.

Over the past 6 years of operation of the Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power
Project, NN2PC has successfully implemented the Environmental Management Plan
(“EMP”) and Resettlement Action Plan (“RAP”) for the project during the operation phase.
NN2PC’s commitment to act responsibly and ethically to communities in which its project
operates is exemplified by successful resettlement initiatives for those affected by the dam
construction.

Since 2010, NN2PC, together with TEAM Consulting Engineering and
Management Co., Ltd., Thailand in association with TEAM Lao Co., Ltd., Lao PDR, has
managed the EMP and RAP implementations following the policies and commitments to
improve Project-Affected People (“PAP”)’s livelihood, communities, and environment as
follows:

= Better Living Conditions: NN2PC is responsible for building new homes for
families that have been relocated or resettled. There are several types of houses
to meet the needs of different size of families. Each is equipped with
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electricity and running water, a vegetable garden and a farming area. This
helps ensure that families can transition to a life that is rewarding and
sustainable. Infrastructure such as roads, irrigation systems and electricity lines
also help make life more comfortable for the relocated and resettled villagers.

Better Livelihood: Skills training is made available to villagers, with the goal
of bringing each family's annual income to USD 1,800 per year by 2020.
Villagers can choose from vocational training in farming, handicraft making,
beauty treatments, automotive and motorcycle reparation and many others.
This training helps villagers to both provide services to their neighbors and
build a sustainable future for their families.

Better Education: Elementary and secondary schools were built for the
communities, making education accessible for all children of the communities.

Better Health: Medical facilities staffed by professional doctors, nurses and
pharmacists were constructed, providing quality and affordable health care to
all villagers.

Better Environment: Implementation related to the environment are:

Surface water quality monitoring: The water quality monitoring has been
conducted every three months since December 2010 at upstream reservoir, and
upstream and downstream areas near Dam Axis. The monitoring data aims at
observing the water quality discharged from the Nam Ngum 2 reservoir
throughout the year, assessing the effect of any change in water quality, and
recommending any necessary measures to mitigate the impacts in the future.

Air and noise pollution monitoring: NN2PC has engaged Environmental
Department of EGAT to bring equipment from Thailand to perform air quality
and noise level checking every year.

Solid waste management: Monitoring and training were carried out for
cleaning the host village and surrounding village area to ensure that wastes are
properly collected and transported to the disposal site. In the power plant area,
waste management is performed according to the 1SO 9001 procedure.

Watershed management: Implementation of the watershed management was
conducted in operation phase with the activities of watershed including
patrolling survey and monitoring, creating public awareness on environmental
issues and participating in forestry reservation activities.

2.7 Human Resources

Since the Incorporation Date, the Company’s business has not been interrupted by any

work stoppage or strike. The Company considers the relationship with its employees to be

good.
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The employees are one of the most strategic and valuable assets of the Company, and
are the foundation of its success and growth. The Company’s philosophy in human resources
management aims to create work environment where its people can grow their careers,
develop themselves, and perform at their best. This effective human resource management
and development has helped the Company maintain highly skilled technicians and engineers,
who are considered to be among the most experienced people in hydropower industry in
Southeast Asian region. This is the Company’s strategic advantage, which will help ensure its
future growth and strong positioning in the power generation industry as well as creating the
opportunity for the Company to expand into other related businesses.

In addition to technical competencies, the Company also aims to develop business
competency to enhance its employees’ knowledge of capital markets in order to understand
the Company’s impacts on the securities markets. Integrity and ethics are reinforced as part
of the Company’s core values to ensure commitment and responsibility to shareholders. The
Company intends to create a performance based culture through its performance management
system which assesses performance results and competencies as well as identify areas for
development of employees. Rewards and recognitions are provided according to employees’
performance. Training needs are defined based on competency assessment and area for
development. Human resources development and manpower planning are also in place to
support business direction.
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3. RISKS FACTORS

The Company realizes the significance of risk management from the perspective of
electricity production and distribution business. The Company maintains a working group,
comprising executives from every line of work of the Company to prepare an annual risk
management plan and to assess and monitor various risks. In each quarter, the results of risk
assessment are reported to the Board of Directors to inform them of the ongoing changes in
circumstances which might affect the Company.

The significant risks and guidelines for risk management may be summarized as follows:
3.1 Operational Risks
3.1.1 Riskin respect of raw materials in electricity production

Raw materials are key factors contributing to the capacity of the electricity
production, which will affect the ability of a power plant to generate revenue. In regard
to hydroelectric power plant, raw material in its electricity production is water, which is
procured at no cost. Nevertheless, the amounts could fluctuate.

The significant source of water in the Nam Ngum River is derived from the
storm water catchment area, the amount of which is subject to certain limitations from
the uncertain and unpredictable amount of rain and storm water. The risk relating to
acquisition of water for production has been efficiently managed through appropriate
design of the dam and reservoir structures, and negotiations on various terms in the
Power Purchase Agreement (“PPA”) to fairly cover such risk, including an agreement
on tariff structure and power purchase guidelines for fair water risk management for
both contractual parties. For example, in the event that the Primary Energy (“PE”)
produced by NN2PC is lower than the average of 8 hours per day in any month or
lower than the average of 10 hours per day in any year, NN2PC must pay a fine to the
EGAT at the rate of 23.7 percent of PE charge multiplied by the shortfall. However, in
the hydroelectric power project design and prior to execution of the PPA with EGAT,
NN2PC studied the statistics of actual amount of water in the Nam Ngum River over
the previous 50 years to identify the potential capacity for electricity production.
Therefore, the Company is confident that it would be able to comply with the terms in
the PPA. In the event that the amount of water decreases to the extent that the
electricity produced by NN2PC is less than the requirement under the PPA, it may
consider declaring such year as a drought year. According to the PPA, a drought year
may be declared twice throughout the entire period of the Agreement, whereby no fine
due to electricity production shortfall will be imposed.

Furthermore, in any year, if the amount of water flowing into the project
increases to the extent that the project produces electricity in excess of the target of
2,218 GWh (million units) for PE and 92 million units for the Secondary Energy
(“SE”), NN2PC may carry forward the Excess Energy to be recognized as revenue for
the subsequent years in which the amount of water is insufficient to produce electricity
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to meet the target, and as such, its revenue stream has been relatively steady despite the
fluctuation in the amount of water. No fine will be imposed for failure to produce
electricity to meet the annual supply target. According to the actual records in 2016,
the amount of water flowing into the project was relatively low, causing a shortfall of
PE of 186.45 million units of electricity compared to the PE target, and a shortfall of
SE of 21.38 million units of electricity compared to the SE target. The aforesaid
shortfalls of electricity will be carried forward for the declaration of plant’s availability
in the following years, subject to the appropriate amount of water flowing into the
project. The mechanism of such reserve energy could minimize risks relating to
revenue fluctuations between a wet year and a dry year. This could be seen from
NN2PC’s revenue from sales of electricity in 2016, which was lower than that in 2015
by only Baht 68.23 Million or 1.76 percent despite the fact that the amount of water
declined to 445.12 cubic meters or 7.67 percent compare to the previous year.

Over the past few years, the monsoon season appeared to be delayed due to the
effect of El Nino, which has affected the Company’s electricity production. The
Company closely monitors the pattern of changing seasons and coordinates with TEAM
Consulting Engineering and Management Co., Ltd., as the water management expert, in
order to further plan for proper electricity production.

3.1.2  Risk in respect of availability of power plants

Risk from the unavailability of equipment of power plant other than the
shortage of raw materials may occur for many reasons, thereby impairing the efficiency
of the electricity production or interrupting the production process, which may cause
damage to power plant, danger to personnel, reduction in revenue, and increase in
repair cost of defective equipment. Any interruption of the electricity production for
any reason other than normal maintenance, without prior notice to EGAT, the power
purchaser, may be subject to a fine.

The management of a hydroelectric power project requires personnel with
considerable experience and expertise given the high value of investment in the
hydroelectric power project. Apart from the control of machinery and equipment in the
electricity production to meet the quality and electricity security, the amount of water in
the reservoir must be managed to ensure its adequacy for electricity production for
distribution in the quantity, quality and stability as specified in the PPA with EGAT.
Any water mismanagement or malfunction of the electricity production, including
equipment, may result in damage to the dam, generators and related equipment and also
have an impact on revenue and results of operations of the project.

NN2PC has personnel who are highly experienced and capable hydropower
plant project managers. Moreover, NN2PC engages EGAT to provide services under
the Operation and Maintenance Agreement including major maintenance services.
NN2PC benefits greatly through this Operation and Maintenance Agreement with
EGAT, since EGAT is one of a few organizations in Thailand having personnel with
long-term experience and expertise in management of hydroelectric power projects and

Part 3 Description of the Issuer Page 14



Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited

is also the sole power purchaser under the PPA of NN2PC. With respect to the
preventive maintenance plans, NN2PC implements partial overhaul and major overhaul
plans every six years and twelve years, respectively. Moreover, an independent
consultant is also engaged to measure the efficiency and stability in various aspects of
the hydroelectric power plant, whereby the Company regularly follows up on relevant
reports to enhance the availability of the power plant. In addition, the Company
continuous to look for third-party experts to provide knowledge sharing and staff
training services to the Company to enhance its ability in the hydroelectric power
project management. The Company believes that such policy is necessary for managing
operational risk.

3.1.3 Risk from natural disaster

The Company manages such risk from natural disaster by selecting the
location it deemed to have the lowest risk of being affected by natural disasters to
establish the project and by designing the project to accommodate and withstand
potential natural disasters. The Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project is located in
an area where the highest magnitude of an earthquake in recorded history did not
exceed 5.8 on the Richter scale. The Nam Ngum 2 Dam has also been designed to
accommodate an earthquake up to 8 on the Richter scale. The dam uses spillway as the
overflow prevention system. The spillway has three gates, each with 15 meters in width
and 16.7 meters in height. The spillway is capable of draining water up to 6,756 cubic
meters per second.

In addition, the Company has taken out insurance to cover potential damages.
The insurance policies include property damage insurance, business interruption
insurance, and public liability insurance.

3.1.4  Risk in respect of Concession Agreement

According to the Concession Agreement, the concession period in relation to
generation assets is 25 years from the COD. Thus, the Company’s main source of
revenues, which is the sales of electricity to EGAT under the PPA, is subject to such
contractual limitation. After such period, the Company is required to transfer the
relevant generation assets to the GOL according to the CA.

Currently, the concession period of the CA between the GOL and the
Company will last until 2038 and the Company has the right to a contract period
extension under terms and conditions as may then be agreed by the GOL and the
Company.

3.1.5 Risk in respect of Power Purchase Agreement
The Company could potentially face fines in a situation where it could not

fulfill conditions stipulated in the PPA. Such conditions include, but not limited to, the
Company’s ability to deliver a certain amount of electricity to EGAT under the
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3.2

minimum requirement of the PPA. However, under the PPA, there are mechanisms
which help the Company manage its electricity production and fulfill its obligation
under the PPA.

The PPA determines the Annual Supply Target of 2,310 GWh (million units)
to be purchased by EGAT, which is divided into:

@) Primary Energy (“PE”): 2,218 GWh per year, with the production

capacity not exceeding 16 hours per day, the payments for which will be made partially
in Thai Baht and partially in USD according to the tariff designated by the PPA.

b) Secondary Energy (“SE”): 92 GWh per year. This refers to the

electrical energy generated only during August, September and October each year, all
payments for which will be made in Thai Baht.

() Excess Energy (“EE”) is the excess electricity generated when
NN2PC’s volume of water exceeds the forecasted amount, thereby, in such month,

generating electricity in excess of the target designated in (a) and (b) as declared to
EGAT in advance. The excess electricity will be considered the Excess Energy. All
payments for which will be made in Thai Baht.

The Company may choose to accumulate such Excess Energy in the Reserve
Account, which may be utilized in the future in any year in which it cannot generate
and sell electricity to EGAT to meet the target as specified in the PPA. The Excess
Energy accumulated in the Reserve Account in form of electricity credit can be retained
for up to 10 years and will be settled three times in 2022, 2032, and at the end of the
CA.

Financial Risks
3.21  Risk in respect of financial liquidity

As for the liquidity management, the Company maintains the cash flow
projections and regularly updates the data, as well as manages the loan agreements and
closely coordinates with the lending banks, in order to minimize risks of breaching the
conditions of the loan agreements. Moreover, the Company has a policy to manage the
excess cash by investing in bank deposits and highly liquid short-term investments with
reliable financial institutions, arranges for credit availability and maintains the
relationships with commercial banks when fund is needed.

3.2.2  Risk from exchange rate fluctuations
The Company is at risk of its financial statements’ being affected by the

fluctuating revenue and expenses due to changes in exchange rate between USD and
Baht. This is because, according to the PPA with EGAT, a certain portion of the tariff is
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denominated in USD. In 2016 and 2015, the Company derived USD revenue in the
amount of USD 50.28 Million and USD 53.27 Million, respectively. Furthermore, the
Company entered into the long-term USD loan agreement in the amount of USD 134
Million to partially finance the construction of the Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power
Project, with the principal repayment in installments until full repayment in 2030.

In 2016 and 2015, the Company’s USD revenue, expenses and principal
repayment of the long-term loans were as follows:

(Unit: USD Million) 2016 2015
Revenue 50.28 53.27
- Revenue from sales of electricity 50.28 53.27
Expenditure 14.75 18.59
- Principal repayment 8.35 12.60
- Interest expense 4.69 4,18
- Royalty fee 1.71 1.81
Net 35.53 34.68

By the nature of business operation, which derives certain portion of revenue
in USD and at the same time incurs certain portion of expenses in USD, the exchange
rate risk has been managed by way of natural hedge.

Since July 2013, the Company started applying hedge accounting in order to
hedge the foreign exchange exposure on a certain portion of its forecasted revenue from
sales of electricity in USD currency, whereby such revenue from sales of electricity
was designated as the hedged item and the long-term loans in USD were designated as
the hedging instrument. Based on the cash flow hedge accounting principles, the
fluctuation of gain and loss on exchange rate could be minimized, whereby the
effective portion of the change in the fair value of the cash flow hedging instrument is
recognized in other comprehensive income, instead of profit and loss, and then
transferred to profit or loss only at the time when and for the portion where the hedging
item affects profit or loss (i.e. when the repayment of USD loans occurs).

3.2.3 Risk from interest rate fluctuations

Based on the Company’s long-term loans, all of which were subject to floating
interest rate, any material changes in the interest rate will have an impact on finance
cost of the Company. However, the Company manages such risk from interest rate by
regularly monitoring of the tendency of changes in interest rate, continuously managing
and improving finance cost, and considering potential for arrangements of hedging
instruments by changing from floating interest rate to fixed interest rate as appropriate
to market conditions, without any purpose of speculation.
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33 Risks related to investment in the Company’s Debentures

3.3.1 Risk in respect of the right to receive payments on the Debentures that is
effectively junior to existing and future secured debt of the Issuer

On the issue date of the Debentures, the Issuer will apply the proceeds received from
the Debentures towards the partial prepayment of its existing secured debt. Since the
holders of the Debentures will not share the security and collateral granted to secure the
secured debt of the Issuer, the rights of holders of the Debentures will effectively rank
junior to the rights of holders of secured debt of the Issuer to the extent of the value of
the assets securing such secured debt.

Because the Debentures will be unsecured obligations, your right of payment may be
compromised if any of the following occurs:

« The Company enters into bankruptcy, liquidation, reorganization, suspension of
payments or other winding-up proceedings;

* There is a default in payment under any of the Company’s secured debt; and

» There is an acceleration of any of the Company’s secured debt.

If any of these events occurs, the secured creditors could sell the Company’s assets to
your exclusion, even if an Event of Default exists under the Debentures at such time.
As a result, upon the occurrence of any of these events, the Company cannot assure you
that there will be sufficient funds to pay amounts due on the Debentures.

332 Risk in respect of limited enforceability of rights under the Debentures
against the Issuer in the Lao PDR

The Issuer is a limited company incorporated under the laws of Lao PDR. Substantially
all of the Issuer's assets are located in the Lao PDR. As a result, it may not be possible
for the Debentureholders to effect service of process outside the Lao PDR, or to enforce
against them or the Company outside the Lao PDR judgments obtained in foreign
courts. Enforceability of foreign court judgements in the Lao PDR will be subject to
conditions and/or restrictions set out below.

As for the enforceability of foreign court judgments or foreign arbitral awards
(collectively “Foreign Judgments”) in the Lao PDR, the Lao PDR is a party to one
multilateral treaty and two bilateral treaties providing for reciprocal recognition and
enforcement of foreign judgments: the New York Convention and bilateral treaties
separately with Vietnam and China on the recognition and enforcement of foreign
judgments. Accordingly, Foreign Judgments from foreign tribunal may not be
enforceable in the Lao PDR in the absence of reciprocity under bilateral or multilateral
treaties from the jurisdiction of the foreign tribunal in question. Pursuant to the Law on
Civil Procedures (Amended) No. 13/NA dated 4 July 2012, Lao PDR acknowledges
and executes the decisions of foreign court through its embassy, or the consular or
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representative offices of the Lao PDR in such foreign country. In order to be recognized
by Lao PDR’s courts, a Foreign Judgment is subject to:

« De translated into Lao language;

« Dbe from a country which is a signatory to a treaty to which the Lao PDR is also a
signatory or party;

» not impact adversely on the sovereignty of the Lao PDR or not contradict with
Lao PDR’s laws; and

» not affect security and social order.

Moreover, Lao PDR courts may decide not to recognize a Foreign Judgment if:

» such judgment is subject to continuing proceedings or appeals and is not a final
decision;

» the losing party in the foreign judgment did not participate in the proceeding and
the judgment was made in default;

 the matter considered by the foreign court should have been considered under the
jurisdiction of the Lao PDR courts;

 such judgement conflicts with the Constitution or Lao PDR laws; and

« other non-specified issues relating to the foreign judgment are brought to the
attention of the Lao PDR courts.

3.3.3  Enforcing Debentureholders’ rights under the Debentures across multiple
jurisdictions may be difficult.

The Debentures will be issued by the Issuer which is incorporated under the law of the
Lao PDR. The Debentures and the Debentureholders’ Representative Appointment
Agreement will be governed by Thai law. In the event of a bankruptcy, insolvency or
similar event, different proceedings could be initiated in the Lao PDR or Thailand.
Such multi-jurisdictional proceedings are likely to be complex and costly for creditors
and otherwise may result in greater uncertainty and delay regarding the enforcement of
the rights of Debentureholders. Debentureholders’ rights under the Debentures will be
subject to the insolvency and administrative laws of the Lao PDR and there can be no
absolute assurance or there can be some difficulty that Debentureholders will be able to
effectively enforce their rights in such complex multiple bankruptcy, insolvency or
similar proceedings. Furthermore, the bankruptcy, insolvency, administrative and other
laws of the Lao PDR and Thailand may be certain difference from, or possibly be in
conflict with, each other and those with which Debentureholders may be familiar,
including in the areas of rights of creditors, priority of governmental and other
creditors, ability to obtain post-petition interest and duration of the proceedings. The
application of these laws, or any certain conflict among them, could call into question
whether the laws of any particular jurisdiction should apply, which may adversely
affect Debentureholders and their ability or difficulty to enforce their rights under the
Debentures in the relevant jurisdiction or limit any amounts that Debentureholders may
receive.
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3.3.4 Risk in respect of Lao Political, legal and regulatory factors

The Company is subject to political, legal and regulatory conditions in Lao PDR that
differ in certain respects from those prevailing in other countries with more developed
economies. The GOL’s intervention in Lao PDR’s economy can result in significant
changes in economy policy and have a negative impact on the Company. The
Company’s future prospects may be adversely affected by changes in the GOL’s
policies involving electricity concession, exchange controls, tax policies and other
matters. However, according to the CA between the GOL and the Company, the
Company shall be entitled to compensation from the GOL in the case of any change in
the Lao Law (a new law is generally not retroactive) having an adverse effect to the
economic position of the Company.

3.35 Interest rate risks on an investment in the Debentures

Debentureholders may suffer unforeseen losses due to fluctuations in interest rates.
Generally, a rise in interest rates may cause a fall in the price of the Debentures,
resulting in a capital loss for the Debentureholders. However, the Debentureholders
may reinvest the interest payments at higher prevailing interest rates. Conversely, when
interest rates fall, the price of the Debentures may rise. The Debentureholders may
receive a capital gain but interest payments received may be reinvested at lower
prevailing interest rates.

3.3.6 Inflation risk on an investment in the Debentures

Debentureholders may suffer erosion on the return of their investments due to inflation.
Debentureholders may have an anticipated rate of return based on expected inflation
rates on the purchase of the Debentures. An unexpected increase in inflation could
reduce the real rate of return to Debentureholders.

3.3.7  Amortized debentures
Tranche 3 Debentures are amortized debentures where the issue price of each unit is

payable in installments. Failure to pay any subsequent installment on an amortized
debenture could result in an investor losing all of its investment.
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4. OPERATING ASSETS
4.1 Fixed Assets

As at December 31, 2016, the Company used the following fixed assets in the
business operations with net book values as follows:

4.1.1  Assets of hydroelectric power project under concession agreement

. Net Book Value .
Location (Million Baht) Ownership Encumbrance
Lao PDR 23,240.07 Owner To secure long-term loans from
financial institutions

4.1.2  Property, plant and equipment

Net Book
Value
(Million
Baht)

No. Item Location Ownership | Encumbrance

No. 215 Lanexang
Avenue, Ban Xieng

Leasehold building Yuen, Chanthabouly 17.71 Owner None

Improvements District, Vientiane
Province, Lao PDR
o | Furnitureandoffice | o opp 21.23 Owner None
supplies
3 Vehicles Lao PDR 14.84 Owner None
Total property, plant and equipment 53.78

4.1.3 Long-Term Lease Agreements

The Company entered into the long-term lease agreements for utilization in the
business operations, as follows:

Starting Ending
Leaser Agreement Area Term Date Date
State Property 2106
Management Department, | Lease of office square 25 years 1-Jan-09 31-Dec-33
Ministry of Finance, Lao | space
PDR meters
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5. LEGAL DISPUTES

As at December 31, 2016, NN2PC was not a party in any case, had no legal dispute or
case outside the ordinary course of business operations of the Company which may give rise

to damage or negative material impact on the business operations regardless of whether it is
assessable and translated into money.
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6. CAPITAL STRUCTURE

6.1 Registered and Paid in Capital
As at December 31, 2016, the registered capital and paid-in capital were as follow:
Registered Capital:  Baht 8,809,000,000 with 880,900,000 ordinary shares,
at the par value of 10 Baht
Paid-in Capital: Baht 8,809,000,000 with 880,900,000 ordinary shares,
at the par value of 10 Baht
6.2 Equity Structure

The Company’s major shareholder is SouthEast Asia Energy Company Limited with
shareholding of 75%.

Number of |Shareholding
No. Name
Shares Percentage
1 | SouthEast Asia Energy Limited 660,675,000 75.0
2 | EDL - Generation Public Company Limited 220,225,000 25.0
Total 880,900,000 100.0

6.3 Debentures / Bills of Exchange / Promissory Notes

As at December 31, 2016, the Company did not have any outstanding debentures
and/or bills of exchange and/or promissory notes.

6.4 Policy on Dividend Payment

NN2PC has a policy on dividend payment to shareholders at the rate of no less than
40 percent of the net profit after deduction of corporate income tax and legal reserve. In this
regard, the rate of such dividend payment may vary from the specified rate subject to the
operational results, financial position, available liquidity, working capital requirement, and
other relevant factors as the Board of Directors and/or NN2PC’s shareholders may deem
appropriate, as well as restrictions specified in the loan agreement. The conditions in the
long-term loan agreement specify that NN2PC may make the dividend payment only after
reserves have been made to fully meet the following requirements:

1. Operating Account: The Company must reserve funds for payment of the
operating expenses for three months;

2. Accrual Account: The Company must reserve funds for payment of the principal
and interest in the next installment;
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3. Debt Service Reserve Account: The Company must reserve funds in the amount
equivalent to the principal and interest in the next six months; and

4. Major Maintenance Account: The Company must reserve funds in the amount
equivalent to the Capital Expenditure costs in accordance with the Major
Maintenance requirement.

The remaining cash after the provision of reserve in the accounts above will be
available for dividend payment, provided that the DSCR shall not be less than 1.10 times.
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7. ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

The Management Structure of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited as at
December 31, 2016 was as follows:

Board of Directors

| Executive Board |
I

Managing Director

I
I I
Deputy Managing Director: Deputy Managing Director:
Administration and Finance Department Operation and Maintenance Department

7.1 Board of Directors
7.1.1 The Structure of the Board of Directors

As at December 31, 2016, NN2PC’s Board of Directors consisted of 13 directors, six
of whom are executive directors. Detail of the Board of Director’s meeting attendances is as
follows:

Number of the Number of the
Name Position Board of Directors’ | Executive Board’s
Meetings in 2016* | Meetings in 2016*
Dr. Virabongsa Ramangkura Chal_r man of the Board 4/4
of Directors
Mr. Plew Trivisvavet Chairman of the m m
Executive Board
Mr. Supong Chayutsahakij? Director 4/4
Director 4/4
Mr. Narong Sangsuriya
Executive Director 4/4
Mr. Prasert Marittanaporn? Director 4/4
Director 4/4
Mr. Thanawat Trivisvavet?
Executive Director 4/4
Mr. Peerawat Pumthong Director 4/4
Director 4/4
Mr. Van Hoang Dau
Executive Director 4/4
Mr. Milton William Shlapak Director 4/4
Mr. Bounleua SINXAYVOLAVONG | Director 2/4
Mr. Bounsalong SOUTHIDARA Director 3/4
Mr. Somnuk Jindasup Director 4/4
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Number of the Number of the
Name Position Board of Directors’ | Executive Board’s
Meetings in 2016" | Meetings in 2016"

Executive Director 4/4
Director 3/3

Mr. Vorapote - -
Executive Director 3/3

U.Choepaiboonvong
Managing Director

Director 1/1

Mr. Alvin Gee?*® Executive Director 11

Managing Director

Remarks: ! Total Number of Meetings/Attendances

2 Directors representing the Company in NN2PC in proportion to the Company’s shareholding in NN2PC at
42 percent (indirect shareholding through SEAN in NN2PC).

3 Board of Directors’ Meeting No.1/2016 on February 4, 2016 approved to appoint Mr. Vorapote
U.Choepaiboonvong to replace Mr. Alvin Gee, who resigned from directorship effective March 1, 2016.

7.1.2 Authorized Signatory Directors of NN2PC

NN2PC is a company incorporated in Lao PDR. NN2PC’s criteria for authorized
signatory directors are as follows:

1. Two of the following four directors, namely, Mr. Plew Trivisvavet, Mr. Narong
Sangsuriya, Mr. Thanawat Trivisvavet, Mr. Vorapote U.Choepaiboonvong,
jointly sign and affix NN2PC’s seal; or

2. Either Mr. Plew Trivisvavet or Mr. Narong Sangsuriya or Mr. Thanawat
Trivisvavet or Mr. Vorapote U.Choepaiboonvong, and another director, totaling
two directors, jointly sign and affix NN2PC’s seal.

7.1.3 Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

As the representatives of the shareholders and the Company, the Board of Directors
has the duty to oversee the Company and is responsible for ensuring that all activities of the
Company be in accordance with the resolutions of the meetings of the shareholders and the
Board of Directors, the Articles of Association and relevant laws and regulations with
honesty and duty of care for the Company’s interests.

Duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are as follows:
1. To set goals, directions, policies and business operation plans as well as budget of

the Company, efficiently and effectively conduct the monitoring and supervision
of the management and administration by the Company’s management to ensure
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10.

11.

compliance with the specified policies, plans and budget as well as monitoring
and supervising the Company, to ensure compliance with applicable laws or
regulation relating to the Company’s business;

To consider, review, examine and approve the business expansion plan, large-
scale investment projects, including any joint investment with other operators as
proposed by the Management;

To arrange for a reliable system for accounting, financial reporting and auditing,
as well as to maintain a document filing system which is capable of verification
of accuracy, together with efficient and effective internal control, internal audit
and risk management;

To prepare the financial statements at the end of the Company’s accounting
period to correctly present the financial position which must be realistic, complete
and correct in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards to the
general meeting for adoption within four months after the end of the fiscal year;

To consider and propose to appoint external auditors and fixing remuneration of
such auditors in the meeting of the shareholders for their approval,

To consider and approve the replacement of Director, or pass the resolution to the
general meeting of shareholders to approve the appointment of Director, as well
as to determine Director’s remunerations;

To consider and have the power to appoint Chairman of the Board of Directors,
an Executive Committee and Managing Director and to determine the scope of
power and duties as well as remuneration of the Executive Committee and
Managing Director;

To convene the annual ordinary general meeting of shareholders at least once a
year, and the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders whenever it deems
appropriate or when required by law;

To convene the Board of Directors’ meetings at least once every three months;

To consider and approve interim dividend payment which is justified by the
profits of the Company;

To consider the following matters with the affirmative vote of at least seventy-
five percent (75%) of the total number of directors attending the meeting in
person or by proxy and entitled to vote which must include an affirmative vote
form with at least one of the directors nominated by the majority shareholders of
SouthEast Asia Energy Limited, unless none of such shareholders is entitled to
vote due to a conflict of interest;
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1)

)

©)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

©9)

(10)

(11)

any amendment of the Company’s objectives, the Articles of Association or
change of the Company name;

any amendment or termination of the agreements relating to the
development of the Nam Ngum 2 hydroelectric power project;

investment in any new projects, acquiring assets or incurring any liability or
creating any indebtedness in excess of a sum of Thai Baht 200,000,000 or
its equivalent but not exceeding Thai Baht 400,000,000 or its equivalent in
an aggregate;

establishing or closing down a Company’s subsidiary, whether wholly or
partially owned by the Company;

any merger, consolidation or other business combination of the Company;

dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Company, unless provided for
by law, or filing of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy on behalf of the
Company;,

approving the Company’s annual budget and any amendment thereof;
creation of security over any asset of the Company;

initiation or settlement of any claim, litigation, arbitration or other judicial
or administrative proceedings where the amount at issue exceeds the
equivalent of Thai Baht 200,000,000;

approving the increased costs of a project, which exceeds the original cost
budgeted for such project; and

approving the appointment or dismissal of the Managing Director and
his/her remuneration.

The above matters (1), (5) and (6) also require special resolution of the general
meeting of shareholders.

7.1.4 Remuneration of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall receive only the monetary remuneration from the Office
Director, which is approved by the general meeting of shareholders.
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7.2 Management Structure

7.2.1 The NN2PC’s Management Structure

NN2PC’s management structure is as follows:

Name Position
Mr. Vorapote U.Choepaiboonvong - Managing Director
- Deputy Managing Director: Administration and Finance
Department
Mr. Dhotsaporn Thipvoratham - Deputy Managing Director; Operation and Maintenance
Department

Scope of powers, duties and responsibilities of the Managing Director:

1.

To supervise and ensure proper operations in compliance with the Company’s
work rules, and to give final decision on any issues in question, and to seek the
Board of Directors’ approval for amendment of the work rules;

To have power to issue orders, set out criteria, procedures and work practices as
appropriate;

To authorize other staff as substitute to perform works on his/her behalf, provided
that the Managing Director shall remain responsible for all actions taken by such
substitute;

To jointly set out policies, strategies and goals with the Board of Directors for
compliance and management to ensure that the operational results achieve such
goals;

To manage and administer works in all respects in accordance with the vision,
missions, policies and strategies;

To take care of personnel in various divisions to ensure they can efficiently and
effectively perform in line with plans, strategies and goals of each division, and to
regularly facilitate personnel development;

To develop the organization to ensure its satisfactory operational results and
performance, and to regularly and continuously improve its operations to ensure
the organization’s sustainable growth;

To follow up, inspect, supervise and report the Company’s overall operational
results to the Board of Directors quarterly;

To follow up, inspect, and supervise the operational results of the Company to
ensure the good operational results in accordance with goals and report on such
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results to the Board of Directors quarterly as well as seeking opportunities to
improve performance;

10. To conduct studies on investment opportunities in new projects taking into
account technical and financial feasibility in support of decision-making;

11. To supervise and monitor the business operations and/or day-to-day
administration of the Company;

12. To proceed with or manage works in compliance with policies, action plans and
budget as approved by the Board of Directors and/or the Executive Committee;

13. To determine policies, business plans, including business strategies, and annual
budget of the Company for submission to the Executive Committee and seek
approval thereof from the Board of Directors.

7.2.2 Personnel Management of the Company

The Management of the Company recognizes the importance of people development.

It is also aware that the sustainable development and growth of the Company are driven by
the competency, knowledge, capabilities and experiences of its personnel. Concurrently with
the development of people, the development of ethics and sense of accountability towards the
employee’s own duties, colleagues and society is also emphasized. The Company sets out the
personnel development policy in various key aspects as follows:

1) Development of Competency

The Company encourages its staff to attend valuable training courses from
external experts both locally and overseas, which will enhance staff’s knowledge and
skills in their work. For local training courses, the human resource departments will
select and propose training courses to the Company’s executives and welcome staff to
propose any interesting training courses to the Company for consideration and
support. The Company also allocates annual budget for staff’s training courses
according to their work positions. For overseas training courses, the respective
departments can propose overseas courses as appropriate and necessary for their staff.

The Company considers attendances to the trainings for development of staff
competency as one of the key performance indicators for each staff’s annual
performance evaluation. The Company is certain that it will be able to encourage
staff to continuously participate in training and develop their capabilities and
competency required to improve their work performance.

(2)  Career Advancement Opportunity

The Company employs a performance evaluation system based on Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs), which is used for staff performance evaluation of the
Company with concrete results, including evaluation of staff’s ability and work
behavior. Such system is instrumental to the development of staff competency.
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Moreover, the Company is a subsidiary of CK Power Public Company Limited
(“CKP”), a listed company with multiple power plants in operation. The Company’s
employees are encouraged to seek opportunities to advance their knowledge and
capability through training courses and knowledge-sharing sessions organized within
the CKP group as another channel to enhance their capability, confidence and career
development.

3) Succession Planning

The Company realizes the significance of continued operations for sustainable
growth of the Company and for development of competent personnel to promptly
succeed any resigned or retired staff. The Company has a policy to promote quality
personnel within the organization for appointment as successor before external
recruitment. The Company uses the performance evaluation mechanism based on
KPIs to consider staff’s abilities and work behavior, as one of the factors for selection
and promotion of personnel to executive positions, which will be incorporated in the
succession plan.

4) Work Safety

The Company develops its management system in accordance with the quality
management system standard (ISO) so that its power plant meets international
standards, and maintain a safe working environment as well as staff safety. The Nam
Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project has received the quality management system
certifications, the I1ISO 9001:2008 standard certification, from AJA Registrars Ltd.
The certificate has been granted to the operation and maintenance of the Nam Ngum 2
Hydroelectric Power Project under the scope of Electricity Generating and Distribute
by Hydro Power Plant. The Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project is regarded as
the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand’s first overseas project that received
the 1SO 9001:2008 certification.

(5) Anti-corruption

The Company gives priority to anti-corruption in every step of its operating
procedures by setting out its anti-corruption policy in the Corporate Governance
Policy and the Control Policy and Governance Mechanisms, which consistent with the
anti-corruption policy governing CK Power Public Company Limited, the listed
company in the Stock Exchange of Thailand, who is a major shareholder of SouthEast
Asia Energy Limited, which holds 75 percent of the Company. The example of the
policy guidelines are guidelines for handling inside information and insider trading
control, policy on execution of transactions with major shareholders, directors,
executives and their connected persons, together with guidelines for consideration of
execution of connected transactions, including requirements relating to business ethics
and code of ethics, and a whistleblower guide when any corruption is found.

(6) Staff Benefits

The Company provides both permanent staff and employees with benefits as
required by law and additional benefits as appropriate, monitors to ensure effective
and fair consideration of criteria on staff benefits, and reviews to update staff benefits
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NAM NGUM 2 POWER

according to changes in economic and social conditions as appropriate. The
Company has no material labor dispute over the past years.
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8 FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables set forth our selected financial information. The selected
financial information as of, and for the years ended, December 31, 2016 and 2015 set forth
below has been derived from our audited financial statements as of, and for the years ended,
December 31, 2016 and 2015 and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. Our
financial statements as of, and for the years ended, December 31, 2016 and 2015 have been
audited by EY Office Limited., Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants, as stated in
their reports included in this prospectus.

The selected financial information set forth below should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements and related notes and historical financial information included
elsewhere in this prospectus. Our audited financial statements as of, and for the years ended,
December 31, 2016 and 2015 have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

Profit or Loss:

Operating income

Revenue from sales of electricity
Gain on exchange

Other income

Total operating income

Operating expenses

Cost of sales of electricity
Administrative expenses
Loss on exchange

Total operating expenses

Profit before finance costs
Finance costs

Profit before income tax expense
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Cash flow hedges

Reclassification during the year to profit or loss
Unrealized gain (loss) from cash flow hedges
Add: Income tax effect

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

(Unit: Baht)
For the Year ended December 31
2016 2015
3,814,924,797 3,883,153,489
- 41,975,027
18,216,353 19,422,165
3,833,141,150 3,944 550,681

(1,659,871,381) (1,790,516,136)
(642,831,930) (245,257,861)
(45,373,571) -
(2,348,076,882) (2,035,773,997)
1,485,064,268 1,908,776,684
(853,963,246) (894,960,881)
631,101,022 1,013,815,803
(13,456,360) -
617,644,662 1,013,815,803
48,811,700 42,223,860
25,125,356 (457,081,740)
23,052,325 -
96,989,451 (414,857,880)
714,634,113 598,957,923
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Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Non-current assets

Plant and equipment, net

Project costs during construction phase
Advance for project costs
Long-term restricted bank deposits
Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets
Current assets

Spare parts and supplies

Trade and other receivables

Other current assets

Cash at bank and on hand
Short-term restricted bank deposits
Total current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Issued capital

Retained earnings
Statutory reserve

Cash flow hedge reserve
Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans from financial institutions, net
of current portion

Provision for long-term employee benefits
Other long-term liabilities- related party
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Current portion of long-term loans from
financial institutions

Retention payable

Income tax payable

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

(Unit: Baht)
For the Year ended December 31
2016 2015
23,293,851,589 24,365,963,064
1,038,312,624 376,703,422
100,268,889 -
734,944 551 1,220,677,307
23,052,325 -
3,000,450 13,230,857
25,193,430,428 25,976,574,650
37,791,878 36,879,676
487,365,955 929,871,233
40,075,191 25,894,161
1,165,970,217 1,378,458,524
213,556,232 528,774,885
1,944,759,473 2,899,878,479

27,138,189,901

28,876,453,129

8,809,000,000 8,809,000,000
2,002,252,455 3,939,217,793
88,090,000 88,090,000
(598,599,399) (695,588,850)
10,300,743,056 12,140,718,943
15,754,750,273 14,701,897,954
3,205,367 2,486,267
169,687,699 157,687,658
15,927,643,339 14,862,071,879
309,942,533 365,364,521
592,692,073 1,507,007,880
718,455 7,200
4,798,292 -
1,652,153 1,282,706
909,803,506 1,873,662,307
16,837,446,845 16,735,734,186

27,138,189,901

28,876,453,129
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Statement of Cash Flows
(Unit: Baht)

For the Year ended December 31

2016 2015
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit from operating activities 631,101,022 1,013,815,803
Adjustment to reconcile profit to net cash flows:
Depreciation 1,081,331,505 1,086,541,746
Amortization of interest rate reduction fee 7,750,138 8,883,963
Unrealized (gain) loss on exchange 19,909,961 (25,656,490)
Write-off project costs during construction 377,609,936 i
phrase
Loss on equipment write-off 10,865 12,544
Provision for long-term employee benefits 719,100 765,347
Interest expenses 837,008,804 879,303,774
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,955,441,331 2,963,666,687
(Increase)/decrease in:
Trade and other receivables 442,402,802 55,964,851
Spare parts and supplies (912,202) (2,898,461)
Other current assets 11,145,818 752,509
Other non-current assets 10,230,407 (10,161,850)
Increase/(decrease) in:
Trade and other payables (211,590,916) 166,072,567
Retention payable 711,255 (2,266,289)
Other current liabilities 369,447 (92,270)
Cash flows from operating activities 3,207,797,942 3,171,037,744
Cash paid for income tax expense (8,658,068) -

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease (increase) in short-term restricted bank

3,199,139,874

3,171,037,744

q . 313,924,905 (12.828.015)
eposits

Decrease (increase) in long-term restricted bank 466.396.871 (2,661,083)
deposits e e
Increase in project costs during construction (905,293, 755) (12,452,364)
phase B B
Increase in advance for project costs (100,268,889) -
Increase in plant and equipment (9,885,311) (11,761,762)
Net_ c_a_sh flow from (used in) investing (235,126,179) (39,703,224)
activities T o
Cash flows from financing activities

Increase (decrease) in long-term loans from

financial institutions 541,824,930 (1,700,180,500)
Cash paid for loan arrangement fee (383,579,254) -
Cash paid for interest expenses (786,557,949) (868,657,270)
Dividend payment (2,554,610,000) (352,360,000)

Net cash flows used in financing activities

(3,176,922,273)

(2,921,197,770)
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For the Year ended December 31
2016 2015
Net_lncrease (decrease) in cash and cash (212,908,578) 210,136,750
equivalents
Effect of_exchange rate changes on cash and 420271 2,333,003
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,378,458,524 1,165,988,771
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,165,970,217 1,378,458,524
Supplemental cash flow information
Non-cash transactions
Increase in project costs during construction 133,925,394

phase from project payables
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9 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ON FINANCIAL DATA

9.1 Business Overview

Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited was incorporated under the laws of Lao PDR.
The major shareholder of the Company is SouthEast Asia Energy Limited, which is
incorporated in Thailand and holds 75 percent of the Company. The Company principally
engages in generating and selling of electricity from its Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power
Project, located in Lao PDR. As specified in the PPA, the Initial Operation Date (“I0OD”) and
Commercial Operation Date (“COD”) of Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project were 26
March 2011 and 1 January 2013, respectively.

9.2 Analysis of Operating Results for the Year-Ended December 31, 2016

Unit: Million Baht

Period Changes
Description 2016 2015 (I Sé:crﬁs;ge/) %

Revenue from Sales of Electricity 3,814.9 3,883.2 (68.3) (1.8)
Other Incomes 18.2 19.4 (1.2) (6.2)
Gain on Exchange - 42.0 (42.0) (100.0)
Total Revenues 3,833.1 3,944.6 (111.5) (2.8)
Cost of Sales of Electricity

Operation and Maintenance Cost 4155 536.1 (120.6) (22.5)

Depreciation 1,074.7 1,074.9 (0.2) (0.0)

Royalty Fee 130.3 132.6 (2.3) .7

Others 39.4 46.9 (7.5) (16.0)
Total Cost of Sales of Electricity 1,659.9 1,790.5 (130.6) (7.3)
Gross Profits 2,173.2 2,154.1 19.1 0.9
Administrative Expenses 642.8 245.3 397.5 162.0
Loss on Exchange 45.4 - 45.4 -
Earnings Before Interest and Tax 1,485.1 1,908.8 (423.7) (22.2)
Less: Financial Cost 854.0 895.0 (41.0) (4.6)
Less: Income Tax Expenses 135 - 135 -
Net Profit 617.6 1,013.8 (396.2) (39.1)

In 2016, the Company reported Total Revenues of Baht 3,833.1 million, a decrease of
Baht 111.5 million or 2.8% compared to the previous year and Net Profit of Baht 617.6
million, a decrease of Baht 396.2 million or 39.1% compared to the previous year, the details
of which are as follows:
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a) Revenue from Sales of Electricity

Electricity Sales Chanaes Revenue Chanaes
o Volume (GWh) g (Million Baht) g
Description I ] I ]
2016 2015 nerease % 2016 2015 nerease %
(Decrease) (Decrease)
Electricity Sales 2,108.9 2,198.9 (90.0) | (4.0) 3,814.9 3,883.2 (68.3) | (1.8)

Remark:  Electricity Sales VVolume comprises Primary Energy (PE)Y, Secondary Energy (SE)®, Test Energy (TE)® and
Primary Energy Account (PE Account)®

In 2016, the Company reported Electricity Sales Volume of 2,108.9 GWh,
decreased by 90.0 GWh or 4.1% compared to the previous year. The year-on-year
decline in sales volume in 2016 was mainly due to the Company’s recognition of the
remaining balance of the Primary Energy Account (PE Account)® of 94.1 GWh,
which the Company accumulated prior to 2015, as sales of electricity during 2015 on
top of the Company’s declaration of plant’s availability of 2,104.8 GWh during 2015,
while no PE Account was used during 2016. As a result of the decline in volume of
electricity sold, the Company reported Revenue from Sales of Electricity of Baht
3,814.9 million, decreased by Baht 68.3 million or 1.8% compared to the previous
year.
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Remark:

(1) Primary Energy or PE is the electricity volume under Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with a defined
Annual Supply Target of 2,218 GWh. The declaration of plant’s availability for PE should not exceed 16
hours per day. Failure by NN2PC to meet the Annual Supply Target in each calendar year will not
constitute an Event of Default pursuant to the PPA.

(2) Primary Energy Account or PE Account is an account used to record the amount of PE generated in each
calendar year, which is in excess of the Annual Supply Target of such year. The balance in PE Account can
be withdrawn and recognized as revenue from sales of PE in any year when the amount of PE declared in
such year does not meet the Annual Supply Target. The PE account can be utilized until the balance of PE

Part 3 Description of the Issuer Page 39




NAM NGUM 2 POWER

Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited

Account equals to zero or until the Annual Supply Target is fulfilled, whichever comes first. As of
December 31, 2016, there was no PE Account balance remaining.

(3) Secondary Energy or SE is the electrical energy declared during August, September and October of each
year. The PPA defined the Annual Supply Target for SE at 92 GWh. Failure by NN2PC to meet the Annual
Supply Target in each calendar year will not constitute an Event of Default pursuant to the PPA.

(4) Secondary Energy Account or SE Account is an account used to record the amount of SE generated in each
calendar year, which is in excess of the Annual Supply Target of such year. The balance in SE Account can
be withdrawn and recognized as revenue from sales of SE in any year when the amount of SE declared in
such year does not meet the Annual Supply Target. The SE account can be utilized until the balance of SE
Account equals to zero or until the Annual Supply Target is fulfilled, whichever comes first. As of
December 31, 2016, there was no SE Account balance remaining.

(5) Excess Energy or EE is the excess electricity generated in any month of a year when the actual volume of
water inflow exceeds the monthly declaration that the Company made to EGAT a month in advance.

(6) Test Energy or TE is the electricity energy generated and sold during the testing period.

b) Cost of Sales of Electricity

Total Cost of Sales of Electricity decreased by Baht 130.6 million or 7.3%
compared to the previous year mainly due to the decline in Operation and
Maintenance Costs as a result of the Company’s effective operation cost management
and the decline in repair and maintenance expenses compared to 2015.

c) Administrative Expenses

Administrative Expenses increased by Baht 397.5 million or 162.0% in 2016
compared to 2015 primarily due to the one-time write-off of Baht 377.6 million from
the termination of Nam Bak Hydroelectric Power Project development in the fourth
quarter of 2016.

d) Foreign Exchange Gain / (Loss)

In 2016, the Company reported a foreign exchange loss of Baht 45.4 million,
mainly coming from the recognition of loss on foreign exchange on the repayment
amount of the Company’s US Dollar loan under Hedge Accounting method amidst
the weakened Thai Baht against US Dollar during the period from the start of the
hedge accounting to the end of 2016.

e) Finance Cost

Finance Cost of the Company in 2016 was Baht 854.0 million, decreased by
Baht 41.0 million or 4.6% compared to the previous year primarily as a result of the
improvement in interest rate on the Company’s long-term loan following its loan
refinancing in September 2016.

f) Income Tax Expenses

The Company has been granted exemption from the corporate income tax for a
period of 5 years from its Initial Operation Date. With the exemption period ended on
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26 March 2016, the Company reported an income tax expenses of Baht 13.5 million
in 2016.
9.3 Analysis of Financial Position

a) Assets

As at December 31, 2016, Total Assets of the Company was Baht 27,138.2
million, decreased by Baht 1,738.3 million or 6.0% from the end of 2015. Key reasons
are highlighted below:

e Trade and Other Receivables decreased by Baht 442.5 million or 47.6% mainly
from the decline in electricity sales receivable.

e Plant and Equipment decreased by Baht 1,072.1 million or 4.4% mainly from
depreciation cost.

b) Liabilities

As at December 31, 2016, Total Liabilities of the Company was Baht 16,837.4
million, increased slightly by Baht 101.7 million or 0.6% from the end of 2015 mainly
driven by the increase in Long-term Loans from Financial Institutions from the on-
going Nabong Substation Upgrade project.

c) Shareholders’ Equity
As at December 31, 2016, Total Shareholders’ Equity of the Company was

Baht 10,300.7 million, decreased by Baht 1,840.0 million or 0.2% from the end of
2015 mainly due to the dividend paid for the 2015 financial results.
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9.4 Significant Financial Ratio

Profitability Ratio Period Changes
2016 2015
Gross Profit Margin (%) 56.7 54.6 2.1
EBITDA Margin (%)™ 76.8 75.9 0.9
Net Profit Margin (%)™ 26.0 25.7 0.3
Leverage Ratio As a;(?l%c 3L, As a;(l)Dlesc 3L, Changes
Debt to Equity Ratio (Times) 1.6 1.4 0.2
Debt to Equity .R.atio (Times) in accordance with 15 19 03
Terms & Conditions®
Interest Coverage Ratio (time) 34 3.3 0.1
Liquidity Ratio As a;O[i%C & As a;(izc o Changes
Current Ratio (Times) 2.1 1.5 0.6
Quick Ratio (Time) 1.8 1.2 0.6
Average Collection Period (Day) 66.9 88.8 -21.9

Remark @ Excluded one-time write-off of Nam Bak Hydroelectric Power Project development cost
@ The Terms and Conditions of the debentures provide that the Issuer shall ensure that the ratio of Debt to
Equity, in accordance with its Financial Statement, shall not exceed 3:1 as at the last day of the fourth quarter
of each year, whereby "Debt" and "Equity" are defined in the Condition.

In 2016, excluding the one-time write-off of Nam Bak Hydroelectric Power Project
development cost, the Company reported Gross Profit Margin of 56.7%, a 2.1% improvement
from last year, EBITDA Margin of 76.8%, a 0.9% improvement from last year and Net Profit
Margin of 26.0%, a 0.3% improvement from last year.

As at December 31, 2016, Debt to Equity ratio was at 1.6 times, an increase of 0.2
times from the end of 2015. Net Interest-bearing Debt to Equity Ratio was 1.5 times, an
increase of 0.3 times from the end of 2015. Interest Coverage Ratio was 3.4 times, an
increase of 0.1 times from the end of 2015. Current Ratio was 2.1 times, an increase of 0.6
times from the end of 2015, while Quick Ratio was 1.8 times, an increase of 0.6 times from
the end of 2015. The improvements in Current Ratio and Quick Ratio came primarily from
decline in Current portion of Long-term Loans at the end of 2016, mainly as a result of the
Company’s successful refinancing of long-term loan from financial institutions. Average
Collection Period was 66.9 days, an improvement of 21.9 days from the end of 2015
following the decline in Accounts Receivable balance in 2016 compared with 2015.

Overall, the Company continued to maintain strong debt service capability and
healthy level of financial liquidity.
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10. GENERAL INFORMATION AND OTHER RELATED INFORMATION

The Issuer

The Issuer:s Representative in
Thailand:

Financial Institutions in Thailand:

Lead Underwriters:

Registrar of Debentures:

Debentureholders’ Representative:

Legal Advisors:

Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited
215 Lanexaog Avenue, Ban Xieng Yuen,

Chanthabouly District, Vientiane, Lao PDR

The Legists Group

Offices of N&K Ltd.

990 Abdulrahim Place, 9th Floor, Room No. 901-1,
Rama IV Road, Silom, Bangrak, Bangkok 10500

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
333 Silom Road,
Bangkok 10500

Krung Thai Bank Public Company Limited
35 Sukhumvit Road,

Klong Toey Nua, Wattana,

Bangkok 10110 Thailand

Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited
9 Ratchadapisek Rd., Jatujak,
Bangkok 10900 Thailand

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
333 Silom Road,
Bangkok 10500

Krung Thai Bank Public Company Limited
35 Sukhumvit Road,

Klong Toey Nua, Wattana,

Bangkok 10110 Thailand

Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited
9 Ratchadapisek Rd., Jatujak,
Bangkok 10900 Thailand

Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
93 Ratchadaphisek Road,

Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400, Thailand

Tel: (66 2) 009 9000

Fax: (66 2) 009 9991

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
333 Silom Road, Bangkok 10500

Legal Advisors in connection with the Bond transaction:

Part 3 Description of the Issuer Page 43



Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited

NAM NGUM 2 POWER

As to laws of Thailand
Baker & McKenzie Ltd.
25th Floor, Abdulrahim Place
990 Rama IV Road

Bangkok 10500, Thailand

As to laws of Lao PDR

South East Asia Law Office Co., Ltd
179 Phayasi Road, Sithan Neau,
Sikhottabong District,

Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.

Auditor: EY Office Limited
33" Floor, Lake Radjada Office Complex
193/136-137 Rahadapisek Road
Klongtoey, Bangkok 10100

Financial Advisor: None

Language The documents of the Issuer including but not limited to
Registration ~ Statement, Prospectus and Financial
Statements will be in English.
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PART 4
INFORMATION ON THE OFFERING OF THE DEBENTURES

Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited (the "Issuer™), a limited company incorporated under the law of the
Lao People's Democratic Republic, having the registered office at 218 Lanexang Avenue, Vientiane, Lao PDR
Tel. +856 21 251 718, wishes to offer for sale of the Debentures having material details as set forth below.

The Issuer has complied with the laws and regulations of the Lao PDR in connection with the issuance and
offering of the Debentures applicable to it.

1. General Description of the Debentures and the Offering

The Debentures are subject to the terms and conditions governing the rights and duties of the Issuer
and the Debentureholders in respect of the Debentures (the "Terms and Conditions™) which are
attached as Appendix 1 hereto. Below are the terms of the Debenture offering, the material terms
under the Terms and Conditions and the material terms of the Debentureholders' Representative
Appointment Agreement. Unless otherwise defined in this Section, capitalized terms used herein have
the same meanings given to them in the Terms and Conditions.

11 Terms of Debenture Offering
Issuer : Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited

Debenture Name L "The Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company
Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 1 Due 2020" ("Tranche 1
Debentures™)

2. "The Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company
Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 2 Due 2024" ("Tranche 2
Debentures™)

3. "The Amortized Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power
Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 3 Due 2027"
("Tranche 3 Debentures")

Debenture Type L Tranche 1 Debentures and Tranche 2 Debentures: Name-
Registered, Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures
with a Debentureholders' Representative

2. Tranche 3 Debentures: Name-Registered, Unsubordinated,
Unsecured and Amortized Debentures with a
Debentureholders' Representative

Joint Lead Arrangers . Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
Krungthai Bank Public Company Limited

The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited

Debentureholders' . Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
Representative

Registrar . Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited
Paying Agent : Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

The Issuer's Contact : The Legists Group

Person in Thailand Offices of N&K Ltd.
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Legal Advisor (as to Thai
law)

Legal Advisor (as to Lao
PDR law)

Number of Debentures
offered

Value of Debentures
offered

Offering Price
Currency

Nominal Amount
Offering Price
Subscription Period

Tenor

Issue Date

Maturity Date

Baker & McKenzie Ltd.

South East Asia Law Office Co., Ltd.

The total aggregate number of the Debentures offered is

6,000,000 units, divided into:

1. Tranche 1 Debentures: totaling 1,000,000 units
2. Tranche 2 Debentures: totaling 1,400,000 units
3. Tranche 3 Debentures: totaling 3,600,000 units

The total aggregate value of the Debentures offered is Baht

6,000,000,000, divided into:

1. Tranche 1 Debentures: totaling Baht 1,000,000,000
2. Tranche 2 Debentures: totaling Baht 1,400,000,000
3. Tranche 3 Debentures: totaling Baht 3,600,000,000
Baht 1,000 per unit

The Debentures are denominated in Baht.

Baht 1,000 per unit

Baht 1,000 per unit

3 —4 October 2017

1. Tranche 1 Debentures : 3 years from the Issue Date
2. Tranche 2 Debentures : 7 years from the Issue Date
3. Tranche 3 Debentures : 10 years from the Issue Date
5 October 2017

1. Tranche 1 Debentures: 5 October 2020
2. Tranche 2 Debentures: 5 October 2024
3. Tranche 3 Debentures: 5 October 2027
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Redemption Dates

Interest Rate

Default Interest Rate

Credit Rating

Early Redemption

Governing Law

Registration with the
ThaiBMA

In respect of Tranche 3 Debentures, the Issuer shall redeem each
unit of Tranche 3 Debentures in instalments on the Redemption
Dates as follows.

Installment | Redemption | Outstanding Paid Total
Date Principal | Principal | Payment
Amount Per | Amount | Per Unit
Unit (Baht) | Per Unit | (Baht)
(Baht)
1 5 October 1,000.00 333.33 | 333.33
2025
2 5 October 667.67 333.33 | 666.66
2026
3 5 October 333.34 333.34 | 1,000.00
2027
1. Tranche 1 Debentures: 2.59 percent per annum
2. Tranche 2 Debentures: 3.48 percent per annum
3. Tranche 3 Debentures: 3.69 percent per annum

Interest Rate plus 2 per cent per annum

The Debentures were assigned credit ratings of 'A-' (with Stable
outlook) according to reports published by TRIS Rating Co., Ltd.
on 31 August 2017.

The Issuer will arrange for the credit rating agency as approved
by the Offering of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
"Office of the SEC") to provide a credit rating for the
Debentures throughout the tenors of the Debentures.

A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the
Debentures and may be subject to revision, suspension or
withdrawal at any time by the credit rating agency.

The Debentures may be redeemable at the option of the Issuer
prior to maturity only for tax reasons as set out in the Terms and
Conditions. Please see Appendix 1, "Terms and Conditions of the
Debentures — Condition 10.4: Redemption for Taxation
Reasons."

The Debentures are governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of Thailand.

The Debentures will be traded over-the-counter and will not be
listed for trading on any exchange. On or before the Issue Date,
the Issuer intends to register the Debentures with Thai Debenture
Market Association ("ThaiBMA"™), an authorized source of Thai
debenture market data. ThaiBMA, as "Debenture Pricing
Agency," also provides model yield and pricing data for mark-to-
market purpose of investors.

Part 4 Information on the Offering of the Debenture Page 3



Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited

NAN NGUM 2 POWER

1.2 Procedure, Date and Place for Payments under the Debentures
(a) Interest Payment

Interest Calculation : The amount of interest payable in respect of any Debenture for
any Interest Period shall be calculated by multiplying (a) the
product of the principal amount outstanding on each unit of the
Debentures as at the first day of such Interest Period (after
deducting any repayment of principal amount of that unit of
Debenture made on that day, in the case of Tranche 3
Debentures) and the relevant Interest Rate applicable thereto by
(b) the number of days in respect of that Interest Period and
dividing by 365 (three hundred and sixty-five), and rounding the
resulting figure to 6 (six) decimal places (in case the seventh
decimal place is equivalent to or more than 5 (five), the 6th
(sixth) decimal place shall be rounded up one decimal).

If respect of the final Interest Payment Date, the calculation of
interest shall be subject to Condition 9.2 of the Terms and

Conditions.

Interest Payment . Interest on the Debentures at the interest rate stated under
Condition 2 shall be payable in arrears to each Debentureholder
on the Interest Payment Date.

Interest Payment Date :Interest on the Debentures shall be payable semi-annually on
every 5 April and 5 October of each year throughout the term of
the Debentures, with the first Interest Payment Date being 5 April
2018 and the last Interest Payment Date being the Maturity Date.

Interest Period L With respect to the first Interest Period, the period
commencing on, and including, the Issue Date and
ending on, but excluding, the first Interest Payment Date.

2. With respect to any subsequent Interest Period, the
period commencing on, and including, the Interest
Payment Date of the preceding Interest Period and
ending on, but excluding, the next Interest Payment Date
of such Interest Period or the Maturity Date, as the case
may be.

Methods of Interest . Interest Payment: Interest due on any Interest Payment Date will
Payment be payable by the Issuer through the Registrar to the
Debentureholders whose names appear in the Register Book on
the relevant Record Date or, with respect to persons whose
Debentures are deposited with TSD, the persons whose names
appear on the list of the owners of the Debentures maintained by
TSD. Payments of interest on each Debenture will be made to the
Debentureholder by means of: (i) a Baht crossed cheque marked
"A/C Payee Only" drawn on a bank in Thailand in the name of
the Debentureholder mailed to the address of the relevant
Debentureholder appearing on the Register Book; or (ii)
transferring funds into the bank account of the relevant
Debentureholder opened with a commercial bank in Thailand as
informed in the subscription form or in writing by the
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Debentureholders to the Registrar at least 15 (fifteen) Business
Days prior to the relevant payment date, or such other method as
may be agreed from time to time by the Issuer, the
Debentureholders’ Representative and the Registrar; provided
that payment of interest with respect to the final Interest Payment
Date may only be made upon the surrender of the Debenture
Certificates (except for the Debentures deposited with TSD) at
the principal office of the Registrar.

For the final interest payment, a Debentureholder whose
Debentures are not deposited with TSD is not required to
surrender its Debenture Certificate to the Registrar, except where
there is any doubt or objection relating thereto, the Registrar or
the Issuer may request any Debentureholder for his Debenture
Certificate to be inspected and surrendered.

(b) Redemption and Principal Payment

Redemption L In respect of Tranche 1 Debentures and Tranche 2
Debentures, unless previously redeemed, purchased or
cancelled, the relevant Debentures will be redeemed at
their outstanding principal amount on the Maturity
Date, together with interest accrued thereon up to (but
excluding) the Maturity Date.

2. In respect of Tranche 3 Debentures, unless previously
redeemed, purchased or cancelled, Tranche 3
Debentures shall be partially redeemed on each
Redemption Date by payment of the amount of
principal specified against such Redemption Date.

Methods of principal : Principal Payment: Principal due on the Maturity Date will be

Payment payable by the Issuer through the Registrar to the
Debentureholders whose names appear in the Register Book on
the relevant Record Date or, with respect to persons whose
Debentures are deposited with TSD, the persons whose names
appear on the list of owners of the Debentures maintained by
TSD. Payments of principal on each Debenture will be made to
the Debentureholder by means of: (i) a Baht crossed cheque
marked "A/C Payee Only" drawn on a bank in Thailand in the
name of the Debentureholder mailed to the address of the
relevant Debentureholder appearing on the Register Book; or
(ii) transferring funds into the bank account of the relevant
Debentureholder opened with a commercial bank in Thailand as
informed in the subscription form or in writing by the
Debentureholders to the Registrar at least 15 (fifteen) Business
Days prior to the relevant payment date, or such other method
as may be agreed from time to time by the Issuer, the
Debentureholders' Representative and the Registrar; provided
that such principal payment on the Maturity Date may only be
made upon surrender of the Debenture Certificates (except for
the Debentures deposited with TSD) at the principal office of
the Registrar.

For the Principal payment, a Debentureholder whose
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Debentures are not deposited with TSD is not required to
surrender its Debenture Certificate to the Registrar, except
where there is any doubt or objection relating thereto, the
Registrar or the Issuer may request the Debentureholder for his
Debenture Certificate to be inspected and surrendered.

Early Redemption — : 1. Subject to Condition 10.4(b) of the Terms and
Redemption for Taxation Conditions, the Debentures may be redeemed at the
Reasons option of the Issuer in whole, but not in part, at any

time, on giving not less than 30 (thirty) nor more than
60 (sixty) days' notice to the Debentureholders in
accordance with Condition 19 of the Terms and
Conditions (which notice shall be irrevocable), if:

@ on the occasion of the next payment due under
the Debentures, the Issuer has or will become
obliged to pay additional amounts as provided
or referred to in Condition 11.2 of the Terms
and Conditions as a result of any change in, or
amendment to, the laws or regulations of Lao
PDR, or any political subdivision or any
authority thereof or therein having power to tax,
or any change in the application or official
interpretation of such laws or regulations
(including the cessation of tax exemptions
presently applicable), which change or
amendment becomes effective on or after the
Issue Date; and

@ such obligation cannot be avoided by the Issuer
taking reasonable measures available to it,

provided that no such notice of redemption shall be
given earlier than 90 (ninety) days prior to the earliest
date on which the Issuer would be obliged to pay such
additional amounts were a payment in respect of the
Debentures then due. Prior to the publication of any
notice of redemption pursuant to this Condition, the
Issuer shall deliver to the Debentureholders'
Representative a certificate signed by two duly
authorized officers of the Issuer stating that the Issuer is
entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a
statement of facts showing that the conditions precedent
to the right of the Issuer so to redeem have occurred,
and an opinion of independent legal advisers of
recognized standing to the effect that the Issuer has or
will become obliged to pay such additional amounts as a
result of such change or amendment.

Debentures redeemed pursuant to Condition 10.4(a) of
the Terms and Conditions will be redeemed at their
outstanding principal amount together with interest
accrued to (but excluding) the date of redemption.

2. Prior to the lapse of 3 (three) years from the Issue Date,
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the Issuer will not be entitled to exercise the redemption
option as specified in Condition 10.4(a) of the Terms
and Conditions in accordance with the MOF
Notification unless the MOF Notification is amended to
permit such early redemption or a specific waiver or
approval to redeem the Debentures early is granted to
the Issuer by the Ministry of Finance of Thailand.

1.3 Material Terms under the Terms and Conditions

Covenants

The Issuer undertakes to comply with all the covenants set out
in Condition 7 of the Terms and Conditions for so long as any
debt under the Debentures remains outstanding:

1. The Issuer shall, at all times throughout the term of the
Debentures or until all Debentures are redeemed, (i) use
its best effort to carry on and conduct its business in an
appropriate and efficient manner, (ii) comply with
securities and exchange law and other related law, as
well as regulations, rules and order issued under the
law, and (iii) comply with all terms and conditions
stated under the Terms and Conditions.

2. The Issuer shall ensure that the ratio of "Debt to Equity
Ratio", in accordance with its Financial Statement, shall
not exceed 3:1 (three to one) as at the last day of the
fourth quarter of each year.

For the purpose of calculation of the Debt to Equity
Ratio:

"Debt" means liabilities that bear interest or are subject
to discount, including guarantee and aval liabilities that
bear interest or are subject to discount, less cash and
cash equivalents, short-term restricted bank deposits,
current investments and long-term restricted bank
deposits. However, "Debt" shall not include deposits
received from customers as set out in the relevant
Financial Statement and bank guarantees.

"Equity" means shareholders' equity as set out in the
relevant Financial Statement.

"Financial ~ Statement” means audited financial
statements of the Issuer prepared in accordance with
International Accounting Standard.

3. The Issuer shall arrange for a report setting out the Debt
to Equity Ratio in accordance with Condition 7.2 of the
Terms and Conditions, reviewed by the auditor of the
Issuer, to be delivered to the Debentureholders'
Representative and the Registrar within 15 (fifteen)
days from the date the relevant Financial Statement is
sent to the Tax Department, Ministry of Finance of the
Lao PDR, to be kept and made available for the
Debentureholders' inspection by the Debentureholders'
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Representative and the Registrar.

In the event that a default is made on the payment of
any amount of principal or any interest or any other sum
in respect of any Debentures, the Issuer shall not make
or pay any dividend so long as such default has not been
remedied, unless approval is obtained from the
Debentureholders' Meeting.

The Issuer shall not sell or dispose of any property or
asset whether in whole or in part which is material to
the business operation of the Issuer, except for such
sales or disposals that do not have material adverse
effect on the ability of the Issuer to repay its debt under
the Debentures to the Debentureholders or are in the
normal course of business of the Issuer.

The Issuer shall apply for the registration of the
Debentures with ThaiBMA and shall maintain the
Debentures as securities registered with ThaiBMA until
all the Debentures are fully redeemed.

Upon the occurrence of any event of default (as
provided in Condition 13.1 of the Terms and
Conditions) or any event which may constitute an event
of default (i.e. an event which shall constitute an event
of default if the Issuer cannot take a remedial action
within the required period of time) or upon becoming
aware of any litigation or arbitration proceedings
against the Issuer which, if adversely determined, might
have a material adverse effect on the ability of the
Issuer to perform its payment obligations under the
Terms and Conditions, the Issuer shall notify the
Debentureholders' Representative of such event without
delay from the date on which the Issuer has knowledge of
such event, including any actions taken by the Issuer or
proposed to be taken by the Issuer to remedy such event.

At any time upon request of the Debentureholder's
Representative, the Issuer shall promptly supply to the
Debentureholders' Representative a certificate signed by
the Issuer's authorized director(s) certifying that neither
an Event of Default (or if an Event of Default is
continuing, specifying the Event of Default and the
steps, if any, being taken to remedy it) nor any litigation
or arbitration proceedings against the Issuer is
outstanding or pending (apart from any such events
which the Issuer has previously informed the
Debentureholders' Representative (if any)).

If it becomes necessary to replace the Debentureholders'
Representative or the Registrar, the Issuer shall use its
best endeavors to appoint a replacement
Debentureholders' Representative or a replacement
Registrar (as the case may be) as soon as practicable,
but in any case no later than 30 (thirty) days from the
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date on which the Issuer is aware of the necessity for
such replacement.

10. The Issuer shall, in accordance with applicable Thai
laws and regulations, deliver to the SEC and the
Debentureholders’ Representative , and make available
by way of posting on the website www.ckpower.co.th
(or a replacement website to be designated by the
Issuer), copies of English translations of its audited
annual consolidated financial statements within, if
applicable, the same period as that required under
applicable laws or regulations, but in any case, shall be
no later than 180 (one hundred and eighty) days from
the end of the financial year of the Issuer. If, after the
Issue Date, such submission period to the SEC or
method for the submission is changed under the
applicable laws or regulations, the Issuer shall comply
with the new submission period, method for the
submission or requirements according to such amended
applicable laws or regulations, as the case may be.

Event of Default : If any of the following events occurs and is continuing (each, an
"Event of Default"), the Debentureholders' Representative shall
deliver a default notice to the Issuer in compliance with, and
subject to, Condition 13.2 of the Terms and Conditions:

1. a default is made on the payment of any amount of
principal or any interest due in respect of any of the
Debentures when and as the same ought to be paid in
accordance with the Terms and Conditions, however,
such payment default shall not constitute an Event of
Default if it arises from a delay and/or mistake in funds
transfer system beyond the control of the Issuer and the
Issuer has sufficient funds to make payment of such
principal or interest as they fall due, and the Issuer has
made payment of such principal or interest within 3
(three) days from the relevant due date;

2. a default is made on the performance or observance by
the Issuer of any obligation, condition or provision
under the Debentures (other than any obligation for the
payment of any amount due in respect of any of the
Debentures) and (but only in a case where the
Debentureholders' Representative considers such default
to be capable of being remedied) such default shall not
be remedied to the Debentureholders' Representative's
satisfaction within 30 (thirty) days (or such longer
period as the Debentureholders’ Representative may
permit) of first written notification from the
Debentureholders' Representative to the Issuer requiring
the same to be remedied;

3. the Issuer shall cease to carry on the whole or
substantially the whole of its business, which might
have a material adverse effect on the ability of the
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Issuer to perform its payment obligations under the
Terms and Conditions;

4. the shareholders meeting of the Issuer has resolved that
the Issuer shall dispose of the whole or a substantial part
of its business or that the Issuer shall merge or
amalgamate with another entity (except in the ordinary
course of business of the Issuer) which, in accordance
with a resolution of the Debentureholders’ meeting,
might have a material adverse effect on the ability of the
Issuer to perform its payment obligations under the
Terms and Conditions;

5. the Issuer fails to pay any indebtedness, having an
aggregate nominal amount of more than Baht
500,000,000 (five hundred million baht) (or the
equivalent in any other currency or currencies) when it
becomes due and payable (following the giving of such
notice, if any, as is required under the document
governing such indebtedness and as extended by any
applicable grace period) or such indebtedness was
declared to be prematurely due and payable due to a
default by the Issuer, however, such failure to pay
which the Issuer is disputing in good faith and is under
consideration of a court of competent jurisdiction (for
so long as there is no final judgement in relation to the
dispute) shall not constitute an Event of Default;

6. the Issuer is subject to any final judgments of a court of
law or arbitration awards ordering it, in an aggregate
amount, to pay a sum of more than Baht 500,000,000
(five hundred million baht) (or the equivalent in any
other currency or currencies), unless the Issuer is
capable of paying such amount in accordance with such
final judgments or arbitration awards and such payment
does not have a material adverse effect on the ability of
the Issuer to perform its payment obligations under the
Terms and Conditions;

7. there is a change, restraint or cancellation of license,
certificate, letter of consent or any rights and benefits
that the Issuer has received from the relevant
governmental authorities, officials or persons which are
necessary and required to be possessed or used by the
Issuer for the operation of its main business and such
change, restraint, or cancellation might have a material
adverse effect on the ability of the Issuer to perform its
payment obligations under the Terms and Conditions;

8. the Issuer is subject to legal proceedings or order of a
government authority that might have a material
adverse effect on the ability of the Issuer to perform its
payment obligations under the Terms and Conditions, or
there is a change in or revocation of the Issuer's power
to operate its business, or any revenue or asset of the
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10.

Consequences of Events of : 1.
Default

Issuer, whether in whole or in part, has been seized,
compulsorily acquired, expropriated or nationalized,
and such event might have a material adverse effect on
the ability of the Issuer to perform its payment
obligations under the Terms and Conditions;

the Issuer is insolvent or there is any seizure or
attachment of the assets of the Issuer issued under a
bankruptcy proceeding or the Issuer has undertaken any
action that may cause a bankruptcy proceeding to be
initiated against it or institutes proceedings to be
adjudicated a voluntary bankrupt, which might have a
material adverse effect on the ability of the Issuer to
perform its payment obligations under the Terms and
Conditions, or there is an order or resolution, duly
issued or passed in accordance with applicable law for
the winding-up or dissolution of the Issuer; or

any reorganization proceeding is initiated against the
Issuer under any applicable laws or there is any
appointment of a receiver, planner, plan administrator,
trustee, assignee or similar officers with respect to the
Issuer or any revenue or asset of the Issuer (except
where such proceeding is discharged within 30 (thirty)
days from its commencement date).

If any Event of Default occurs and is continuing, and if:

@ the Debentureholders' Representative deems
appropriate; or

(b) the Debentureholders’ Representative has
received a written demand from any one or
more of the Debentureholders together holding
at least 50 (fifty) per cent of the total
outstanding principal amount of the Debentures;
or

© the Debentureholders' Representative has
received a resolution of the Debentureholders'
meeting; or

(d) any of the Events of Default under Conditions
13.1(a), 13.1(i) or 13.1(j) of the Terms and
Conditions has occurred,

the Debentureholders' Representative shall deliver a
default notice to the Issuer informing the Issuer of the
occurrence of such Event of Default, declaring the
Debentures to be immediately due and payable and
demanding payment of all outstanding principal
amounts under the Debentures together with interest
accrued thereon until (but excluding) the date of
repayment. If the Issuer defaults in making a payment
under any Debenture to any Debentureholder, if
otherwise not apparent or clearly proven to the contrary,
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Amendment to the Terms and
Conditions

Governing Law

it shall be presumed that such defaults on payment have
occurred to all the Debentures.

After the Debentureholders’ Representative has
delivered the default notice pursuant to Condition 13.2
of the Terms and Conditions,

@ the Debentureholders' Representative shall take
any actions to cause the Issuer to repay all the
debts under the Debentures without further
notice. Such actions include filing a lawsuit
against the Issuer in so far as legally possible;
and

(b) no Debentureholder shall be entitled to take any
legal action directly against the Issuer for
enforcement of its rights unless the
Debentureholders’ Representative fails to
institute proceedings against the Issuer and such
failure shall have continued for a period of 14
(fourteen) days and at the time the
Debentureholder files a lawsuit against the
Issuer, the Debentureholders' Representative
has not yet filed a lawsuit against the Issuer to
repay its debts.

Except as specified in Conditions 15.2(b)(i) and
15.2(b)(ii)) of the Terms and Conditions, any
amendment to these Conditions requires the approval of
the Issuer and the Debentureholders’ meeting in
accordance with Annex B to the Terms and Conditions.

The Debentureholders' Representative may amend any
Conditions as specified in Conditions 15.2 (b)(i) and
15.2(b)(ii) of the Terms and Conditions. The
Debentureholders' Representative shall promptly inform
the Issuer in writing of the amendment to these
Conditions made by the  Debentureholders'
Representative pursuant to Condition 19 of the Terms
and Conditions.

The Issuer shall deliver the amended Conditions to the
Registrar and the Debentureholders' Representative and
shall cause the Registrar or the Debentureholders'
Representative to deliver copies of such amended
Conditions and other relating document(s) (if any) to
the SEC and ThaiBMA within 15 (fifteen) days from
the effective date of such amendment and to the
Debentureholders upon written request.

The laws of Thailand
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14

Material terms of Debentureholders' Representative Appointment Agreement

Name of the Agreement

Parties to the Agreement

Effective Date

Obijectives

Remuneration

Termination events

Debentureholders' Representative Appointment Agreement (the
"DHR Agreement")

Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited as the Issuer; and

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited as the
Debentureholders' Representative

The Issue Date of the Debentures

The Issuer agrees to appoint the Debentureholders'
Representative to act as the representative of the
Debentureholders in relation to the Debentures and the
Debentureholders’ Representative agrees to accept such
appointment in accordance with the Terms and Conditions, the
terms and conditions of the DHR Agreement and all applicable
laws and regulations.

The Issuer shall pay to the Debentureholders' Representative an
annual fee for acting as the Debentureholders' Representative in
the amount specified in the DHR Agreement. The
Debentureholders' Representative Fee shall be payable in
advance on a yearly basis at the beginning of each relevant year
to the Debentureholders' Representative by transfer to Bangkok
Bank current account no.101-3-37151-1, account name
Securities Services Department and provide a copy of credit
advice by email to dhr.grp@bbl.co.th. The first payment shall be
made within fifteen (15) business days after receipt of a written
invoice from the Debentureholders' Representative. The
following payments shall be invoiced on the date falling on each
anniversary of the Issue Date thereafter, and in all cases shall be
payable within fifteen (15) business days after receipt of such
written invoice from the Debentureholders' Representative. For
the avoidance of doubt, no payment by the Issuer to the
Debentureholders’ Representative shall be due on the Maturity
Date. In the event that the DHR Agreement is terminated before
one year period from the Issue Date or any anniversary date
thereof, the Debentureholders' Representative  shall
proportionately refund the Debentureholders' Representative Fee
to the Issuer within fifteen (15) business days after the
termination and the Issuer shall pay to the Debentureholders'
Representative all outstanding reasonable expenses incurred in
accordance with and subject to the DHR Agreement.

1. The DHR Agreement shall be terminated upon the
Debentureholders having received payment for both
principal and interest in full and the Debentureholders'
Representative has fully performed its duties as
specified in the Terms and Conditions.

2. Subject to Clause 10.1 of the DHR Agreement, both
parties agree to terminate the DHR Agreement if and
when any of the following events occurs:
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@ the Debentureholders’ Representative gives
written notice of its resignation as the
Debentureholders' Representative sixty (60) days
in advance to the Issuer;

(b) the Issuer gives written notice of termination of
this Agreement sixty (60) days in advance to the
Debentureholders' Representative; or

(©) the Debentureholders vote in the
Debentureholders' meeting for a revocation or
replacement  of  the  Debentureholders'
Representative in accordance with the Terms
and Conditions.

3. Subject to Clause 10.1 of the DHR Agreement, the DHR
Agreement shall be terminated upon the exercise of the
termination right pursuant to Clause 8 of the DHR
Agreement.

4, Subject to further agreement between the parties, the
DHR Agreement shall be terminated if the Debentures
are not issued on the Issue Date. In such event the
Issuer shall not be liable to pay any remuneration and/or
any damages to the Debentureholders' Representative.

5. If at any time the Debentureholders' Representative:

€)] becomes incapable of acting or becomes
disqualified to serve as the Debentureholders'
Representative and fails to rectify such
incapability or disqualification within sixty (60)
days from the date the incapability or
disqualification takes place;

(b) files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or makes
an assignment for the benefit of its creditors or
consents to the appointment of an administrator,
liquidator or administrative or other receiver of
all or any substantial part of its property;

(© admits in writing its inability to pay or meet its
debts as they become due or suspends payment
thereof; or

(d) has a receiver appointed over all or a substantial
part of its property or any officer takes charge or
control of the Debentureholders' Representative
or of its property or affairs for the purpose of
rehabilitation or liquidation,

then the Issuer may without notice terminate the DHR
Agreement, in which event notice thereof shall be given
by the Issuer to the Debentureholders' Representative as
soon as practicable thereafter.
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2.2

Governing Law : The laws of Thailand
Selling Restriction and Transfer Restriction
Selling Restriction

Each of the Lead Arranger and the Issuer has represented and agreed that: (i) it has not offered or
sold and will not offer or sell the Debentures to any person in any jurisdiction other than in Thailand
to Qualified Investors (as defined in Clause 2.2), whether directly or indirectly, or to others for re-
offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in any jurisdiction other than in Thailand to Qualified
Investors; and (ii) it has not circulated or distributed and will not circulate or distribute, whether
directly or indirectly, to any person in any jurisdiction other than in Thailand to Qualified Investors,
the draft or final Prospectus or any other documents or material in connection with the offer or sale,
or invitation for subscription or purchase of the Debentures.

Transfer Restriction

The Issuer has registered a transfer restriction of the Debentures with the Office of the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the Issuer is bound by such transfer restriction to procure that no
Debenture will be transferred to any person other than the "Institutional Investors"” or "High Net
Worth Investors,” respectively as defined in the Notification of the Securities and Exchange
Commission No. KorChor. 5/2552 Re: Determination of Definitions Used in the Notifications on
the Issue and Sale of All Types of Debt Instruments, dated 15 March 2009, as may from time to time
be amended, modified, supplemented or replaced (the "Notification No. KorChor. 5/2552"). As a
result, the Issuer and/or the Registrar will not accept or register any transfer of the Debentures to
any person who is not qualified as such Institutional Investor or High Net Worth Investor referred to
above (collectively, the "Qualified Investors").

The transfer restriction of the Debentures has also been: (i) acknowledged by the Bank of The Lao
People's Democratic Republic; and (ii) endorsed and acknowledged by the Lao Securities
Commission Office that no Debenture will be transferred to any person other than the Qualified
Investors.

Subscription and Allocation
Offering Method

The offering of the Debentures is made through the Joint Lead Arrangers in accordance with the
Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board No. TorChor. 58/2559 Re: Rules on approval
for foreign businesses to offer for sale of newly-issued, Baht-denominated debt instruments dated 22
December 2016, as may from time to time be amended, modified, supplemented or replaced.

The Debentures will only be offered and allocated in Thailand to "Institutional Investors" and "High
Net Worth Investors," as respectively defined in the Notification No. KorChor. 5/2552.

@ The types of the Institutional Investors referred to above are as follows:
(1) Bank of Thailand,;
2) commercial banks;
3 banks established under specific law;
4 finance companies;
5) credit foncier companies;

(6) securities companies;
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(b)

()
©)
9)
(10)

(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)

(23)
(24)

(25)

non-life insurance companies;
life insurance companies;
mutual funds;

private funds managed by securities companies for investment of investors under (1)
to (9) or (11) to (25), Ultra High Net Worth Investors (as defined under the
Notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission No. KorChor. 4/2560 Re:
Determination of Definitions "Institutional Investors", "High Net Worth Investors"
and "Ultra High Net Worth Investors", dated 8 February 2017, as may from time to
time be amended, modified, supplemented or replaced) or High Net Worth Investors;

provident funds;

Government Pension Fund,;

Social Security Fund,;

National Savings Fund;

Financial Institutions Development Fund;

derivatives business operators under the law on derivatives;
future business operators under the law on agricultural futures trading;
international financial institutions;

Deposit Protection Agency;

Stock Exchange of Thailand;

juristic persons in the category of statutory corporation;

juristic persons whose shares are held by persons under (1) to (21) in an aggregate
amount exceeding seventy five per cent of the total number of shares with voting
rights;

foreign investors having similar characteristics to investors under (1) to (22);

fund managers whose names are registered as qualified fund manager under the
Notification of the Office of the SEC concerning rules, conditions and procedures for
appointing and performing of duties of fund manager; and

derivatives fund managers whose names are registered as qualified derivatives fund
manager under the Notification of the Office of the SEC concerning rules, conditions
and procedures for appointing and performing of duties of derivatives fund manager.

The types of the High Net Worth Investors referred to above are as follows:

M)

a juristic person having any of the following characteristics:

(A) having shareholder equity as appeared in its latest audited financial statements
of Baht 100 million or more; or

(B) having direct investment in securities or derivatives of Baht 20 million or
more, or if including its cash deposit, having aggregate of such amount of
Baht 40 million or more as appeared in its latest audited financial statements;
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3.2

3.3

3.4

2 an individual when combining with spouse having any of the following
characteristics:

(A) having net asset value of Baht 50 million or more, excluding value of property
which is a permanent residence of such individual;

(B) having annual income of Baht 4 million or more; or

© having direct investment in securities or derivatives of Baht 10 million or
more, or if including his or her cash deposit, having aggregate of such amount
of Baht 20 million or more.

Joint Lead Arrangers

BANGKOK BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
333 Silom Road

Bangrak

Bangkok 10500

Telephone: +66 2230 2295, +66 2626 3646
Fax: +66 2236 0501

KRUNGTHAI BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
35 Sukhumvit Road

Klongtoey Nua

Wattana, Bangkok 10110

Telephone: +66 2208 4631-39

Fax: +66 2208 8619

THE SIAM COMMERCIAL BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
9 Rutchadapisek Road

Jatujak, Jatujak

Bangkok 10900

Telephone: +66 2544 5740

Conditions with respect to the Arrangement of the Debentures Offering

The Issuer has appointed the Joint Lead Arrangers whose names and addresses are as specified in
Clause 3.2 above as joint lead arrangers to the Debenture transaction. In respect of the arrangement for
the offering and sale of the Debentures, each of the Joint Lead Arrangers agrees to manage, arrange
and procure subscriptions by Institutional Investors and High Net Worth Investors in accordance with
and subject to the terms and conditions specified in a placement agreement entered into between the
Issuer and the Joint Lead Arrangers.

Estimate Amount of Debenture Proceeds to be Received by the Issuer and Expenses Incurred in
connection with the Debenture Offering

(@) Estimate amount of the Debenture proceeds to be received by the Issuer

o The estimate amount of net proceeds to be received by the Issuer from the sale of the
Debentures will be THB 5,982,050,000.

(b) Estimate amounts of fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Debenture
offering:

o Registration statement filing fee THB 150,000
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3.5

3.6

o Other expenses* THB 17,800,000

* Other expenses include the approximate fees payable to the relevant third parties, e.g.
the Debentureholders' Representative, the Registrar, legal advisors and credit rating agencies,
costs of printing the prospectuses, subscription forms and other documents and publication
costs, roadshow expenses and application fee for registering of the Debentures with the
ThaiBMA.

Obtaining of the Prospectuses, Subscription Forms and Subscription Period

(@)

(b)

Any prospective subscriber may obtain the prospectuses and subscription forms at the office
of a Joint Lead Arranger (as specified in Clause 3.2) during business hours and days of the
Joint Lead Arranger from 3 — 4 October 2017.

The subscription period of the Debentures is 3 — 4 October 2017 (the "Subscription Period"),
during business hours/days of the office of a Joint Lead Arranger as specified in Clause 3.2
above. During the Subscription Period, subscribers may subscribe for the Debentures in
accordance with procedures, details and conditions specified in Clause 3.6.

Date and Method for Subscription and Settlement

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Each subscriber shall duly, completely and clearly fill in and sign the subscription form and
affix the company seal (if any) thereto.

Each subscriber may submit the completed subscription form to a Joint Lead Arranger at its
office specified in Clause 3.2 during the business hours/days of the Joint Lead Arranger
during the Subscription Period.

In subscribing for the Debentures, (i) a subscriber who is qualified as an Institutional Investor
is required to subscribe for a minimum of 100 units of Debentures or THB 100,000 in value
and, if more, in a multiple of 10 units of Debentures or THB 10,000 in value; and (ii) a
subscriber who is qualified as a High Net Worth Investor is required to subscribe for a
minimum of 100 units of Debentures or THB 100,000 in value and, if more, in a multiple of
100 units of Debentures or THB 100,000 in value.

Subscription payments for the Debentures shall be made by subscribers on the date of
subscription in full in a single payment in the form of:

Q) cheque, cashier's cheque or bank draft which can be settled at any clearing house in
Bangkok Metropolis, and payment shall be made simultaneously with the submission
of the subscription form. Such cheque, cashier's cheque or bank draft must be dated
no later than: (i) in the case of payment by an Institutional Investor, the Issue Date of
the Debentures; and (ii) in the case of payment by a High Net Worth Investor, 3
October 2017 (before the end of the cheque clearing period of each place of
subscription), crossed "A/C Payee Only" and made payable to the following accounts
namely:

In case subscription application is made through the Joint Lead Arrangers other than
The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited

Q) with respect to Tranche 1 Debentures, "Subscription Account for Debentures of Nam
Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 1"

(i) with respect to Tranche 2 Debentures, "Subscription Account for Debentures of Nam
Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 2"

Part 4 Information on the Offering of the Debenture Page 18



NAN NGUM 2 POWER

Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited

(€)

2

(iii) with respect to Tranche 3 Debentures, "Subscription Account for Debentures of Nam
Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 3"

In case subscription application is made through The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company
Limited

"Subscription Account for Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017"

cash payment or wire transfer or payment through BAHTNET SYSTEM, (aa) in the
case of payment by an Institutional Investor, by no later than 10.00 a.m. on the Issue
Date of the Debentures; and (bb) in the case of payment by a High Net Worth
Investor, by no later than 3 October 2017, provided that only the Institutional
Investors (and not the High Net Worth Investors) can make the payment via
BAHTNET SYSTEM; and the payment by way of wire transfer must be made from
and to accounts opened with the same bank. The payment by wire transfer or via
BAHTNET SYSTEM must be transferred to the following accounts namely:

In case subscription application is made through the Joint Lead Arrangers other than
The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited

(i) with respect to Tranche 1 Debentures, "Subscription Account for Debentures of Nam
Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 1"

(ii) with respect to Tranche 2 Debentures, "Subscription Account for Debentures of Nam
Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 2"

(iii) with respect to Tranche 3 Debentures, "Subscription Account for Debentures of Nam
Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 3"

In case subscription application is made through The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company
Limited

"Subscription Account for Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017"

Subscribers for the Debentures are required to submit the following documents together with
their subscription forms and payments:

M)

2

®)

For subscribers who are entities incorporated in Thailand:

0] a copy of the most recent affidavit issued by the Ministry of Commerce which is not
more than 6 (six) month old, certified as a true and correct copy by authorized
signatories of such entity, with its common seal (if any) affixed thereto; and

(i) a certified copy of the citizenship identity card, alien certificate or passport, as the
case may be, of the authorized signatory of such entity.

For subscribers who are entities incorporated in foreign countries:

(i) copies of the certificate of incorporation, Memorandum of Association, Articles of
Association, and the most recent affidavit which are not more than 1 year old,
certified as true and correct by the authorized signatory of such entity, with its
common seal (if any) affixed thereto; and

(i) a certified copy of the passport of authorized signatory of such juristic person.

For subscribers who are individuals residing in Thailand, a certified copy of the
citizenship identity card or (if the subscriber does not have an identification card)
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3.7

)

(9)

(h)

(i)

0)

certified copies of the card issued by the governmental entity and house registration
document containing the identification card number of the subscriber).

(G))] For subscribers who are individuals residing outside of Thailand, a certified copy of
the foreign certificate or passport.

Subscriptions for the Debentures shall be made at the office of a Joint Lead Arranger (as
specified in Clause 3.2 above) in accordance with the procedures, rules and conditions (other
than those specified above) as prescribed by a Joint Lead Arranger at its place of subscription.

Subscribers who have submitted their subscription forms and made payments for their
subscriptions may not cancel their subscriptions or request a refund of their subscription
payments, except as specified in Clause 3.7(c)(2).

Subscribers will not be entitled to receive any interest or compensation during the period from
(and including) the subscription date to the Issue Date of the Debentures.

Prior to the subscription of the Debentures, a Joint Lead Arranger shall arrange for each High
Net Worth Investor to complete the investors' risk-taking capability assessment test or the
"Suitability Test" in order to assess the suitable risk level for the investor. If any High Net
Worth Investor refuses to complete such Suitability Test, the Joint Lead Arranger may refuse
the Debentures subscription by the High Net Worth Investor.

If a High Net Worth Investor has completed the Suitability Test and the result shows that the
Debentures are assigned a higher risk level than the investor's risk level obtained through the
Suitability Test and if the High Net Worth Investor decides to pursue with the investment in
the Debentures, the High Net Worth Investor must sign the subscription form binding itself
as a subscriber agreeing to bear the risks arising from the Debentures subscribed, which is
assigned a higher risk level than the investment risk level obtained through the Suitability
Test. Each of the Joint Lead Arrangers reserves the right to refuse any subscription of the
Debentures by any High Net Worth Investor who refuses to sign the subscription form with
such risk acceptance clause.

Allocation of Debentures

(@)

(b)

Restrictions on Allocation

The offering of the Debentures is an offering of which the full amount of the Debentures is
offered only to the Institutional Investors and the High Net Worth Investors. The allotment of
the Debentures will be performed by the Joint Lead Arrangers in compliance with the
notification of the Capital Markets Supervisory Board governing standard conduct of
business, management arrangement, operating systems, and providing services to clients of
securities companies and derivatives intermediaries and the notification of the Capital Markets
Supervisory Board governing rules, conditions and procedures for securities underwriting as
well as guidelines on conduct of business issued by virtue of the notifications as prescribed by
the Office of the SEC.

Allocation of the Debentures

The allocation of the Debentures to subscribers shall be at the absolute discretion of the Joint
Lead Arrangers. Each of the Joint Lead Arrangers may allocate any amount of the Debentures
to any Qualified Investors or may refuse to allocate the Debentures subscribed by any
subscribers as they deem appropriate.
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3.8

3.9

(c) Cancellation of Subscription

Q Each Joint Lead Arranger is entitled to revoke or cancel any subscription for the
Debentures by any subscriber who fails to comply with the procedures indicated in
Clause 3.6 above or whose payment of subscription price by a crossed cheque or
cashier cheque is not honored upon presentation thereof.

(2 A subscriber is entitled to revoke the subscription for the Debentures in the event that
the Issuer suspends or ceases the offering of the Debentures or is unable to deliver the
offered Debentures, from the announcement date of the suspension or cessation of the
offering or the Issuer's inability to deliver the Debentures to (and including) the last
day of Subscription Period.

Procedure for Refunding Subscription Payments in the Case of Excess Subscriptions

In the event that the subscriptions exceed the total amount of the Debentures offered and the
Debentures could not be allotted or allotted in an amount less than that subscribed by subscribers by
the Issue Date, the relevant Joint Lead Arranger shall refund such amounts without any interest
thereon and/or compensation to the relevant subscribers by issuing crossed cheques payable and
sent by registered mail to the relevant subscribers at the address specified in the subscribers'
respective subscription forms, as soon as possible, but in any event no later than the period
prescribed by the Association of Thai Securities Companies ("ASCO") with the approval of the
Office of the SEC, which shall be no longer than 10 (ten) business days following the last day of the
Subscription Period (the "Refunding Period for Excess Subscription"). However, if the relevant
Joint Lead Arranger cannot return the payment to the subscriber within such time period, the
subscriber shall be entitled to receive interest at a rate of 7.5 percent per annum on such unpaid
amount calculated from (and including) the day following the last day of the Refunding Period for
Excess Subscription to (but excluding) the actual payment date. Mailing of a cheque to the
subscriber within the period of time specified above by registered mail at the address shown in the
subscription form shall be deemed to constitute valid refund of such moneys and upon such mailing
the subscriber shall have no right to claim for any interest or compensation.

Reimbursement of Subscription Amount in case of repression or cessation

If the failure to allot the Debentures occurs as a result of the Issuer being repressed or ceased to offer
the Debentures or unable to deliver the Debentures to the subscribers, and the subscribers cancel the
subscription of the Debentures within the next Business Day after the day the Issuer declares its
repression or cessation of the offering of the Debentures or its inability to deliver the Debentures to
the subscribers or, if such events occurred on the last day of the Subscription Period, within such date,
the Issuer shall arrange with the Joint Lead Arrangers to return the subscription payments without
interest thereon and/or compensation to the subscribers by issuing crossed cheques payable and sent
by registered mail to the relevant subscribers at the address specified in the subscribers' respective
subscription forms, as soon as possible, but in any event no later than the period prescribed by ASCO
with the approval of the Office of the SEC, which shall be no longer than 10 (ten) Business Days
following the date the offering ceases or the date of occurrence of an event that causes the offering to
cease (as the case may be) (the "Refunding Period for Cessation"). However, if the relevant Joint
Lead Arranger cannot return the payment to the subscriber within such time period, the subscriber
shall be entitled to receive interest at a rate of 7.5 percent per annum on such unpaid amount
calculated from (and including) the day following the last day of the Refunding Period for Cessation
to (but excluding) the actual payment date. Mailing of a cheque to the subscriber within the period of
time specified above by registered mail at the address shown in the subscription form shall be deemed
to constitute valid refund of such moneys and upon such mailing the subscriber shall have no right to
claim for any interest or compensation.
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3.10

3.11

Delivery of Debentures
(@) Delivery of Debenture Certificates

If a subscriber has requested in its subscription form that a Debenture certificate in respect of
the Debentures subscribed be issued under the name of such subscriber, the Issuer will cause
the Registrar to issue such Debenture certificate in the name of the subscriber and deliver it to
such subscriber within 15 (fifteen) business days from the closing of the Subscription Period
by registered mail at the address of the subscriber specified in his subscription form.

(b) For Debentures in Scripless System

If a subscriber has requested in his subscription form that the Debentures be credited to the
account maintained with the participants of Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited
("TSD") under the "Scripless System," the Issuer will procure that the Registrar credits the
allocated Debentures to the account maintained with the participants of TSD as specified in
the subscription form within 7 (seven) business days from the closing of the Subscription
Period. In such case, the Registrar will not issue a Debenture certificate to the subscriber and
will record in the register of the Debentures that TSD is holding the Debentures on behalf of
the subscriber(s).

TAXATION

This section contains information on certain tax provisions in connection with the Debentures and is
not an advice on taxation. Accordingly, prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors
concerning the consequences of their investment in the Debentures. The summary provided below is
based upon applicable law, practice and relevant double tax treaty in force on the date of this
Prospectus and is therefore subject to any subsequent changes in law and the interpretation and
application thereof, which changes could be made with retroactive effect.

The summary contained in this Section does not purport to be a comprehensive description of all of
the tax considerations that may be relevant to a decision to invest in or dispose of the Debentures, and
does not purport to deal with the tax consequences applicable to all categories of investors, some of
which may be subject to special rules.

The tax liability of a holder of the Debentures (a "Debentureholder"”) and the applicable tax rates will
depend on various factors such as whether or not the Debentureholder is an individual or juristic
person, or whether it is a juristic person that is not subject to income tax, whether the holder is
considered as a resident of Thailand or is considered carrying on business in Thailand, or whether the
Debentureholder is a resident of a country that has a double taxation agreement with Thailand.

(@) Thai Taxation
Q) Income Tax
(1) Debentureholder who is a resident of Thailand
(A) Individual

In considering a residency of an individual, Thai tax law disregards
the nationality of such individual. The individual Debentureholder is
deemed to be a tax resident of Thailand if he/she has resided in
Thailand for a period or periods aggregating 180 (one hundred and
eighty) days or more in the same calendar year (the "Resident
Individual Debentureholder™).
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(B)

Q) Interest

Interest received by the Resident Individual Debentureholder
is subject to 15 percent withholding tax.

(i) Capital Gains

A capital gain, which is the amount in excess of the cost of
acquisition, derived from the transfer of the Debentures is
subject to 15 percent withholding tax.

A Resident Individual Debentureholder, however, has the right to
elect to pay tax at the withholding tax rate prescribed in (i) or (ii)
above, without having to include such interest or capital gain with his
other income for the purpose of calculating personal income tax. If
the Resident Individual Debentureholder elects to include the interest
or capital gain with his other income for the purpose of calculating
personal income tax, he will be entitled to treat the tax so withheld as
a credit.

Company or Juristic Partnership

A Debentureholder, which is a company or a juristic partnership
established pursuant to the laws of Thailand, or established pursuant
to a foreign law but doing business in Thailand, a foundation or an
association, excluding one which is specified by a ministerial
notification to be a public charity organization or institution pursuant
to section 47(7) (b) of the Revenue Code, (the "Resident Corporate
Debentureholder™) will have the following tax liabilities:

0) Interest

Interest received by a Resident Corporate Debentureholder
which is a company or a juristic partnership, which includes a
commercial bank, a finance company, a securities company or
a credit foncier company, is subject to 1 percent withholding
tax. The Resident Corporate Debentureholder must include
interest in their revenue for the purpose of calculating
corporate income tax and will be entitled to treat the tax so
withheld as a credit.

Interest received by the Resident Corporate Debentureholder
which is a foundation or an association that is not a public
charity organization or institution is subject to 10 percent
withholding tax.

(i) Capital Gains

Capital gains are not subject to withholding tax. The portion
in excess of the original investment must be included in the
revenue of the Resident Corporate Debentureholder for the
purpose of calculating corporate income tax.
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(i) Debentureholder who is not a resident of Thailand

(A)

(B)

Individual
Q) Interest

Except where the terms and conditions of a double taxation
agreement entered into between Thailand and the resident
country of the Debentureholder provide otherwise, interest
received by the Debentureholder who is not the Resident
Individual Debentureholder (the "Non-Resident Individual
Debentureholder"”) from or within Thailand, is subject to 15
percent withholding tax.

(i) Capital Gains

Except where the terms and conditions of a double taxation
agreement entered into between Thailand and the resident
country of the Non-Resident Individual Debentureholder
provide otherwise, a capital gain, which is the amount in
excess of the cost of acquisition of the Debentures, paid from
or within Thailand, is subject to 15 percent withholding tax.

Company or Juristic Partnership

A Debentureholder, which is a company or a juristic partnership
established pursuant to a foreign law and not doing (or not being
deemed to be doing) business in Thailand or not having a permanent
establishment in  Thailand (the "Non-Resident Corporate
Debentureholder") will have the following tax liabilities:

(i Interest

Unless the terms and conditions of double taxation agreement
entered into between Thailand and the resident country of the
Non-Resident Corporate Debentureholder provide otherwise,
interest received by the Non-Resident Corporate
Debentureholder which is paid from or within Thailand is
subject to 15 percent withholding tax.

(i) Capital Gains

Unless the terms and conditions of a double taxation
agreement entered into between Thailand and the resident
country of the Non-Resident Corporate Debentureholder
provide otherwise, a capital gain received from the transfer of
the Debentures, which is paid from or within Thailand, is
subject to 15 percent withholding tax.

(2) Specific Business Tax

A Debentureholder who carries on business in Thailand may be subject to a 0.01
percent specific business tax (SBT) plus 10 percent municipal tax which is levied on
such SBT for interest of the Debentures received by the Debentureholders or gains
before deduction of any expenses from the sale or other transfer of the Debentures, if
such interest or gains are considered to be income derived from a business of banking
under the law governing commercial banking or any other specific law, an
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(b)

®)

Lao Taxation

o))

)

undertaking of finance business, securities business and credit foncier business under
the laws governing finance business, securities business and credit foncier business or
a business similar to that of commercial banking.

Stamp Duty

A sale or other transfer of the Debentures is exempt from stamp duty.

Income Tax

(i)

Individual

Based on Lao tax law, all individuals earning income in Lao PDR, regardless
of the nationality and time spent in Lao PDR, are subject to income tax except
for certain specific activities stipulated in Lao tax law.

(A) Interest

Payment of interest from the Debentures by the Issuer is exempted
from income tax based on the assumption and interpretation of the
Concession Agreement which waived all forms of taxation. The
Concession Agreement means the Hydroelectric Power Project
Concession Agreement between the Government of the Lao PDR and
SouthEast Asia Energy Limited, Vientiane Branch, Lao PDR dated 14
March 2006 as novated to the Issuer on 9 January 2008 (the
"Concession Agreement").

(B) Capital Gains

Lao tax law is silent on whether a capital gain from the transfer of the
Debentures is subject to tax. As such, there may be risk that the
Government of Lao PDR may assess gain from transfer of the
Debentures by any Debentureholder and impose tax on such gain.

(i) Company or Juristic Partnership
Based on Lao tax law, all juristic persons earning income in the Lao PDR
regardless of nationality and time spent in Lao PDR are subject to income tax
except for certain specific activities stipulated in Lao tax law.
(A) Interest
Payment of interest from the Debentures by the Issuer is exempted
from income tax based on the assumption and interpretation of the
Concession Agreement which waived all forms of taxation.
(B) Capital Gains
Lao tax law is silent on whether a capital gain from the transfer of the
Debentures is subject to tax. As such there may be risk that the
Government of Lao PDR may assess gain from transfer of the
Debentures by any Debentureholder and impose a tax on such gain.
Stamp Duty

Any sale or transfer of the Debentures is subject to stamp duty or so called registration
fee which is based on the type and value of the documents being registered.
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3 Notarization

Any sale or transfer of the Debentures is subject to notarization and notarization fee is
based on the number of pages of the documents being registered.
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PART 5
CERTIFICATION OF THE ACCURACY OF INFORMATION

I, as an authorized signatory of the Issuer, have carefully examined the information contained in this Draft
Prospectus and hereby certify that the information contained herein is correct and complete, and that such
information is neither false nor misleading, in al material respects, nor are there any material factual
omissions.

As evidence that all the documents | certified are included herein, | authorize Mr. Vorapote
U.Choepaiboonvong, Mrs. Muntana Auekitkarjorn and Mr. Thitipat Nananukool to initial every page of each
document. If any document does not contain the signature of Mr. Vorapote U.Choepaiboonvong, Mrs.
Muntana Auekitkarjorn or Mr. Thitipat Nananukool, | will deem that such document not to be the document |
certified.

Name Position Signature
Mr. Thanawat Director
Trivisvavet
Mr. Vorapote Director
U.Choepaiboonvong
Assignee:
Name Position Signature
Mr. Vorapote Director

U.Choepaiboonvong

Mrs. Muntana Deputy Managing Director
Auekitkarjorn

Mr. Thitipat Assistant Managing Director
Nananukool
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(DRAFT) TERMS AND CONDITIONS
OF
"THE DEBENTURES OF NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED NO. 1/2017
TRANCHE 1 DUE 2020"
"THE DEBENTURES OF NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED NO. 1/2017
TRANCHE 2 DUE 2024"
AND
"THE AMORTIZED DEBENTURES OF NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED
NO. 1/2017 TRANCHE 3 DUE 2027""

The following is the text of the terms and conditions (these "Conditions™) of (a) "The Debentures of
Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 1 Due 2020" ("Tranche 1 Debentures"),
(b) "The Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 2 Due 2024"
("Tranche 2 Debentures”), (c) "The Amortized Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company
Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 3 Due 2027" ("Tranche 3 Debentures," and together with Tranche 1
Debentures and Tranche 2 Debentures, the "Debentures™) setting out the rights and obligations of
Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited (the "Issuer™) and the Debentureholders (as defined below)
with respect to the Debentures, as may be supplemented, amended or modified by any subsequent
amendment thereto, with Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited acting as the Debentureholders'
Representative. The Issuer has been granted approval by the Ministry of Finance of Thailand to offer
for sale the Debentures in Thailand by virtue of the MOF Notification (as defined below). The offer
for sale of the Debentures in Thailand has been: (i) acknowledged by the Bank of The Lao People's
Democratic Republic (the "BOL") under the Letter No. [¢] dated [¢] issued by the BOL to the Issuer;
and (ii) endorsed and acknowledged by the Lao Securities Commission Office (the "LSCO™) under
the Certificate No. [*] dated [*] issued by the LSCO, by virtue of and in compliance with the Decision
No. 0022/LSC (as defined below).

The Debentureholders' rights in respect of the Debentures shall be as prescribed in these Conditions in
relation to which the Debentureholders and the Issuer shall be bound in all respects. The Issuer has
appointed the Debentureholders' Representative, the Registrar and the Paying Agent pursuant to the
Debentureholders' Representative Appointment Agreement, the Registrar Appointment Agreement
and the Paying Agent Appointment Agreement, respectively. The Debentureholders are deemed to
accept the appointment of the Debentureholders' Representative and are entitled to the benefits of, are
bound by, and are deemed to have notice of and understand, all provisions of these Conditions and the
Debentureholders' Representative Appointment Agreement.

Execution copies of these Conditions, the Debentureholders' Representative Appointment Agreement,
the Registrar Appointment Agreement and the Paying Agent Appointment Agreement are available for
inspection during normal business hours at the principal office of the Debentureholders'
Representative.
1. DEFINITIONS

In these Conditions:

"Baht" means Thai Baht, the lawful currency of the Kingdom of Thailand.

"BOL" means the Bank of The Lao People's Democratic Republic.

"Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks
are open for general business in Bangkok, Thailand.

"Closing Date™ has the meaning given to it in Condition 4.4.



"Concession Agreement” means the Hydroelectric Power Project Concession Agreement
between the Government of the Lao PDR and SouthEast Asia Energy Limited, Vientiane
Branch, Lao PDR dated 14 March 2006 as novated to the Issuer on 9 January 2008.

"Conditions" means these terms and conditions setting out the rights and obligations of the
Issuer and the Debentureholders in respect of the Debentures.

"Credit Rating Agency(ies)" means a credit rating agency(ies) approved by the SEC.

"Debenture Certificate(s)" means the certificate(s) issued in accordance with Condition 3.1,
representing such Debenture(s) in the respective form(s) specified in Annex A.

"Debentureholder(s)" means the person(s) who owns the Debenture(s) in accordance with
Condition 3.3.

"Debentureholders' Representative” means Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited or any
successor as the Debentureholders' Representative in respect of the Debentures.

"Debentureholders'  Representative  Appointment  Agreement”  means  the
Debentureholders’ Representative appointment agreement entered into between the
Debentureholders' Representative and the Issuer dated on or around 5 October 2017 or the
agreement appointing a new Debentureholders’ Representative to replace the existing
Debentureholders' Representative (if any).

"Debenture Rights" means all rights relating to the Debentures including, without limitation,
the right to receive principal and interest on the Debentures and the right to attend and vote at
meetings of the Debentureholders.

"Debentures" means Tranche 1 Debentures, Tranche 2 Debentures and/or Tranche 3
Debentures, as the context may require.

"Decision No. 0022/LSC" means the Decision on Offering of Debenture for Sale in Foreign
Country issued by the Lao Securities Commission, dated 26 October 2016, as may from time
to time be amended, modified, supplemented or replaced.

"Default Interest Rate" means the default rate of interest for the Debentures, being the
Interest Rate plus 2 (two) per cent per annum.

"Event of Default" means any of the events specified in Condition 13.1.

"Interest Payment Date" means every 5 April and 5 October of each year throughout the
term of the Debentures, with the first Interest Payment Date being 5 April 2018 and the last
Interest Payment Date being the Maturity Date.

"Interest Period" means:

@) with respect to the first Interest Period, the period commencing on, and including, the
Issue Date and ending on, but excluding, the first Interest Payment Date; and

(b) with respect to any subsequent Interest Period, the period commencing on, and
including, the Interest Payment Date of the preceding Interest Period and ending on,
but excluding, the next Interest Payment Date of such Interest Period or the Maturity
Date, as the case may be.

"Issue Date" means the issue date of the Debentures which is 5 October 2017.



"Issuer” means Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited.

"Issuer's Representative” means The Legists Group or any successor as the Issuer's
representative in Thailand for the purposes specified in Condition 20.

"Lao PDR" means The Lao People's Democratic Republic.
"LSCO™" means the Lao Securities Commission Office.
"Maturity Date" means,

@) in relation to Tranche 1 Debentures, 5 October 2020;

(b) in relation to Tranche 2 Debentures, 5 October 2024; and
(c) in relation to Tranche 3 Debentures, 5 October 2027.

"MOF Notification" means the Ministry of Finance's Notification Re: Approval for Issue of
Debentures or Debentures Denominated in Baht in Thailand, dated 11 April 2006, as may
from time to time be amended, modified, supplemented or replaced.

"Notification No. KorChor. 5/2552" means the Notification of the Securities and Exchange
Commission No. KorChor. 5/2552 Re: Determination of Definitions Used in the Notifications
on the Issue and Sale of All Types of Debt Instruments, dated 15 March 2009, as may from
time to time be amended, modified, supplemented or replaced.

"Paying Agent" means Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited acting in its capacity as
paying agent or any successor as the paying agent in respect of the Debentures as permitted by
relevant laws and regulations.

"Paying Agent Appointment Agreement" means the paying agent appointment agreement
entered into between the Paying Agent and the Issuer dated on or around 5 October 2017 or
the agreement appointing a new Paying Agent to replace the existing Paying Agent (if any).

"Record Date" has the meaning given to it in Condition 4.4.

"Redemption Date" means, in respect of Tranche 3 Debentrues, each redemption date, as
specified in Condition 10.1(b), on which a payment of principal is due.

"Register Book™ means the register book of the Debentures recording particulars of the
Debentureholders or other sources of registration information relating to the transfer, pledge,
attachment, issue of new Debenture Certificates and other matters related to the Debentures
according to the relevant rules and procedures prescribed pursuant to the laws governing
securities and notifications of the SEC.

"Registrar" means TSD acting in its capacity as registrar or any successor as the registrar in
respect of the Debentures as permitted by relevant laws and regulations.

"Registrar Appointment Agreement” means the registrar appointment agreement entered
into between the Registrar and the Issuer dated on or around 5 October 2017 or the agreement
appointing a new Registrar to replace the existing Registrar (if any).

"SEC" means the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand.

"Subscription Closing Date" means the day on which the subscription of the Debentures is
completed, in this case, 5 October 2017.



2.1

2.2

"Tranche 1 Debentures" means "The Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited
No. 1/2017 Tranche 1 Due 2020".

"Tranche 2 Debentures" means "The Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited
No. 1/2017 Tranche 2 Due 2024".

"Tranche 3 Debentures" means "The Amortized Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power
Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 3 Due 2027".

"ThaiBMA" means the Thai Bond Market Association or such other securities business
related associated or exchange as may be licensed by and registered with the SEC.

"Thailand" means the Kingdom of Thailand.

"TSD" means Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited, or any other successor
organization legally entitled to operate a securities depository business in Thailand.

FORM, DENOMINATION, INTEREST AND TERM
Form, type, interest rate and tenor of each tranche of Debentures are as follows;

@) Tranche 1 Debentures are issued in registered form, unsubordinated and unsecured,
with a debentureholders' representative and carry interest at the rate of 2.59 (two point
five nine) per cent per annum with a tenor of 3 (three) years from the Issue Date;

(b) Tranche 2 Debentures are issued in registered form, unsubordinated and unsecured,
with a debentureholders' representative and carry interest at the rate of 3.48 (three
point four eight) per cent per annum with a tenor of 7 (seven) years from the Issue
Date; and

(c) Tranche 3 Debentures are issued in registered form, unsubordinated, unsecured and
amortized, with a debentureholders' representative and carry interest at the rate of 3.69
(three point six nine) per cent per annum with a tenor of 10 (ten) years from the Issue
Date.

On the Issue Date, there are in aggregate 6,000,000 (six million) units of Debentures, with a
nominal amount of Baht 1,000 (one thousand baht) each, and an aggregate total principal
amount of Baht 6,000,000,000 (six billion baht), comprising of;

@) 1,000,000 (one million) units of Tranche 1 Debentures, with a nominal amount of
Baht 1,000 (one thousand baht) each, and total principal amount of Baht
1,000,000,000 (one billion baht);

(b) 1,400,000 (one million four hundred thousand) units of Tranche 2 Debentures, with a
nominal amount of Baht 1,000 (one thousand baht) each, and total principal amount of
Baht 1,400,000,000 (one billion four hundred million baht); and

(c) 3,600,000 (three million six hundred thousand) units of Tranche 3 Debentures, with a
nominal amount of Baht 1,000 (one thousand baht) each, and total principal amount of
Baht 3,600,000,000 (three billion six hundred million baht).

DEBENTURE CERTIFICATES, REGISTER BOOK AND OWNERSHIP OF THE
DEBENTURES

The Issuer has appointed TSD to act as a registrar in respect of the Debentures in accordance
with the Registrar Appointment Agreement made between the Issuer and TSD.



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

The Issuer shall ensure that the Registrar, by the entering into the Registrar Appointment
Agreement, issues and delivers Debenture Certificates, in the form attached as Annex A to
these Conditions, to all Debentureholders whose Debentures are not deposited with TSD
within 15 (fifteen) Business Days from the Subscription Closing Date via registered mail at
the name and address appearing in the subscription form of such Debentures. The Issuer shall
cause the Registrar, by the entering into the Registrar Appointment Agreement, to deposit
with TSD the Debentures of a Debentureholder who has expressed its desire for such deposit
in the subscription form of the Debentures within 7 (seven) Business Days from the
Subscription Closing Date. For the Debentures deposited with TSD, the Registrar shall enter
the name of TSD, as the holder of the Debentures on behalf of the Debentureholder, in the
Register Book.

The Issuer shall cause the Registrar, by the entering into the Registrar Appointment
Agreement, to prepare and keep the Register Book until the date that all Debentures are fully
redeemed in accordance with these Conditions.

@) Ownership of Debentures that are not deposited with TSD. Title to the Debentures is
vested in persons whose names are registered in the Register Book from time to time.
For the purpose of determining the Debenture Rights, the Debenture Rights are vested
in the persons whose names are registered in the Register Book as the owners of such
Debentures at the end of business hours of the Registrar on the Record Date, unless a
transfer of the Debentures has occurred prior to the relevant Record Date and such
transfer is effective against the Issuer in accordance with Conditions 4.1(a). In case of
such transfer, the Debenture Rights will be vested in the transferee of the Debentures.

(b) Ownership of Debentures that are deposited with TSD. Title to the Debentures is
vested in persons whose names are listed with TSD as the owners of such Debentures
from time to time. For the purpose of determining the Debenture Rights, the
Debenture Rights are vested in persons whose names are listed with TSD as the
owners of such Debentures at the end of business hours of the Registrar on the Record
Date, as notified in writing by TSD to the Registrar.

If a person holding Debentures through TSD (scripless system) wishes to obtain a Debenture
Certificate with respect to those Debentures, that person must inform TSD. The Issuer shall
cause the Registrar, by the entering into the Registrar Appointment Agreement, to issue a
Debenture Certificate to that person within 45 (forty-five) days from the date it has been
notified by TSD of the name of that person and the number of Debentures deposited with TSD
in the name of that person. Following the issue of such Debenture Certificate, the number of
Debentures registered in the name of TSD will then be reduced by the number of Debentures
held by the person to whom the Debenture Certificate has been issued.

TRANSFERS OF DEBENTURES
Transfers of Debentures not deposited with TSD
Unless otherwise determined in accordance with the law governing securities and exchange,

transfers of Debentures not deposited with TSD shall be in accordance with the following
terms:

@) Transfers between the transferor and the transferee. A transfer of Debentures is
complete, as between the transferor and the transferee, when the transferor whose
name is registered in the Register Book as the owner of such Debentures, or the last
person to whom such Debentures have been previously transferred in accordance with
these Conditions, delivers to the transferee a duly endorsed Debenture Certificate
representing such Debentures.



4.2

4.3

(b)

(©

(d)

Transfers between the transferee and the Issuer. A transfer of Debentures is only
effective against the Issuer if the Registrar accepts the application to register the
transfer together with the Debenture Certificate duly endorsed by the transferor and
the transferee.

Transfers between the transferor and the third parties. A transfer of Debentures is only
effective against third parties if the transfer is actually registered in the Register Book.

An application to register the transfer of Debentures must be made at the principal
office of the Registrar during its normal business hours in accordance with the form
and procedures prescribed by the Registrar. In connection with the application to
register a transfer of Debentures, the applicant must deliver the following documents
to the Registrar:

0] an application for registration of the transfer, together with the Debenture
Certificate duly endorsed pursuant to Condition 4.1(a); and

(i) any other evidence confirming the correctness and completeness of the
transfer as may be specified by the Registrar.

The Registrar will register the transfer of Debentures in the Register Book within 7
(seven) Business Days after it receives the documents specified in Condition 4.1(b).

The Registrar shall decline to register a transfer of Debentures in a case where such
transfer is in breach of these Conditions, the provisions of applicable law, or a court
order.

Transfers of Debentures deposited with TSD

Debentures deposited with TSD must be transferred in accordance with the Debenture transfer
restrictions, the applicable regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, ThaiBMA, TSD
and any other relevant regulatory authority and agency, including the relevant over-the-
counter centers, that have issued regulations applicable to such transfer of the Debentures.

Debenture Transfer Restrictions

(@)

(b)

(©

Thai transfer restriction

The Issuer has registered a transfer restriction of the Debentures with the SEC that no
Debenture will be transferred to any person other than those qualified as "Institutional
Investors” and "High Net Worth Investors" in accordance with the Notification
No. KorChor. 5/2552. As a result, the Issuer and/or the Registrar will not accept or
register any transfer of Debentures to any person who is not qualified as such
Institutional Investor or High Net Worth Investors referred to above (collectively, the
"Qualified Investors"), unless by way of inheritance.

Lao transfer restriction

The transfer restriction of the Debentures has been: (i) acknowledged by the BOL; and
(ii) endorsed and acknowledged by the LSCO, in accordance with the Decision No.
0022/LSC, that no Debenture will be transferred to any person other than the
Qualified Investors.

Transfer of Debentures in violation of the Debenture transfer restrictions



4.4

If any transfer of the Debentures is made in violation of the transfer restrictions
specified in Conditions 4.3(a) and 4.3(b) above, a transferee in respect of such
transfer, (collectively the "Non-Qualified Person™) shall not be recorded or registered
in the Register Book as a Debentureholder and shall not be entitled to any Debenture
Rights. In this regard, the Debenture Rights shall remain vested in a
Debentureholder(s) who has transferred the Debentures to the Non-Qualified Person
and who is qualified as a Qualified Investor (the "Qualified Debentureholder”). If
such transferor Debentureholder(s) is not a Qualified Debentureholder, the Debenture
Rights shall remain vested in the previous transferor Debentureholder(s) who is a
Qualified Debentureholder.

Each Debentureholder hereby acknowledges and agrees that: (i) it shall not transfer
any Debentures held by it to any Non-Qualified Person; and (ii) the Issuer and the
Registrar shall not be obliged to indemnify or liable to any Debentureholder or Non-
Qualified Person from and against any and all loss, liability, cost, claim, action,
demand or expense (including, but not limited to, all costs, charges, legal fees and
expenses paid or incurred in disputing or defending any of the foregoing and any
value added tax thereon) which such Debentureholder and/or Non-Qualified Person
may incur or which may be made against any of them arising out of or in relation to or
in connection with any transfer of the Debentures in violation of the transfer
restrictions specified in Conditions 4.3(a) and 4.3(b) above.

The Register Book will be closed on the 14th (fourteenth) day prior to any Interest Payment
Date, the Maturity Date, any date fixed for any meeting of the Debentureholders or any other
date for any other purpose as specified in these Conditions and as notified by the Issuer to the
Registrar and the Debentureholders' Representative (the "Closing Date™). If the Closing Date
falls on a day that is not a Business Day, the Register Book shall be closed on the next
Business Day, and in such case, the period between the Closing Date to each relevant Interest
Payment Date, the Maturity Date, any date fixed for any meeting of the Debentureholders or any
other date for any other purpose as specified above shall be less than 14 (fourteen) days. The
Registrar shall not register any transfer of the Debentures on the Closing Date. A Business Day
immediately preceding the Closing Date is hereinafter referred to as a "Record Date".

The Issuer and the Registrar hereby reserve the right to change the date and time for the
closure of the Register Book without the need to obtain consent from the Debentureholders,
provided that such change: (i) must be in compliance with the rules and regulations of TSD or
any other relevant authorities, and (ii) shall not adversely affect materially the rights and
benefits of the Debentureholders. In such case, the Record Date shall be changed accordingly.

STATUS OF DEBENTURES

The Debentures constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of
the Issuer which rank pari passu among themselves and will rank at least pari passu with all
other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, save for such
as may be preferred by mandatory provisions of applicable law.

CREDIT RATING

As of the Issue Date, the Issuer has arranged for the assignment of a credit rating to itself
and/or the Debentures by the Credit Rating Agency and the Issuer will procure that a credit
rating by the Credit Rating Agency is assigned to itself and/or the Debentures throughout the
term of the Debentures. For the avoidance of doubt, the credit rating result for the Issuer
and/or the Debentures is subject to revision during the term of the Debentures.



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER

The Issuer undertakes to comply with all the covenants set out in this Condition 7 for so long
as any debt under the Debentures remains outstanding.

The Issuer shall, at all times throughout the term of the Debentures or until all Debentures are
redeemed, (i) use its best effort to carry on and conduct its business in an appropriate and
efficient manner, (ii) comply with securities and exchange law and other related law, as well
as regulations, rules and order issued under the law, and (iii) comply with all terms and
conditions stated under these Conditions.

The Issuer shall ensure that the ratio of Debt to Equity (the "Debt to Equity Ratio"), in
accordance with its Financial Statement, shall not exceed 3:1 (three to one) as at the last day
of the fourth quarter of each year.

For the purpose of this Condition 7.2;

"Debt" means liabilities that bear interest or are subject to discount, including guarantee and
aval liabilities that bear interest or are subject to discount, less cash and cash equivalents,
short-term restricted bank deposits, current investments and long-term restricted bank
deposits. However, "Debt" shall not include deposits received from customers as set out in the
relevant Financial Statement and bank guarantees.

"Equity" means shareholders' equity as set out in the relevant Financial Statement.

"Financial Statement” means audited financial statements of the Issuer prepared in
accordance with International Accounting Standard.

The Issuer shall arrange for a report setting out the Debt to Equity Ratio in accordance with
Condition 7.2, reviewed by the auditor of the Issuer, to be delivered to the Debentureholders'
Representative and the Registrar within 15 (fifteen) days from the date the relevant Financial
Statement is sent to the Tax Department, Ministry of Finance of the Lao PDR, to be kept and
made available for the Debentureholders' inspection by the Debentureholders' Representative
and the Registrar.

In the event that a default is made on the payment of any amount of principal or any interest or
any other sum in respect of any Debentures, the Issuer shall not make or pay any dividend so
long as such default has not been remedied, unless approval is obtained from the
Debentureholders' Meeting.

The Issuer shall not sell or dispose of any property or asset whether in whole or in part which
is material to the business operation of the Issuer, except for such sales or disposals that do not
have material adverse effect on the ability of the Issuer to repay its debt under the Debentures
to the Debentureholders or are in the normal course of business of the Issuer.

The Issuer shall apply for the registration of the Debentures with ThaiBMA and shall maintain
the Debentures as securities registered with ThaiBMA until all the Debentures are fully
redeemed.

Upon the occurrence of any event of default (as provided in Condition 13.1) or any event
which may constitute an event of default (i.e. an event which shall constitute an event of
default if the Issuer cannot take a remedial action within the required period of time) or upon
becoming aware of any litigation or arbitration proceedings against the Issuer which, if
adversely determined, might have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Issuer to
perform its payment obligations under these Conditions, the Issuer shall notify the
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Debentureholders' Representative of such event without delay from the date on which the
Issuer has knowledge of such event, including any actions taken by the Issuer or proposed to
be taken by the Issuer to remedy such event.

At any time upon request of the Debentureholder's Representative, the Issuer shall promptly
supply to the Debentureholders' Representative a certificate signed by the Issuer's authorized
director(s) certifying that neither an Event of Default (or if an Event of Default is continuing,
specifying the Event of Default and the steps, if any, being taken to remedy it) nor any
litigation or arbitration proceedings against the Issuer is outstanding or pending (apart from
any such events which the Issuer has previously informed the Debentureholders'
Representative (if any)).

If it becomes necessary to replace the Debentureholders' Representative or the Registrar, the
Issuer shall use its best endeavors to appoint a replacement Debentureholders' Representative or a
replacement Registrar (as the case may be) as soon as practicable, but in any case no later than 30
(thirty) days from the date on which the Issuer is aware of the necessity for such replacement.

The Issuer shall, in accordance with applicable Thai laws and regulations, deliver to the SEC
and the Debentureholders' Representative, and make available by way of posting on the
website www.ckpower.co.th (or a replacement website to be designated by the Issuer), copies
of English translations of its audited annual consolidated financial statements within, if
applicable, the same period as that required under applicable laws or regulations, but in any
case, shall be no later than 180 (one hundred and eighty) days from the end of the financial
year of the Issuer. If, after the Issue Date, such submission period to the SEC or method for
the submission is changed under the applicable laws or regulations, the Issuer shall comply
with the new submission period, method for the submission or requirements according to such
amended applicable laws or regulations, as the case may be.

INTEREST
Interest Rate and Interest Payment

Interest on the Debentures at the interest rate stated under Condition 2 shall be payable in
arrears to each Debentureholder on the Interest Payment Date.

Interest Calculation

The amount of interest payable in respect of any Debenture for any Interest Period shall be
calculated by multiplying (2) the product of the principal amount outstanding on each unit of
the Debentures as at the first day of such Interest Period (after deducting any repayment of
principal amount of that unit of Debenture made on that day, in the case of Tranche 3
Debentures) and the relevant Interest Rate applicable thereto by (b) the number of days in
respect of that Interest Period and dividing by 365 (three hundred and sixty-five), and
rounding the resulting figure to 6 (six) decimal places (in case the seventh decimal place is
equivalent to or more than 5 (five), the 6th (sixth) decimal place shall be rounded up one
decimal).

If respect of the final Interest Payment Date, the calculation of interest shall be subject to
Condition 9.2.

Default Interest
@) Upon a default on any payment by the Issuer under these Conditions and, in respect of

Tranche 3 Debentures, if any payment of any principal amount due is improperly
withheld or refused on the relevant Redemption Date, the Default Interest Rate shall


http://www.ckpower.co.th/

9.1

(b)

be charged on any unpaid amount of principal from the due date until the date on
which the Issuer makes a full payment, irrespective of whether or not the
Debentureholders’ Representative has notified the Issuer or declared default as
specified in Condition 13.2.

In such event, Condition 8.2 shall apply mutatis mutandis and the Interest Rate used in
Condition 8.2 shall be replaced by the Default Interest Rate.

PAYMENTS OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST

Payment Methods

(@)

(b)

Principal Payment: Principal due on the Maturity Date will be payable by the Issuer
through the Registrar to the Debentureholders whose names appear in the Register
Book on the relevant Record Date or, with respect to persons whose Debentures are
deposited with TSD, the persons whose names appear on the list of owners of the
Debentures maintained by TSD. Payments of principal on each Debenture will be
made to the Debentureholder by means of: (i) a Baht crossed cheque marked "A/C
Payee Only" drawn on a bank in Thailand in the name of the Debentureholder mailed
to the address of the relevant Debentureholder appearing on the Register Book; or (ii)
transferring funds into the bank account of the relevant Debentureholder opened with
a commercial bank in Thailand as informed in the subscription form or in writing by
the Debentureholders to the Registrar at least 15 (fifteen) Business Days prior to the
relevant payment date, or such other method as may be agreed from time to time by
the Issuer, the Debentureholders' Representative and the Registrar; provided that such
principal payment on the Maturity Date may only be made upon surrender of the
Debenture Certificates (except for the Debentures deposited with TSD) at the
principal office of the Registrar.

For the Principal payment, a Debentureholder whose Debentures are not deposited
with TSD is not required to surrender its Debenture Certificate to the Registrar, except
where there is any doubt or objection relating thereto, the Registrar or the Issuer may
request the Debentureholder for his Debenture Certificate to be inspected and
surrendered.

Interest Payment: Interest due on any Interest Payment Date will be payable by the
Issuer through the Registrar to the Debentureholders whose names appear in the
Register Book on the relevant Record Date or, with respect to persons whose
Debentures are deposited with TSD, the persons whose names appear on the list of the
owners of the Debentures maintained by TSD. Payments of interest on each
Debenture will be made to the Debentureholder by means of: (i) a Baht crossed
cheque marked "A/C Payee Only" drawn on a bank in Thailand in the name of the
Debentureholder mailed to the address of the relevant Debentureholder appearing on
the Register Book; or (ii) transferring funds into the bank account of the relevant
Debentureholder opened with a commercial bank in Thailand as informed in the
subscription form or in writing by the Debentureholders to the Registrar at least 15
(fifteen) Business Days prior to the relevant payment date, or such other method as
may be agreed from time to time by the Issuer, the Debentureholders' Representative
and the Registrar; provided that payment of interest with respect to the final Interest
Payment Date may only be made upon the surrender of the Debenture Certificates
(except for the Debentures deposited with TSD) at the principal office of the
Registrar.

For the final interest payment, a Debentureholder whose Debentures are not deposited
with TSD is not required to surrender its Debenture Certificate to the Registrar, except

10



9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

where there is any doubt or objection relating thereto, the Registrar or the Issuer may
request any Debentureholder for his Debenture Certificate to be inspected and
surrendered.

Non-Business Days

If any payment date under these Conditions (including, but not limited to the Maturity Date
and the Interest Payment Date) falls on a day that is not a Business Day, the relevant amount
due and payable shall be paid on the next Business Day (and no interest shall be calculated
with respect to any such postponement except for the final Interest Payment Date), with the
same force and effect as if made on the original payment date. In respect of the final Interest
Payment Date, interest shall accrue in accordance with these Conditions until, but excluding,
the actual date of payment.

REDEMPTION AND REPURCHASE OF DEBENTURES
Redemption

@) In respect of Tranche 1 Debentures and Tranche 2 Debentures, unless previously
redeemed, purchased or cancelled, the relevant Debentures will be redeemed at their
outstanding principal amount on the Maturity Date, together with interest accrued
thereon up to (but excluding) the Maturity Date.

(b) In respect of Tranche 3 Debentures, unless previously redeemed, purchased or
cancelled, each unit of Tranche 3 Debentures shall be partially redeemed on each
Redemption Date by payment of the amount of principal specified against such
Redemption Date as follows.

Installment | Redemption Date Outstanding Paid Principal Total Payment
Principal Amount Amount Per Unit
Per Unit Per Unit (Baht)
(Baht) (Baht)
1 5 October 2025 1,000.00 333.33 333.33
2 5 October 2026 667.67 333.33 666.66
3 5 October 2027 333.34 333.34 1,000.00

Purchase by the Issuer

The Issuer may at any time purchase the Debentures in any open market or otherwise and at
any price. If the Issuer makes a general tender offer to buy back the Debentures, the Issuer
must buy back the Debentures from all the Debentureholders who have tendered their
intention to sell the Debentures, on a pro rata basis.

Cancellation

Debentures that are redeemed or purchased by the Issuer must be cancelled and may not be re-
issued or resold. The Issuer must inform the Registrar of the Debentures purchased by it so
that the Registrar shall cancel such Debentures. The Issuer will also file a report on the buy-
back of the Debentures by it to ThaiBMA and the SEC as required by applicable laws and
regulations.

Redemption for Taxation Reasons

@) Subject to Condition 10.4(b) below, the Debentures may be redeemed at the option of
the Issuer in whole, but not in part, at any time, on giving not less than 30 (thirty) nor
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more than 60 (sixty) days' notice to the Debentureholders in accordance with
Condition 19 (which notice shall be irrevocable), if:

0] on the occasion of the next payment due under the Debentures, the Issuer has
or will become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided or referred to in
Condition 11.2 as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws or
regulations of the Lao PDR, or any political subdivision or any authority
thereof or therein having power to tax, or any change in the application or
official interpretation of such laws or regulations (including the cessation of
tax exemptions presently applicable), which change or amendment becomes
effective on or after the Issue Date; and

(i) such obligation cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking reasonable measures
available to it,

provided that no such notice of redemption shall be given earlier than 90 (ninety) days
prior to the earliest date on which the Issuer would be obliged to pay such additional
amounts where a payment in respect of the Debentures then due. Prior to the
publication of any notice of redemption pursuant to this Condition, the Issuer shall
deliver to the Debentureholders' Representative a certificate signed by two duly
authorized officers of the Issuer stating that the Issuer is entitled to effect such
redemption and setting forth a statement of facts showing that the conditions
precedent to the right of the Issuer so to redeem have occurred, and an opinion of
independent legal advisers of recognized standing to the effect that the Issuer has or
will become obliged to pay such additional amounts as a result of such change or
amendment.

Debentures redeemed pursuant to this Condition 10.4(a) will be redeemed at their
outstanding principal amount together with interest accrued to (but excluding) the date
of redemption.

(b) Prior to the lapse of 3 (three) years from the Issue Date, the Issuer will not be entitled
to exercise the redemption option as specified in Condition 10.4(a) above in
accordance with the MOF Notification unless the MOF Notification is amended to
permit such early redemption or a specific waiver or approval to redeem the
Debentures early is granted to the Issuer by the Ministry of Finance of Thailand.

TAXATION

Notwithstanding Condition 11.2 below, payment under the Debentures will be subject to
withholding tax in Thailand according to the Thai tax laws and the Issuer will not be required
to gross-up such Thai withholding tax.

Payment by the Issuer under the Debentures issued hereunder shall be exempted from any and
all taxes in the Lao PDR by virtue of the Concession Agreement.

PRESCRIPTION

Claims in respect of the principal and interest of the Debentures shall become unenforceable
unless the Debentures are presented for payment within a period of 10 (ten) years from the
relevant payment date in the case of principal and 5 (five) years from the relevant payment
date in the case of interest.

12
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13.1

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

If any of the following events occurs and is continuing (each, an "Event of Default"), the
Debentureholders' Representative shall deliver a default notice to the Issuer in compliance
with, and subject to, Condition 13.2 below:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

)

(9)

a default is made on the payment of any amount of principal or any interest due in
respect of any of the Debentures when and as the same ought to be paid in accordance
with these Conditions, however, such payment default shall not constitute an Event of
Default if it arises from a delay and/or mistake in funds transfer system beyond the
control of the Issuer and the Issuer has sufficient funds to make payment of such
principal or interest as they fall due, and the Issuer has made payment of such
principal or interest within 3 (three) days from the relevant due date;

a default is made on the performance or observance by the Issuer of any obligation,
condition or provision under the Debentures (other than any obligation for the
payment of any amount due in respect of any of the Debentures) and (but only in a
case where the Debentureholders' Representative considers such default to be capable
of being remedied) such default shall not be remedied to the Debentureholders'
Representative's satisfaction within 30 (thirty) days (or such longer period as the
Debentureholders’ Representative may permit) of first written notification from the
Debentureholders' Representative to the Issuer requiring the same to be remedied;

the Issuer shall cease to carry on the whole or substantially the whole of its business,
which might have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Issuer to perform its
payment obligations under these Conditions;

the shareholders meeting of the Issuer has resolved that the Issuer shall dispose of the
whole or a substantial part of its business or that the Issuer shall merge or amalgamate
with another entity (except in the ordinary course of business of the Issuer) which, in
accordance with a resolution of the Debentureholders' meeting, might have a material
adverse effect on the ability of the Issuer to perform its payment obligations under
these Conditions;

the Issuer fails to pay any indebtedness, having an aggregate nominal amount of more
than Baht 500,000,000 (five hundred million baht) (or the equivalent in any other
currency or currencies) when it becomes due and payable (following the giving of
such notice, if any, as is required under the document governing such indebtedness
and as extended by any applicable grace period) or such indebtedness was declared to
be prematurely due and payable due to a default by the Issuer, however, such failure
to pay which the Issuer is disputing in good faith and is under consideration of a court
of competent jurisdiction (for so long as there is no final judgement in relation to the
dispute) shall not constitute an Event of Default;

the Issuer is subject to any final judgments of a court of law or arbitration awards
ordering it, in an aggregate amount, to pay a sum of more than Baht 500,000,000 (five
hundred million baht) (or the equivalent in any other currency or currencies), unless
the Issuer is capable of paying such amount in accordance with such final judgments
or arbitration awards and such payment does not have a material adverse effect on the
ability of the Issuer to perform its payment obligations under these Conditions;

there is a change, restraint or cancellation of licence, certificate, letter of consent or
any rights and benefits that the Issuer has received from the relevant governmental
authorities, officials or persons which are necessary and required to be possessed or
used by the Issuer for the operation of its main business and such change, restraint, or

13
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(h)

(i)

1)

cancellation might have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Issuer to
perform its payment obligations under these Conditions;

the Issuer is subject to legal proceedings or order of a government authority that might
have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Issuer to perform its payment
obligations under these Conditions, or there is a change in or revocation of the Issuer's
power to operate its business, or any revenue or asset of the Issuer, whether in whole
or in part, has been seized, compulsorily acquired, expropriated or nationalized, and
such event might have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Issuer to perform
its payment obligations under these Conditions;

the Issuer is insolvent or there is any seizure or attachment of the assets of the Issuer
issued under a bankruptcy proceeding or the Issuer has undertaken any action that
may cause a bankruptcy proceeding to be initiated against it or institutes proceedings
to be adjudicated a voluntary bankrupt, which might have a material adverse effect on
the ability of the Issuer to perform its payment obligations under these Conditions, or
there is an order or resolution, duly issued or passed in accordance with applicable
law for the winding-up or dissolution of the Issuer; or

any reorganization proceeding is initiated against the Issuer under any applicable laws
or there is any appointment of a receiver, planner, plan administrator, trustee, assignee
or similar officers with respect to the Issuer or any revenue or asset of the Issuer
(except where such proceeding is discharged within 30 (thirty) days from its
commencement date).

If any Event of Default occurs and is continuing, and if

(@)
(b)

(©)

(d)

the Debentureholders' Representative deems appropriate; or

the Debentureholders' Representative has received a written demand from any one or
more of the Debentureholders together holding at least 50 (fifty) per cent of the total
outstanding principal amount of the Debentures; or

the Debentureholders’ Representative has received a resolution of the
Debentureholders' meeting; or

any of the Events of Default under Conditions 13.1(a), 13.1(i) or 13.1(j) has occurred,

the Debentureholders' Representative shall deliver a default notice to the Issuer informing the
Issuer of the occurrence of such Event of Default, declaring the Debentures to be immediately
due and payable and demanding payment of all outstanding principal amounts under the
Debentures together with interest accrued thereon until (but excluding) the date of repayment.
If the Issuer defaults in making a payment under any Debenture to any Debentureholder, if
otherwise not apparent or clearly proven to the contrary, it shall be presumed that such
defaults on payment have occurred to all the Debentures.

After the Debentureholders' Representative has delivered the default notice pursuant to
Condition 13.2,

(@)

(b)

the Debentureholders' Representative shall take any actions to cause the Issuer to
repay all the debts under the Debentures without further notice. Such actions include
filing a lawsuit against the Issuer in so far as legally possible; and

no Debentureholder shall be entitled to take any legal action directly against the Issuer
for enforcement of its rights unless the Debentureholders' Representative fails to
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institute proceedings against the Issuer and such failure shall have continued for a
period of 14 (fourteen) days and at the time the Debentureholder files a lawsuit
against the Issuer, the Debentureholders' Representative has not yet filed a lawsuit
against the Issuer to repay its debts.

MEETINGS OF DEBENTUREHOLDERS

The Issuer or the Debentureholders' Representative shall be entitled to call a
Debentureholders' meeting at any time. The Debentureholders' Representative shall promptly
convene a Debentureholders' meeting:

@) within 30 (thirty) days from its receipt of a written request from one or more
Debentureholder(s) together holding not less than 25 (twenty-five) per cent of the total
outstanding principal amount of the Debentures; or

(b) as soon as possible after the Debentureholders' Representative has become aware of
an occurrence of any of the following events:

0] an Event of Default has occurred and no default notice has been sent to the
Issuer as specified in Condition 13.2;

(i) a proposal to amend material terms of these Conditions has been made
pursuant to Condition 17.1; or

(iii)  an appointment of a new Debentureholders' Representative is required except
in the case where the Issuer has sent a notice to the Debentureholders
requesting their approval for the appointment of the new Debentureholders'
Representative pursuant to Condition 16.3(b).

A resolution duly passed at a duly convened meeting of the Debentureholders shall be binding
upon all Debentureholders, whether or not present at the meeting. The rules and procedures
for convening and conducting a meeting of the Debentureholders are as set out in Annex B to
these Conditions.

The Debentureholders’ Representative may adopt a resolution without holding a
Debentureholders' meeting if Debentureholders approve the action by placing their signatures
on a copy of the text of the resolution. Any such resolution shall be effective and duly bind all
the Debentureholders (regardless of whether or not a Debentureholder has executed or
accepted such resolution) when it has been signed by the Debentureholders holding the
aggregate number of votes required to pass such resolution in accordance with Clause 6 of
Annex B to these Conditions, provided that the counting of the number of votes is based on
the total outstanding amount of the Debentures. The duly signed copy or copies of the
resolution shall be delivered to the Debentureholders' Representative within a reasonable
period of time as determined by the Debentureholders' Representative and placed in the
minutes of the Debentureholders' meeting with a copy to the Registrar and the Issuer.

If there is only one Debentureholder, a written resolution, duly signed by such
Debentureholder, shall be treated as a resolution of a Debentureholders' meeting without
having to hold a Debentureholders’ meeting.

Any meeting of the Debentureholders under these Conditions shall be a joint meeting between
the Debentureholders of Tranche 1 Debentures, the Debentureholders of Tranche 2
Debentures and the Debentureholders of Tranche 3 Debentures using a joint quorum and
resolution, unless the subject matter for which the resolution is required affects the holders of
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a particular tranche of Debentures, in which case a quorum and resolution of the relevant
Debentureholders shall be required.

The Issuer shall be responsible for all reasonable costs and expenses incurred in connection
with the convening and holding of any meeting of the Debentureholders.

POWERS, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DEBENTUREHOLDERS'
REPRESENTATIVE

The Debentureholders' Representative shall act in good faith and shall be bound to exercise
the degree of care usually required from a person performing the business of the
Debentureholders’ Representative. The Debentureholders' Representative shall not be
responsible to the Debentureholders for any damages arising from the performance or non-
performance of its obligations, except those arising from willful misconduct, gross negligence
and/or bad faith in the performance of its obligations as provided in these Conditions, in the
Debentureholders' Representative Appointment Agreement or in any applicable law.

The Debentureholders' Representative shall duly perform and comply with its powers and
duties which are prescribed by the relevant laws and the SEC regulations as powers and duties
of a representative of Debentureholders appointed by virtue of the SEC's natification and as
specified in the Debentureholders' Representative Appointment Agreement, including those
powers and duties under these Conditions. The Debentureholders' Representative's powers,
duties and responsibilities include (but are not limited to) the following:

@) to act in accordance with these Conditions and the Debentureholders' Representative
Appointment Agreement and in the case where the Debentureholders' Representative
has the right to exercise its discretion to act under these Conditions, the
Debentureholders' Representative may at liberty use its discretion by upholding the
interest of the Debentureholders as the main objective;

(b) to enter into an agreement with the Issuer in respect of the following matters without
having to first obtain consent from a meeting of the Debentureholders:

0] amending or modifying these Conditions and/or any agreement relating to the
Debentures in any respect that the Debentureholders' Representative deems to
be beneficial to the Debentureholders or in a manner that would not prejudice
the Debentureholder's rights;

(i) amending or modifying these Conditions and/or any agreement relating to the
Debentures in order to correct any manifest errors or to ensure they are in line
with the relevant law and regulations; and

(iii)  providing a waiver or exemption in respect of any event specified in
Condition 13.1 at any time, the occurrence of which would otherwise require
the Debentureholders' Representative to proceed in accordance with
Condition 13.2, if the Debentureholders' Representative considers that such
waiver or exemption is appropriate, taking into account the interest of the
Debentureholders as its main concern;

(c) to monitor the Issuer's and compliance with, and performance of, its obligations under
these Conditions;

(d) to receive and keep in custody the original documents and assets including security (if
any) which the Debentureholders' Representative must receive or hold for the benefit
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of all Debentureholders in connection with the performance of its duties under these
Conditions and the Debentures;

(e) to convene meetings of Debentureholders as required under these Conditions and to
attend all meetings of the Debentureholders and to give its opinions to the meetings on
suitable courses of action in cases where the Issuer fails to comply with these
Conditions or in other cases which are or might be prejudicial to the interests of the
Debentureholders;

(f to promptly make a report to the Debentureholders on important matters which have
been carried out pursuant to the powers and duties of the Debentureholders'
Representative;

(o) to facilitate the inspection by the Debentureholders, at the principal office of the
Debentureholders’ Representative during its normal office hours, of copies of the
financial statements, these Conditions, the Debentureholders' Representative
Appointment Agreement, the Registrar Appointment Agreement and the Paying
Agent Appointment Agreement and other reports provided by the Issuer to the
Debentureholders' Representative; and

(h) in the event that the Debentureholders' Representative is for any reason disqualified
from acting in its capacity as Debentureholders’ Representative, to immediately
inform the Issuer in writing of such disqualification.

The Debentureholders' Representative shall perform its duties and obligations in good faith for
the interest and benefit of the Debentureholders in accordance with these Conditions, the
Debentureholders’ Representative Appointment Agreement and all applicable laws. The
Debentureholders' Representative shall not be liable to any person for damages arising from
its acts in reliance upon affidavits issued by authorized directors of the Issuer, or opinions,
recommendations or information supplied by experts given specifically to the
Debentureholders' Representative, if the Debentureholders' Representative acts in good faith
with such level of duty and care as can be expected from a professional entity acting as a
debentureholders' representative.

Any material amendment or modification of the Debentureholders' Representative
Appointment Agreement which may adversely affect any interest and benefit of the
Debentureholders must be approved in advance by a meeting of the Debentureholders.

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF THE DEBENTUREHOLDERS
REPRESENTATIVE

The Issuer has appointed the Debentureholders' Representative to act as a representative of the
Debentureholders, in full compliance with all applicable laws as well as the Notification of the
Capital Market Supervisory Board No. TorChor. 37/2552 Re: Qualifications Required for the
Debentureholders' Representative and Performance of the Debentureholders' Representative
according to its Powers and Duties dated 3 August 2009 (as amended) and any other relevant
laws and regulations concerning qualifications of a debentureholders' representative. The
Debentureholders' Representative has been approved by the SEC and other relevant authorities
to perform its duties and functions as a representative of the Debentureholders, as required by
applicable laws and regulations. The Debentureholders are deemed to have accepted and
consented to the Issuer's appointment of the Debentureholders’ Representative as the
Debentureholders’ Representative pursuant to the terms of the Debentureholders'
Representative Appointment Agreement and to ratify any action the Debentureholders'
Representative may have done for or on behalf of the Debentureholders prior to and after the
subscription or accepting the transfer of the Debentures.
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Removal of the Debentureholders’ Representative is required under the following
circumstances:

@) the Debentureholders' Representative becomes disqualified to act as a representative
of Debentureholders and fails to rectify the event of such disqualification within 60
(sixty) days from the date of the disqualification;

(b) a Debentureholders' meeting passes a resolution to terminate the appointment of the
Debentureholders' Representative due to its negligent performance or failure to
perform its duties;

(c) the Debentureholders' Representative is in breach of any provision of the
Debentureholders' Representative Appointment Agreement or these Conditions and
such breach has not been remedied within 30 (thirty) days from the date the Issuer or
any one or more of the Debentureholders holding together at least 25 (twenty-five) per
cent of the total outstanding principal amount of the Debentures sends a written notice
to the Debentureholders' Representative demanding such remedy; and

(d) the appointment of the Debentureholders' Representative is terminated in accordance
with the Debentureholders' Representative Appointment Agreement.

In case of a removal of the Debentureholders' Representative, the Debentureholders'
Representative or the Issuer shall proceed in accordance with either of the following:

@) call a meeting of the Debentureholders to approve the appointment of a new
Debentureholders' Representative; or

(b) issue a notice to all Debentureholders requesting approval for the appointment of the
new Debentureholders' Representative, and if such request is not rejected in writing
by Debentureholders holding more than 10 (ten) per cent of the total outstanding
principal amount of the Debentures within 30 (thirty) days from the date of such
notice, it shall be deemed that all Debentureholders approve the appointment of the
new Debentureholders' Representative.

The existing Debentureholders' Representative shall in any event continue to perform its
duties and functions in order to protect the Debentureholders' interests under these Conditions
until the new Debentureholders' Representative is legally appointed in accordance with these
Conditions, applicable laws and regulations.

If the Debentureholders’ Representative is replaced, the Issuer and/or the new
Debentureholders' Representative, as the case may be, shall, if required by applicable laws and
regulations, apply for approval from the SEC. After the Issuer has appointed the new
Debentureholders' Representative, the Issuer shall notify each Debentureholder in writing of
such appointment within 30 (thirty) days from the date thereof and the Debentureholders'
Representative who has been terminated shall promptly hand over all assets, information and
documents currently held by it to the new Debentureholders' Representative and shall fully co-
operate with the new Debentureholders' Representative so as to ensure an orderly transition
and the proper performance and assumption of duties by the new Debentureholders'
Representative.

AMENDMENT TO THESE CONDITIONS
Except as specified in Conditions 15.2(b)(i) and 15.2(b)(ii), any amendment to these

Conditions requires the approval of the Issuer and the Debentureholders' meeting in
accordance with Annex B to these Conditions.
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The Debentureholders' Representative may amend any Conditions as specified in Conditions
15.2 (b)(i) and 15.2(b)(ii). The Debentureholders' Representative shall promptly inform the
Issuer in writing of the amendment to these Conditions made by the Debentureholders'
Representative pursuant to Condition 19.

The lIssuer shall deliver the amended Conditions to the Registrar and the Debentureholders'
Representative and shall cause the Registrar or the Debentureholders' Representative to
deliver copies of such amended Conditions and other relating document(s) (if any) to the SEC
and ThaiBMA within 15 (fifteen) days from the effective date of such amendment and to the
Debentureholders upon written request.

REPLACEMENT OF DEBENTURE CERTIFICATES

If a Debenture Certificate is lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced, destroyed or damaged in any
manner, the relevant Debentureholder whose name appears in the Register Book shall be
entitled to request that the Registrar issue a replacement certificate, subject to the payment of
reasonable fees and expenses to the Registrar for the replacement certificate and the delivery
of relevant documents reasonably required by the Registrar. Mutilated or defaced Debenture
Certificates must be surrendered before replacements will be issued. The Registrar shall issue
a replacement Debenture Certificate to the Debentureholder within 14 (fourteen) Business
Days from the date of the Registrar's receipt of the request and other documents required by it
and the Registrar shall record in the Register Book the cancelled Debenture Certificates.

NOTICES
Notices to Debentureholders and the Debentureholders' Representative

@) Notices to Debentureholders will be deemed to be validly given if sent by registered
mail (or the equivalent) or (if posted to an overseas address) by courier to the address
of the Debentureholder specified in the Register Book or, with respect to persons
whose Debentures are deposited with TSD, to the address specified by TSD for such
Debentureholder; and

(b) Notices to the Debentureholders' Representative shall be validly given if sent to the
address or fax number of the Debentureholders' Representative specified in the
Debentureholders' Representative Appointment Agreement.

Neither the failure to give notice nor any defect in any notice given to any particular
Debentureholder shall affect the sufficiency of any notice with respect to other
Debentureholders.

Notices to the Issuer and the Registrar

@) Notices to the Registrar shall be validly given if sent to the address or fax number of
the Registrar specified in the Registrar Appointment Agreement;

(b) Notices to the Issuer shall be validly given if sent to the address or fax number of the
Issuer as specified below (or as otherwise notified from time to time to the
Debentureholders' Representative and the Registrar):

THE ISSUER
Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited

Address: 215 Lanexang Avenue
Vientiane
Lao PDR
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20.

21.
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Telephone: +856 21 251 718
Fax: +856 21 252 060
Attention: Managing Director

THE ISSUER'S REPRESENTATIVE IN THAILAND

The Legists Group

Address: Offices of N&K Ltd.
990 Abdulrahim Place, 9th Floor, Room No. 901-1
Rama IV Road, Silom, Bangrak, Bangkok 10500

Thailand
Telephone: +662 636 1111
Fax: +662 636 0000
Attention: Managing Director

(c) Any communication made or delivered by one person to another under these
Conditions will only be effective:

0] if sent by fax, when a transmission report showing the successful transmission
of the facsimile is received by the sender;

(i) if sent by registered mail, 7 (seven) days after the dispatch; or

(iii)  if sent by courier, 48 (forty-eight) hours from the date of delivery to the
courier service.

All notices and communications to be made to the Issuer in relation to the Debentures and
these Conditions shall be made in the English language, unless as otherwise required under the
applicable laws or any other agreement, in which case an English translation thereof shall be
provided to the Issuer.

THE ISSUER'S REPRESENTATIVE IN THAILAND

The Issuer has appointed The Legists Group, whose address is specified in Condition 19.3(b)
as its representative in Thailand for the purposes of (i) receiving writs, summons, letters,
orders or any other documents relating to the Debentures in Thailand on behalf of the Issuer;
and (ii) contacting relevant government authorities relating the issue and offer of the
Debentures in Thailand on behalf of the Issuer. If, for any reason, the existing Issuer's
Representative ceases to act as the Issuer's representative in Thailand or ceases to be registered
in Thailand, the Issuer must forthwith appoint a new Issuer's Representative and inform the
Debentureholders' Representative and the Registrar of the appointment of such new lIssuer's
Representative together with its contact details as soon as practicable. In such case, the Issuer
agrees to procure that the existing Issuer's Representative shall continue to perform its duties
as specified above until a new Issuer's Representative is appointed. Nothing herein shall affect
the right to serve proceedings in any other manner permitted by law.

CURRENCY INDEMNITY
The Issuer shall make payment in respect of any sum payable under these Conditions in Baht.
If any sum is due from the Issuer under these Conditions (a "Sum"), or any order, judgment or

award given or made in any jurisdiction in relation to a Sum, has to be converted from Baht
(the "First Currency") in which that Sum is payable into another currency for the purpose of:

(@) making or filing a claim or proof against the Issuer, including the winding-up of the
Issuer; or
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22.

22.1

22.2

22.3

22.4

(b) obtaining or enforcing an order, judgment or award in relation to any litigation or
arbitration proceedings,

the Issuer shall as an independent obligation, within 7 (seven) Business Days of demand,
indemnify the Debentureholder(s) to whom that Sum is payable against any cost, loss or
liability arising out of or as a result of the conversion including any discrepancy between (i)
the rate of exchange used to convert that Sum from the First Currency into such another
currency and (ii) the rate or rates of exchange available to that person at the time of its receipt
of that Sum.

The indemnity specified under this Condition 21 shall constitute separate and independent
obligations from the other obligations contained herein, shall give rise to a separate and
independent cause of action, and shall apply irrespective of any indulgence granted by any
Debentureholder from time to time, and shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding
any judgment or order for a liquidated sum or sums in respect of amounts due hereunder or
under any such judgment or order, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable laws.

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

These Conditions and the Debentures shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of Thailand. To the extent of discrepancy or inconsistency between any provision of
these Conditions and any laws or notifications applicable to the Debentures, the provisions of
such laws or notifications applicable to the Debentures shall supersede only the parts of these
Conditions which give rise to such discrepancy or inconsistency.

The Issuer agrees that any legal action arising out of or relating to these Conditions may be
brought in the courts of Thailand and submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of such courts.

Nothing in these Conditions shall limit the right of the Debentureholders' Representative
and/or the Debentureholders to commence any legal action against the Issuer and/or its assets
in any other jurisdiction or to serve process in any manner permitted by law, and the taking of
proceedings in any jurisdiction shall, to the full extent permitted by applicable laws of the
relevant jurisdictions, not preclude the Debentureholders' Representative and/or the
Debentureholders from taking proceedings in any other jurisdiction whether concurrently or not.

In the case where the Issuer has acquired or will subsequently acquire immunity from the
proceedings in respect of itself or its property, the Issuer shall have waived such immunity,
except immunity in respect of its property used for diplomatic or consular missions, property
of a military nature, and property located in its territory and dedicated to a public or
governmental use as distinguished from the property dedicated to commercial use.

These Conditions are made on 5 October 2017, and shall be effective from the Issue Date.

NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED

as Issuer

By:

([])
Authorized Signatory
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(Form of Debenture Certificate in respect of Tranche 1 Debentures and Tranche 2 Debentures)

Certificate of name registered, unsecured, unsubordinated debentures Registration No. [*]
with a Debentureholders' Representative Registered on [*]

NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated under the law of the Lao People's Democratic Republic)

THE DEBENTURES OF NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED NO. 1/2017 TRANCHE [e] DUE [e]
Issue Date: 5 October 2017 Maturity Date: 5 October [e]  Term: [e] years Nominal Amount; Baht 1,000 each  Total Offering Amount: [e] units Total Issue Size: Baht [e]

Interest Rate: [e] per cent per annum  Payable: semi-annually Paid by (i) account-payee-only cheque sent by mail to the Debentureholder; or (ii) transferring funds into the bank account of the relevant
Debentureholder opened with a commercial bank in Thailand, or such other way as may be agreed from time to time by the Issuer, the
Debentureholders' Representative and the Registrar, according to the procedures and conditions set forth in paragraph 2.3 on the reverse side of
this Debenture Certificate.

Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited (the "Issuer™) will redeem the Debentures on the Maturity Date which is 5 October [e] by: (i) issuing account-payee-only cheque in the name of the
Debentureholder; or (ii) transferring funds into the bank account of the relevant Debentureholder opened with a commercial bank in Thailand, or such other way as may be agreed from time to

time by the Issuer, the Debentureholders' Representative and the Registrar.

Name of Debentureholder [®]
Debentureholder Registration No. [e] No. of Debentures (Units) [®] Debenture Certificate No. [®]
Issue Date of the Debenture Certificate [o] Total Principal Amount (Baht) [e]

This Debenture Certificate is subject to the Terms and Conditions of the Debentures in relation to The Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 1 Due 2020,
The Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 2 Due 2024 and The Amortized Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 3 Due

2027 dated 5 October 2017 (as amended) (the 'Conditions") submitted to the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Debentures constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer which rank pari passu among themselves and will rank at least pari passu with all other
present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, save for such as may be preferred by mandatory provisions of applicable law.

The Issuer has registered a transfer restriction of the Debentures with the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and is bound by such transfer restriction to procure that no
Debenture will be transferred to any person other than those qualified as "Institutional Investors" and "High Net Worth Investors" in accordance with the Notification of the Securities and
Exchange Commission No. KorChor. 5/2552 Re: Determination of Definitions Used in the Notifications on the Issue and Sale of All Types of Debt Instruments dated 15 March 2009, as may
from time to time be amended, modified, supplemented or replaced. As a result, the Issuer and/or the Registrar will not accept or register any transfer of Debentures to any person who is not
qualified as such Institutional Investor or High Net Worth Investors referred to above (collectively, the "Qualified Investors"), unless by way of inheritance.

In addition, according to applicable Lao laws and regulations, the offer for sale and the terms and conditions of the Debentures in Thailand has been: (i) acknowledged by the Bank of The Lao
People's Democratic Republic (the “BOL”) under the Letter No. [+] dated [+] issued by the BOL to the Issuer; and (ii) endorsed and acknowledged by the Lao Securities Commission Office (the
“LSCO”) under the Certificate No. [¢] dated [*] issued by the LSCO, by virtue of and in compliance with the Decision on Offering of Debenture for Sale in Foreign Country issued by the Lao
Securities Commission, dated 26 October 2016, as may from time to time be amended, modified, supplemented or replaced (the “Decision N0.0022/LSC”).

Authorized signatory / Registrar
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Unless otherwise specified in this Debenture Certificate, the defined terms used in this Debenture Certificate shall have the meaning given to them in the Conditions.
Summary of key terms relating to the payments and redemption of the Debentures:

1.

2.2

2.3

4.

The Debentures are unsecured and unsubordinated debentures with a Debentureholders' Representative in the name-registered Debenture Certificate.
Debentureholders' Representative: Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Registrar: Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited ("TSD")

Paying Agent: Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Interest calculation period and procedures for interest payment and redemption of the Debentures:

Interest shall be payable semi-annually and shall be paid on 5 April and on 5 October of each year throughout the term of the Debentures and the first payment of interest shall be made
on 5 April 2018 and the last interest payment on the Maturity Date. If the Interest Payment Date is not a Business Day, such payment shall be made on the following Business Day.

The Issuer shall redeem the Debentures on the Maturity Date by making payments of all outstanding principal under the Debentures and the final interest. If the Maturity Date is not a
Business Day, such payment shall be made on the following Business Day.

The Issuer shall pay interest in each installment (as specified in paragraph 2.1 above) and principal (as specified in paragraph 2.2 above) to the Debentureholders by: (i) a Baht crossed
check marked "A/C Payee Only" drawn on a bank in Thailand in the name of the Debentureholder mailed to the address of the relevant Debentureholder; or (ii) transferring funds into
the bank account of the relevant Debentureholder opened with a commercial bank in Thailand as informed in the subscription form or in writing by the Debentureholders to the
Registrar at least 15 (fifteen) Business Days prior to the relevant payment date, or such other way as may be agreed from time to time by the Issuer, the Debentureholders'
Representative and the Registrar. In this regard, for the principal repayment and the final interest payment, the Issuer shall not be required to make such payments until the
Debentureholders whose Debentures are not deposited with TSD have surrendered the Debenture Certificate at the principal office of the Registrar. Such Debentureholders may
surrender the Debenture Certificate prior to the payment date and the Registrar shall issue a written acknowledgement of receipt thereof as evidence.

The closure of the Register Book

The Issuer shall cause the Registrar to close the Register Book on the 14th day prior to the Interest Payment Date, the Maturity Date or the meeting date of the Debentureholders or any
other date for any other purpose as specified in the Conditions in order to suspend the transfer of the Debentures for the purpose of determining the rights of the Debentureholders.

If the closure date of the Register Book is not a Business Day, the Register Book shall be closed on the following Business Day.
Other details and conditions are as specified in the Conditions.

Please read 1)

An applicant for the registration of a Debenture transfer must complete the Debenture transfer registration form for each transfer, and deliver such form to the
Registrar.

2) For the first transferee of the Debentures from the Debentureholder whose name appears on the front of this Debenture Certificate, a certified copy of the affidavit
issued by the Ministry of Commerce which is not more than 1 (one) year old and (a) certified copy(ies) of the I.D. card of the authorized person(s) must be submitted
together with this Debenture Certificate.

3) When a transferee wishes to transfer the Debentures, such transferee must affix exactly the same signature as when he acquires the transfer of such Debentures. Any
change of authorized signatory(ies) must be substantiated by the documents referred to in item (2) above.

Signature of Transferor

Signature of Transferee (who wishes to have his name entered
in the Register Book)

Full Name of Transferee in Block Letters

Authorized Signature of the Registrar with the seal of
the Registrar/Issuer (if any)

1

Signature of Transferor

(Signature of Transferee)

(Block Letters)

2

Signature of Transferor

(Signature of Transferee)

(Block Letters)

3

Signature of Transferor

(Signature of Transferee)

(Block Letters)




(Form of Debenture Certificate in respect of Tranche 3 Debentures)

Certificate of name registered, unsecured, unsubordinated and amortized debentures Registration No. [*]
with a Debentureholders' Representative Registered on [*]

NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated under the law of the Lao People's Democratic Republic)

THE AMORTIZED DEBENTURES OF NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED NO. 1/2017 TRANCHE 3 DUE 2027

Issue Date: 5 October 2017 Maturity Date: 5 October 2027 Term: 10 years Nominal Amount: Baht 1,000 each Total Offering Amount: 3,600,000 units ~ Total Issue Size: Baht 3,600,000,000

Interest Rate: 3.69 per cent per annum Payable: semi-annually Paid by (i) account-payee-only cheque sent by mail to the Debentureholder; or (ii) transferring funds into the bank account of the relevant
Debentureholder opened with a commercial bank in Thailand, or such other way as may be agreed from time to time by the Issuer, the
Debentureholders' Representative and the Registrar, according to the procedures and conditions set forth in paragraph 2.3 on the reverse side of
this Debenture Certificate.

Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited (the "Issuer™) will redeem each unit of the Debentures in installments on the Redemption Dates as specified in the Schedule of Amortizing Repayment of
Principal appearing on the back of this Certificate by: (i) issuing account-payee-only cheque in the name of the Debentureholder; or (ii) transferring funds into the bank account of the relevant

Debentureholder opened with a commercial bank in Thailand, or such other way as may be agreed from time to time by the Issuer, the Debentureholders' Representative and the Registrar.

Name of Debentureholder [®]
Debentureholder Registration No. [®] No. of Debentures (Units) [®] Debenture Certificate No. [®]
Issue Date of the Debenture Certificate [®] Total Principal Amount (Baht) [e]

This Debenture Certificate is subject to the Terms and Conditions of the Debentures in relation to The Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 1 Due 2020,
The Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 2 Due 2024 and The Amortized Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 3 Due

2027 dated 5 October 2017 (as amended) (the "'Conditions") submitted to the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Debentures constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer which rank pari passu among themselves and will rank at least pari passu with all other
present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, save for such as may be preferred by mandatory provisions of applicable law.

The Issuer has registered a transfer restriction of the Debentures with the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and is bound by such transfer restriction to procure that no
Debenture will be transferred to any person other than those qualified as “Institutional Investors” and "High Net Worth Investors" in accordance with the Notification of the Securities and
Exchange Commission No. KorChor. 5/2552 Re: Determination of Definitions Used in the Notifications on the Issue and Sale of All Types of Debt Instruments dated 15 March 2009, as may
from time to time be amended, modified, supplemented or replaced. As a result, the Issuer and/or the Registrar will not accept or register any transfer of Debentures to any person who is not
qualified as such Institutional Investor or High Net Worth Investors referred to above (collectively, the "Qualified Investors"), unless by way of inheritance.

In addition, according to applicable Lao laws and regulations, the offer for sale and the terms and conditions of the Debentures in Thailand has been: (i) acknowledged by the Bank of The Lao
People's Democratic Republic (the “BOL”) under the Letter No. [¢] dated [*] issued by the BOL to the Issuer; and (ii) endorsed and acknowledged by the Lao Securities Commission Office (the
“LSCO”) under the Certificate No. [*] dated [*] issued by the LSCO, by virtue of and in compliance with the Decision on Offering of Debenture for Sale in Foreign Country issued by the Lao
Securities Commission, dated 26 October 2016, as may from time to time be amended, modified, supplemented or replaced (the “Decision N0.0022/LSC”).

Authorized signatory / Registrar
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Unless otherwise specified in this Debenture Certificate, the defined terms used in this Debenture Certificate shall have the meaning given to them in the Conditions.
Summary of key terms relating to the payments and redemption of the Debentures:

1.

2.2

2.3

4.

The Debentures are unsecured, unsubordinated and amortized debentures with a Debentureholders' Representative in the name-registered Debenture Certificate.

Debentureholders' Representative: Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Registrar: Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited ("TSD")

Paying Agent: Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Interest calculation period and procedures for interest payment and redemption of the Debentures:

Interest shall be payable semi-annually and shall be paid on 5 April and on 5 October of each year throughout the term of the Debentures and the first payment of interest shall be made
on 5 April 2018 and the last interest payment on the Maturity Date. If the Interest Payment Date is not a Business Day, such payment shall be made on the following Business Day.

The Issuer shall redeem each unit of the Debentures in installments on the Redemption Dates as specified in the following Schedule of Amortizing Repayment of Principal. If the
Redemption Date is not a Business Day, such payment shall be made on the following Business Day.

Installment Redemption Date Outstanding Principal Amount
Per Unit (Baht)

Paid Principal Amount Total Payment
Per Unit (Baht) Per Unit (Baht)

1 5 October 2025 1,000.00 333.33 333.33

2 5 October 2026 667.67 333.33 666.66

3 5 October 2027 333.34 333.34 1,000.00

The Issuer shall pay interest in each installment (as specified in paragraph 2.1 above) and principal (as specified in paragraph 2.2 above) to the Debentureholders by: (i) a Baht crossed
check marked "A/C Payee Only" drawn on a bank in Thailand in the name of the Debentureholder mailed to the address of the relevant Debentureholder; or (ii) transferring funds into
the bank account of the relevant Debentureholder opened with a commercial bank in Thailand as informed in the subscription form or in writing by the Debentureholders to the
Registrar at least 15 (fifteen) Business Days prior to the relevant payment date, or such other way as may be agreed from time to time by the Issuer, the Debentureholders'
Representative and the Registrar. In this regard, for the principal repayment and the final interest payment, the Issuer shall not be required to make such payments until the
Debentureholders whose Debentures are not deposited with TSD have surrendered the Debenture Certificate at the principal office of the Registrar. Such Debentureholders may
surrender the Debenture Certificate prior to the payment date and the Registrar shall issue a written acknowledgement of receipt thereof as evidence.

The closure of the Register Book

The Issuer shall cause the Registrar to close the Register Book on the 14th day prior to the Interest Payment Date, the Redemption Date, the Maturity Date or the meeting date of the
Debentureholders or any other date for any other purpose as specified in the Conditions in order to suspend the transfer of the Debentures for the purpose of determining the rights of
the Debentureholders.

If the closure date of the Register Book is not a Business Day, the Register Book shall be closed on the following Business Day.

Other details and conditions are as specified in the Conditions.

Please read 1)

An applicant for the registration of a Debenture transfer must complete the Debenture transfer registration form for each transfer, and deliver such form to the
Registrar.

2) For the first transferee of the Debentures from the Debentureholder whose name appears on the front of this Debenture Certificate, a certified copy of the affidavit
issued by the Ministry of Commerce which is not more than 1 (one) year old and (a) certified copy(ies) of the I.D. card of the authorized person(s) must be submitted
together with this Debenture Certificate.

3) When a transferee wishes to transfer the Debentures, such transferee must affix exactly the same signature as when he acquires the transfer of such Debentures. Any
change of authorized signatory(ies) must be substantiated by the documents referred to in item (2) above.

Signature of Transferor

Signature of Transferee (who wishes to have his name entered
in the Register Book)

Full Name of Transferee in Block Letters

Authorized Signature of the Registrar with the seal of
the Registrar/Issuer (if any)

1

Signature of Transferor

(Signature of Transferee)

(Block Letters)

2

Signature of Transferor

(Signature of Transferee)

(Block Letters)

3

Signature of Transferor

(Signature of Transferee)

(Block Letters)




3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

ANNEX B
REQUIREMENTS FOR THE MEETING OF DEBENTUREHOLDERS

Calling Meetings

The Issuer or the Debentureholders' Representative may call a meeting of the
Debentureholders by requesting the Registrar to send notice of the meeting by registered mail
to the Debentureholders and the Issuer or the Debentureholders' Representative (who is not
the person calling for the meeting) at least 7 (seven) days (excluding the date of delivery of
such notice of the meeting and the meeting date) prior to the proposed meeting date. Such
notice shall be in the English and Thai languages and shall specify the date, time and place for
the meeting, the agenda of the meeting and the identity of the party calling the meeting. The
Registrar shall deliver notice of the meeting to all Debentureholders whose names and
addresses appear in the Register Book or in the record of TSD on the Record Date.

Eligibility to Attend Meetings

The following persons are eligible to attend each meeting of the Debentureholders:
@) the Debentureholders, the Issuer and the Debentureholders' Representative;

(b) the Debentureholders may appoint another Debentureholder(s) or any person
("Proxy") to attend the meeting and vote on their behalf, by executing a written proxy
appointment in the form as set out by the Registrar, available at the principal office of
the Registrar, provided that the original proxy form and supporting documents
required by the Registrar must be submitted to the Registrar prior to the time
scheduled for the meeting;

(c) on the request of the Issuer and/or the Debentureholders' Representative, financial
advisors, legal advisors or other persons involved with the matters to be discussed at
the meeting; and

(d) any person permitted by the chairman of the meeting to attend the meeting for
observation.

Quorum Requirements

Except with respect to meetings of Debentureholders convened to approve the matters set out
in Clause 6.3 and Clause 6.4, a quorum of a meeting of Debentureholders shall be constituted
by the presence of at least two Debentureholders holding in aggregate not less than 25 (twenty-
five) per cent of the outstanding Debentures.

If a meeting is adjourned due to the lack of a quorum as required by Clause 3.1, the quorum
for a subsequent meeting shall be constituted by the presence of two or more
Debentureholders, regardless of the aggregate number of Debentures held by them.

A quorum of a meeting of the Debentureholders convened to consider the matters set out in
Clause 6.3 shall be constituted by the presence of at least two Debentureholders holding in
aggregate not less than 50 (fifty) per cent of the outstanding Debentures. If a meeting is
adjourned due to the lack of a quorum as required by this Clause 3.3, the quorum for a
subsequent meeting shall be constituted by the presence of at least two Debentureholders
holding in aggregate not less than 25 (twenty-five) per cent of the outstanding Debentures.

A quorum of a meeting of the Debentureholders convened to consider the matters set out in
Clause 6.4 shall be constituted by the presence of at least two Debentureholders holding in
aggregate not less than 66 (sixty-six) per cent of the outstanding Debentures. If a meeting is
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5.2

6.1

6.2

adjourned due to the lack of a quorum as required by this Clause 3.4, the quorum for a
subsequent meeting shall be constituted by the presence of at least two Debentureholders
holding in aggregate not less than 33 (thirty-three) per cent of the outstanding Debentures.

Chairman of the Meeting

The Debentureholders' Representative or such person authorized by the Debentureholders'
Representative shall preside as chairman of the meeting. Should the chairman of the meeting
be absent upon a lapse of 45 (forty-five) minutes from the time scheduled for the meeting, the
meeting shall elect any Debentureholder to preside over such meeting.

Adjournment of the Meeting

At any meeting of the Debentureholders, upon a lapse of 45 (forty-five) minutes from the time
scheduled for the meeting, should the number of the Debentureholders attending the meeting
remain insufficient to constitute a quorum, the chairman of the meeting shall adjourn the
meeting as follows:

@) If the meeting was called by the Issuer or the Debentureholders' Representative, the
chairman of the meeting shall adjourn the meeting to the date, time and place as
specified by the chairman. The date for the adjourned meeting shall not be less than 7
(seven) days but not more than 14 (fourteen) days from the previous meeting date,
unless the Issuer and the Debentureholders' Representative agree not to call another
meeting. In addition, the matters to be considered and resolved at the adjourned
meeting must be only those pending from the previous meeting;

(b) If the meeting was called by the Debentureholders, no adjourned meeting shall be
called as provided by paragraph (a) above; and

(©) If the meeting was called due to the absence of a quorum at the previous meeting, no
adjourned meeting shall be called as provided by paragraph (a) above.

The Registrar shall deliver the notice of any adjourned meeting to the Issuer, the
Debentureholders' Representative and the Debentureholders who were sent notices of the
previous meeting, not less than 3 (three) days prior to the adjourned meeting (excluding the
date of the notice of the meeting and the meeting date). Such notice of the meeting shall
specify the date, time and place for the meeting, the agenda of the meeting and quorum
required for the adjourned meeting.

Resolutions of the Meeting

Resolutions on any matters by the meeting of the Debentureholders shall be decided by a show
of hands or casting of votes as selected by the chairman of the meeting. The votes held by each
of the Debentureholders will be equal to the number of Debentures held by them and one unit
of Debentures shall be entitled to one vote. In the case of an equal vote, the chairman of the
meeting shall have a decisive (casting) vote (for both a show of hands and secret ballot) in
addition to the votes that the chairman of the meeting may be entitled to cast in his or her
capacity as a Debentureholder or a Proxy.

Resolutions of the meeting of the Debentureholders on any matters other than those specified
in Clauses 6.3 and 6.4 shall be decided by a majority of votes of the Debentureholders
attending the meeting and casting their votes.



6.3

6.4

6.5

Resolutions of the meeting of the Debentureholders on any of the following matters shall be
decided by a majority of votes representing not less than 66 (sixty-six) per cent of all votes of
the Debentureholders attending the meeting and casting their votes.

@) any amendment or waiver to the Conditions other than those matters specified in
Clause 6.4;

(b) any matters in relation to Condition 7.4 or Condition 13.1(d) of the Conditions; and

(c) any replacement of the Debentureholders' Representative and the appointment of new
Debentureholders' Representative.

Resolutions of the meeting of the Debentureholders on any of the following matters shall be
decided by a majority of votes representing not less than 75 (seventy-five) per cent of all votes
of the Debentureholders attending the meeting and casting their votes.

@ the repayment of Debentures by way of conversion of the Debentures into shares,
other Debentures or other property of the Issuer or any person;

(b) any amendment to the Maturity Date or the due date for any payment in respect of the
Debentures;

(©) any amendment to, reduction, cancellation, or change of the security, the amount of
principal, interest and/or any other sum due or payable in respect of the Debentures;

(d) a change of the currency of any payment to be made in respect of the Debentures;

(e) any amendment to the requirements for the meeting of the Debentureholders in
relation to quorum (Clause 3) and resolutions of the meeting (Clause 6); and

0] any amendment to the Conditions to enable any actions relating to (a) to (e) above.

Any Debentureholder that has any conflict of interest with respect to any matter to be decided
at a meeting of Debentureholders shall not be entitled to vote on such matter.

Minutes of the Meeting

Within 14 (fourteen) days after the date of the meeting of the Debentureholders, the
Debentureholders' Representative shall prepare the minutes of the meeting. The chairman of
the meeting shall certify such minutes as accurate and the Debentureholders' Representative
shall keep the original minutes and make copies available for inspection by the
Debentureholders at its principal office during normal business hours.
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THIS AGREEMENT is made on [Date]

BETWEEN

NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED , whose registered office is located at [Issuer
information] (the Tssuer"); and

BANGKOK BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED , whose registered office is located at [DHR
information] (the Debentureholders' Representative).

WHEREAS:

(A)

(B)

(©

(D)

The Issuer is approved by the Ministry of Finano issue and sell the Debentures (as defined
below) pursuant to the Ministry of Finance's Na#flion Re:Permission to Issue Thai Baht
Debentures or Debentures in Thailaddted 11 April 2006 MOF Notification ") and the
Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Bdgi'CMSB") No. TorChor. 58/2559 Re
Rules on approval for foreign businesses to offeséle of newly-issued, Baht-denominated
debt instrumentdated 22 December 2016 (as may be amended ancemgigikd from time
to time) ('Notification No. TorChor. 58/2559), as detailed and specified in the Conditions
(as defined below), to institutional investors drigh-net worth investors, as respectively
defined in the Notification of the Securities ardtBEange Commission No. KorChor. 5/2552
Re:Determination of Definitions Used in the Notificats on the Issue and Sale of All Types
of Debt Instrumentdated 15 March 2009 (as may be amended and supgiesniEom time

to time).

The Debentureholders' Representative has allgtialifications required by law to act as
Debentureholders' Representative in relation toDkbentures and shall seek to obtain an
approval from the SEC (as defined below) in respeateof.

The Debentureholders' Representative wishagttdorth its agreement to perform its duties
as Debentureholders' Representative for the Delein order to protect the interests of all
Debentureholders (as defined below) as providethénSecurities and Exchange Act B.E.
2535 (as amended), the Conditions and this Agreemen

The Issuer wishes to appoint Bangkok Bank PRul@liompany Limited to act as the
Debentureholders’ Representative in relation toRkbentures and Bangkok Bank Public
Company Limited wishes to accept the appointmerDa@bentureholders' Representative in
accordance with the Conditions and the terms sfAlgreement.

IT IS AGREED as follows:

1.

DEFINITIONS

Unless otherwise defined in this Agreement, caigiédl wording and terms used herein shall
have the same meanings as given to them in theiGorsd

"Conditions" means the terms and conditions governing rights @bligations of the Issuer
and the Debentureholders in respect of the Debesitas submitted to the SEC substantially
in the form set out in Annex hereto, as the samg fram time to time be modified in
accordance with the provisions of the Conditions;

"Debentureholders means persons who own Debenture(s) in accordamitle the
Conditions, and theDebentureholder' means any of them;

"Debentures means (a) "The Debentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power gaom Limited No.
1/2017 Tranche 1 Due 2020", (b) "The Debenturadarh Ngum 2 Power Company Limited
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2.1

2.2

2.3

24

3.1

No. 1/2017 Tranche 2 Due 2024" and (c) "The AmedibDebentures of Nam Ngum 2 Power
Company Limited No. 1/2017 Tranche 3 Due 2027"d¢adsued by the Issuer;

"Event of Default' means any of the events of default listed in coor 13.1 of the
Conditions;

"Expensé means any reasonable and proven cost, out-ofgh@pense, disbursement, fees
(including legal fees and other professional feesher than the Debentureholders'
Representative Fee (as defined in Clause 5.1) iedwr payable by the Debentureholders'
Representative in connection with its performanoden the Debentures, this Agreement
and/or the Conditions, including transportation enges, expenses incurred in relation to
convening the Debentureholders' meetings, regsiratnd enforcement of this Agreement
and the Conditions;

"Issue Daté means the date on which the Issuer issues therdetes under the Conditions;
and

"SEC" means the Office of the Securities and Exchangmi@ission of Thailand.

APPOINTMENT OF DEBENTUREHOLDERS' REPRESENTATIVE, EF FECTIVENESS
OF THIS AGREEMENT AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER CONDITIONS

The Issuer hereby appoints the DebentureholdBepresentative to act as the
Debentureholders' Representative in respect ofDieentures and the Debentureholders'
Representative hereby accepts such appointmergédubj the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, the Conditions and any applicable law.

The Debentureholders’' Representative reprefiesitst has all qualifications as required by
all applicable laws and is capable of performirg duties under this Agreement and as
required by applicable laws.

This Agreement shall become effective on tead<Date.

The Issuer and the Debentureholders' Repreésenggree to be bound by and shall have all
powers, duties, obligations and responsibilities specified in the Conditions and this

Agreement and the Debentureholders' Representiadeact at all times in accordance with

the Conditions, this Agreement and any applicadneslat a professional level for the benefit
of the Debentureholders. The Conditions and anjtewiamendment thereto shall form an
integral part of this Agreement.

POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE DEBENTUREHOLDERS' REPRESENTATIVE

It is agreed that, in addition to the powers auntied of the Debentureholders' Representative
as set forth in the Conditions:

Appointment of Advisors

The Debentureholders' Representative may to thenexecessary for its performance of
duties specified herein, consult with counsel, aotants and other skilled persons to be
selected by the Debentureholders' Representatitke swich reasonable care as can be
expected from a professional entity acting as aeb&beholders' representative. The
Debentureholders' Representative may, and proragilise the Issuer of such appointments,
appoint advisors including legal counsel believgdtbo be of good reputation, in respect of:

3.1.1 The enforcement of any provisions of thise&gnent and/or the Conditions;
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3.1.2

3.1.3

3.2

3.21

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.24

3.2.5

3.2.6

Any actual or proposed amendment, waiveroosent relating to this Agreement and/or the
Conditions; or

Any Event of Default or any dispute that maaige in connection with the Debentures.

The Debentureholders' Representative may act enofinion or advice of any lawyer,
accountant and other experts appointed or selégtdte Debentureholders' Representative or
the Issuer in order to perform its duties and atiaps under this Agreement and the
Conditions and shall not have any liability whetirag (or refraining from acting) upon any
advice by such persons (other than for its grogfigence or willful misconduct or bad faith
on the part of the Debentureholders’ Representaiisedirectors, officers, employees or
agents).

Reasonable and proven fees and charges owedhaduisors under this Clause 3.1 shall be
for the account of the Issuer, provided that (Dlstees and charges shall be agreed upon by
the Issuer, whose agreement shall not be unreasomathheld or delayed, before the
Debentureholders' Representative engages suchoaavid (ii) such fees and expenses have
not been incurred by the Debentureholders' Reptathesn by reason of gross negligence,
willful misconduct and/or bad faith of the Debemtholders' Representative and/or any
breach by the Debentureholders' RepresentativieioPgreement, the Conditions and/or the
applicable law.

Performance

If the Issuer fails to comply with its paymebligations or any other term of the Conditions,

the Debentureholders' Representative may instiutaeeting of the Debentureholders to
acquire the applicable resolutions or a claim famdges incurred therefrom for the benefit of
all Debentureholders unless the Conditions spexthgrwise.

At any time after an Event of Default shativé occurred, the Debentureholders'
Representative may by notice in writing to the éssvequire it to make all subsequent
payments in respect of the Debentures to or to dhder of the Debentureholders'
Representative and not to the Registrar with effiexh the issue of any such notice to the
Issuer.

The Debentureholders' Representative shahge a meeting of the Debentureholders and
shall perform any other duties in accordance with@onditions.

The Debentureholders' Representative shiadisaliaison for all communications between the
Issuer and the Debentureholders, which are negef&gathe transactions contemplated to be
carried out under this Agreement and the Conditiookiding preparing the proxy form and
notice of the meeting of the Debentureholders.

Subject to Clause 4, the DebentureholdergirdRentative shall distribute to each
Debentureholder pro rata according to its holdiagcpntage of the Debentures, the proceeds
derived from the result of claims made againstishaer, the enforcement of the provisions of
this Agreement and/or the Condition®(bceeds). The Debentureholders' Representative
shall also keep record of steps taken to colledtdistribute the Proceeds including related
expenses incurred.

The Debentureholders' Representative shalplyowith all laws and regulations applicable
to the Debentureholders' Representative in suchoiggncluding but not limited to the MOF
Notification, the Notification No. TorChor. 58/25%hd the Notification of the CMSB No.
TorChor. 37/2552 ReQualifications Required for the DebentureholderspResentative and
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Actions Taken by the Debentureholders' Represept#tccording to Its Power and Duties
dated 3 August 2009 (as may be amended and suppiedneom time to time).

3.2.7 The Debentureholders' Representative shafitabe Issuer in notifying the Debentureholders
on the occurrence of the event which allows theds$o effect the redemption of Debentures
for tax reason according to Condition 10.4 of thenditions once the Debentureholders'
Representative has been notified by the Issueudlf svent.

3.3 Reliance

3.3.1 Except as otherwise expressly provided in ftBenditions, the Debentureholders'
Representative shall be and is hereby authorizegdsonably assume, in the absence of
knowledge or express notice to the contrary, thati$suer is duly performing and observing
all the covenants and provisions contained in Algeeement and/or the Conditions and that
no Event of Default has occurred.

3.3.2 The Debentureholders’ Representative mayindpasarried out reasonable enquiries and
investigation which the Debentureholders' Repregimat would normally make and acting in
accordance with its professional judgment, relyrugoy written communication or document
reasonably believed by it to be genuine.

4. PAYMENT FROM THE ENFORCEMENT OF THE DEBENTURES

Upon the enforcement of the Debentures, all ppaciinterest and any other amounts
received from the Issuer by the Debentureholdezpr&entative under the Debentures shall
be applied in the following order of priority:

(@) firstly, the payment of all costs, expenses diabilities incurred by the
Debentureholders' Representative in performingluises and obligations in respect
of the Debentures, including (but not limited ¢ enforcement of the Conditions, in
accordance with this Agreement;

(b) secondly, the remuneration of the DebenturedrsidRepresentative pursuant to this
Agreement;

(c) thirdly, the interest of the Debentures accraed unpaid up to the date of payment;
(d) fourthly, the outstanding amount of the priradipf the Debentures; and
(e) finally, the balance (if any) to be paid to tesuer without unreasonable delay.

5. REMUNERATION OF THE DEBENTUREHOLDERS' REPRESENTATIV E

5.1 The Issuer shall pay to the Debentureholdeeprésentative a fee for acting as the
Debentureholders’ Representative (tbeBentureholders' Representative Fé@ equal to
[¢] ([®]) per cent per annum on the remaining of outstapdirincipal amount of the
Debentures, excluding value added tax. The Debentlders' Representative Fee shall be
payable in advance on a yearly basis at the begjnwof each relevant year to the
Debentureholders' Representative by transfer téoffeving account:

Account Name: Securities Services Department
Account Bank: Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
Account Type: Current Account

Account Number: 101-3-37151-1

and provide a copy of credit advice by email to.gitr@bbl.co.th
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52

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

The first payment shall be made within fifteen (bblsiness days after receipt of a written
invoice from the Debentureholders' Representalitie. following payments shall be invoiced
on the date falling on each anniversary of thedd3ate thereafter, and in all cases shall be
payable within fifteen (15) business days aftereigic of such written invoice from the
Debentureholders' Representative. For the avoidahd®ubt, no payment by the Issuer to
the Debentureholders' Representative shall be dubeoMaturity Date. In the event that this
Agreement is terminated before one year period fiteenissue Date or any anniversary date
thereof, the Debentureholders' Representative shalbportionately refund the
Debentureholders' Representative Fee to the Isgtlan fifteen (15) business days after the
termination and the Issuer shall pay to the Delvehtlders' Representative all outstanding
reasonable expenses incurred in accordance witkugrdct to this Agreement.

If the Issuer requests the Debentureholdegs'd®entative to perform or do any acts beyond
the scope of the ordinary powers, duties and respities of the Debentureholders'
Representative as set forth in this Agreement arttéo Conditions and/or under the laws of
Thailand, the Debentureholders' Representativd sbalbe obliged to perform or do such
acts. However, if the Debentureholders' Represgatahall determine to perform or do any
such acts at the request of the Issuer, then suersagrees to pay additional remuneration to
the Debentureholders' Representative in the aetngunt and under terms of payment as
mutually agreed in writing.

The Debentureholders' Representative may iBgpense in order to perform its duties in
accordance with this Agreement, the Conditionspplieable law, and the Issuer agrees to
refund to the Debentureholders’ Representativeinwiifteen (15) business days upon the
receipt of notice thereof and relevant supportimruwinents (if any) relating to such

Expenses. However, the Issuer shall have no oldigmto reimburse the Debentureholders'
Representative for those Expenses incurred by tebeBtureholders' Representative by
reason of gross negligence, willful misconduct andiad faith of the Debentureholders'
Representative and/or any breach of this Agreelmgtite Debentureholders' Representative,
the Conditions and/or the applicable law.

All sums payable by the Issuer under this Agrwa® shall carry interest at a rate equal to
seven point five (7.5) per cent per annum, (i) espect of the Debentureholders'

Representative Fee, from the date of the sum lskiegand payable and the Issuer fails to pay
such sum, and (ii) in respect of all other sumudalg the Expense, from the date on which
such sum is due and payable by the Issuer in aaonoedwith Clause 5.3 and the Issuer fails
to pay such sum.

The amount of interest payable shall be calculdgdnultiplying (a) the product of the
outstanding sum and the interest rate by (b) thmban of days in which that sum remains
outstanding after it is due and payable and theelsfails to pay and dividing by 365 (three
hundred and sixty-five) days, and rounding the ltdfgure to 6 (six) decimal places (in case
the seventh decimal place is equivalent to or niwaa 5 (five), the sixth (6th) decimal place
shall be rounded up one decimal).

In the case that the Debentureholders' Repdsanis replaced during the term of the
Debentures, the Issuer agrees to pay the remumertdi the replaced Debentureholders'
Representative for actual period of service of dbebentureholders' Representative until the
date that such appointment is terminated provitiat the Debentureholders' Representative
has delivered all assets, documents or evidendddidt in relation to its appointment to the
new Debentureholders' Representative.

Except as provided in Clause 4 above, regardidsany other agreement between the
Debentureholders' Representative and the IssueDébentureholders' Representative shall
not transfer or apply, whether by way of set offuiterclaim or otherwise, any funds,
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5.7

6.2

7.2

7.3

received by it in relation to the Debentures towaitk satisfaction of any liability the Issuer
may have to the Debentureholders' Representatideramy agreement or otherwise.

Notwithstanding any provision specified to @entrary, all relevant invoices and notices
under this Clause 5 shall be sent by the Debentidets' Representative to the Issuer &y [
to [e]. The Issuer shall not be deemed to receive angiée or notice under this Clause 5
which is not sent to it by such method.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DEBENTUREHOLDERS' REPRESENTATIVE

The Issuer shall indemnify and hold harmless Diebentureholders' Representative and its
officers, directors, employees and agents in rasgfeal! liabilities and expenses actually and
reasonably incurred by it or by any such persoth@ execution of any duties, powers or
authorities under this Agreement including the Ehggeand against all actions, proceedings,
costs, claims and demands in respect of any matteducted or omitted in any way relating
to this Agreement except to the extent the liab#it expenses, actions, proceedings, costs,
claims or demands were due to gross negligencéulihisconduct and/or bad faith of the
Debentureholders’ Representative and/or any breaththis Agreement by the
Debentureholders’ Representative and its officatisectors, employees and agents.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issuer shall het liable to the Debentureholders’
Representative or any person for special, indigaatjtive or consequential loss or damage of
any kind whatsoever (including but not limited ¢st profits), whether or not foreseeable.

The Debentureholders' Representative shallmndg the Issuer and its officers, directors,
employees and agents in respect of all liabiligesl expenses actually and reasonably
incurred, as a result of the negligence, willfulsoinduct, or breach of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, the Conditions areldpplicable law by the Debentureholders'
Representative or by any of its officers, directeraployees or agents, and will reimburse the
Issuer, its officers, directors, employees and &yéor all reasonable costs, charges and
expenses which any of them actually and reasonaftyirred in connection with
investigating, disputing or defending any suchactr claim, provided that such loss, claim,
damage or liability has not resulted from grossligegce, willful misconduct, and/or bad
faith of the Issuer and/or any breach of this Agrest by the Issuer, its officers, directors,
employees or agents. Notwithstanding the foregoihg, Debentureholders' Representative
shall not be liable to the Issuer or any personsfmgcial, indirect, punitive or consequential
loss or damage of any kind whatsoever (includingrmi limited to lost profits), whether or
not foreseeable.

AMENDMENT OF THE AGREEMENT

Should there be any amendment made to the fwms]i laws, rules, notifications,
regulations, any documents in relation to the Dalres, order of the SEC or any other
related government unit or authority which shalNédnan effect on any terms and conditions
of this Agreement, the parties hereto shall muyupdirticipate in amending such terms and
conditions of this Agreement in order to be in ctiamre with the amended Conditions, laws,
rules, notifications, regulations, any documenteeiation to the Debentures or orders.

Subject to the Conditions and applicable laivs,parties hereto shall mutually participate in
amending the terms and conditions of this Agreemwithout the approval of the
Debentureholders to the extent that such amendames not have any material adverse
effect on the rights and benefits of the Debentoliddrs.

Any amendment of this Agreement shall be dedideto the SEC within fifteen (15) days
from the date of amendment by the Issuer.
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9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

DEFAULT

Subject to Clause 10, if any party fails to complth any provision of this Agreement and/or
the Conditions or is in breach of this Agreemer/anthe Conditions, it shall be deemed that
such party is in default of this Agreement if swdfault is not remedied within thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice thereof being mjity the non-defaulting party to the
defaulting party, and the other party shall betlttito terminate this Agreement without
prejudice to its rights or remedies as specifie€lause 6 or at law (subject to Clause 6) to
claim against the party in default for any lossesampensation resulting from its failure to
comply with this Agreement and/or the Conditions.

TERMINATION

This Agreement shall be terminated upon theeDebieholders having received payment for
both principal and interest in full and the Debeeholders’ Representative has fully
performed its duties as specified in the Conditions

Subject to Clause 10.1, both parties agreertinate this Agreement if and when any of the
following events occurs:

(a) the Debentureholders' Representative givedenrihotice of its resignation as the
Debentureholders' Representative sixty (60) dagglirance to the Issuer;

(b) the Issuer gives written notice of terminatiainthis Agreement sixty (60) days in
advance to the Debentureholders' Representative; or

(c) the Debentureholders vote in the Debenturemsldeeeting for a revocation or
replacement of the Debentureholders' Representdtiveaccordance with the
Conditions.

Subject to Clause 10.1, this Agreement shalltdreninated upon the exercise of the
termination right pursuant to Clause 8.

Subject to further agreement between the partidés Agreement shall be terminated if the
Debentures are not issued on the Issue Date.cinestent the Issuer shall not be liable to pay
any remuneration and/or any damages to the Delmhtlders' Representative.

If at any time the Debentureholders' Represi@nta

(a) becomes incapable of acting or becomes didopdhlito serve as the
Debentureholders’ Representative and fails to fyecuch incapability or
disqualification within sixty (60) days from the tda the incapability or
disqualification takes place;

(b) files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or neskan assignment for the benefit of its
creditors or consents to the appointment of an waidtnator, liquidator or
administrative or other receiver of all or any gabsial part of its property;

(c) admits in writing its inability to pay or meks debts as they become due or suspends
payment thereof; or

(d) has a receiver appointed over all or a subisdapart of its property or any officer
takes charge or control of the Debentureholderpré&entative or of its property or
affairs for the purpose of rehabilitation or ligatthn,
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10.
10.1

10.2

10.3

11.
111

11.2

11.3

114

then the Issuer may without notice terminate thige&ment, in which event notice thereof
shall be given by the Issuer to the Debenturehsld@epresentative as soon as practicable
thereafter.

CONSEQUENCE OF TERMINATION

Any termination of the appointment of the Datbheeholders' Representative under this
Agreement will not be effective until a successsrappointed. The Debentureholders’

Representative may assist the Issuer to nominatesuecessor Debentureholders'

Representative. Subject to the Conditions, if acessor Debentureholders' Representatives
nominated by the Debentureholders' Representatigenot been selected within two (2)

months from the date of termination notice, it Ebaldeemed that the last Debentureholders'
Representative nominated by the DebentureholdeggrdRentative is appointed as the

successor Debentureholders' Representative anddhéement shall terminate, at the expiry

of two (2) months' termination notice.

Upon termination of the Agreement or unlesbentise directed by the Issuer, the
Debentureholders' Representative will cease usifgymation and documents provided by
the Issuer and/or the Debentureholde3ouments) and return or destroy at the Issuer's
direction all copies of the Documents. The Debegitalders' Representative will delete all
copies of the Documents residing in memory on aomputer at the Debentureholders'
Representative's site. The Debentureholders' Reqas/e will, within thirty (30) days from
the effective date of the termination, certify initing that all copies of the Documents have
been returned, deleted or destroyed as directedthey Issuer. In addition, the
Debentureholders' Representative shall make adirtsffto cooperate with its successor to
ensure an orderly assumption by its successor eofotiligations of the Debentureholders'
Representative.

The obligations of the Issuer under Clausesé 6 shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.

CLAIMS AND LIABILITIES

The Debentureholders' Representative shabbe&oesponsible for acting upon any resolution
purporting to have been passed at any meetingeoD#bentureholders in accordance with
the Conditions even though it may subsequentlydoed that there was some defect in the
constitution of such meeting or the passing of stegolution or that, for any reason, such
resolution was not valid or binding upon the Debegitolders (except that such defect or
invalidity was due to its gross negligence or willinisconduct).

The Debentureholders' Representative shabaditible to the Issuer or any Debentureholder
by reason of having accepted as valid or not havajgcted any certificate of Debenture

purporting to be such and subsequently found timtged, stolen or not authentic (other than
for its gross negligence or willful misconduct @dofaith).

The Debentureholders' Representative shaly dmé liable to the Issuer and/or
Debentureholders in relation to the damages induin@m willful misconduct or negligence
or bad faith in the performance of its obligatiaass provided in and/or any breach by the
Debentureholders' Representative of the Conditiapglicable laws and this Agreement.
Without prejudice to the immediately preceding sene, the Debentureholders'
Representative shall not be held responsible fpil@ss or damage arising out of action it has
taken in accordance with a resolution of the Delrefiolders' meeting.

The Debentureholders' Representative in panfgy its duties under the Conditions:

2648143-v2\BKKDMS 8



@) shall not have any responsibility or liabilityrespect of any failure or delay by the
Issuer in performing its respective obligationseugder or under the Conditions, or
other agreements relating thereto and hereto; and

(b) shall not have any responsibility or liabilityrespect of the execution, effectiveness,
enforceability, sufficiency, legality, validity agenuineness of the Conditions, the
agreements and documents referred to herein arglriher of any certificate, report,
document of title or other document delivered hedew or thereunder, any statement
of the Issuer herein or therein, provided thatDiebentureholders' Representative has
carried out reasonable enquiries and investigatignich the Debentureholders’
Representative would normally make and has actedadonordance with its
professional judgment.

11.5 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreemén the contrary, the Debentureholders'
Representative shall not be liable for specialjrea, punitive or consequential loss or
damage of any kind whatsoever (including but noitkd to lost profits), except in the case
of the Debentureholders' Representative's grodigeage or willful misconduct.

12. NOTICES

12.1  All correspondence and notices between theeaebeholders' Representative and the Issuer
shall be in the English language (except for therination concerning the Debentureholders
that could be in any other languages as providethéyebentureholders; provided that, the
Debentureholders’ Representative shall be requoegorovide the Issuer with the English
translation of such information) and shall be maderiting and validly given by registered
mail or by courier or by facsimile to the other tyaf sent to the addresses or fax number
specified below or any address (in case of chahgeldress) which is notified in writing to
the other party from time to time.

THE ISSUER

NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED

Address: 218 Lanexang Avenue
Vientiane
Lao PDR

Telephone: +856 21 251 718

Fax: +856 21 252 060

Attention: Managing Director

THE ISSUER'S REPRESENTATIVE
The Legists Group

Address: Offices of N&K Ltd.
990 Abdulrahim Place, 9th Floor, Room No. 901-1
Rama IV Road
Silom, Bangrak
Bangkok 10500
Thailand
Telephone: +662 636 1111
Fax: +662 636 0000
Attention: Managing Director

THE DEBENTUREHOLDERS' REPRESENTATIVE
BANGKOK BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

2648143-v2\BKKDMS 9



12.2

13.
13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

14.

Address: Securities Services Department, BangkolkBPCL.
333 Silom Road, Bangrak

Bangkok 10500

Thailand
Telephone: +66 2230 1894, +66 2626 3568
Fax: +66 2626 4545-6
Attention: Mr. Vichien Chuenchomsaeng

Any communication made or delivered by ones@erto another under this Agreement will
only be effective:

(a) if sent by fax, when a transmission report shgwhe successful transmission of the
facsimile is received by the sender;

(b) if sent by registered mail, 7 (seven) daysrdfte dispatch; or

(© if sent by courier, 48 (forty-eight) hours frotine date of delivery to the courier
service.

OTHERS

The Issuer shall be responsible for reasonekxpense incurred by the Debentureholders'
Representative in relation to preparation and riagion of this Agreement.

The Debentureholders' Representative Feesl $feal paid to the Debentureholders'
Representative after deduction of all applicabkesa

If there is any inconsistency or conflict beén the provisions of this Agreement and the
Conditions, the terms of the Conditions shall pileva

If any provision of this Agreement, the Coiuis and/or documents in relation to the
Debentures is void, voidable, illegal or unenfoldeafor whatever reason, such provision
shall not affect the validity and enforceability afiy other provisions and the parties agree
that the other provisions shall be binding and srgfable between the parties.

GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement and the rights and obligationshef parties hereunder shall be governed by
and construed in accordance with the laws of Thdila

2648143-v2\BKKDMS 10



EXECUTION
IN WITNESS whereof this Agreement has been executed on tledfidst above written.

THE ISSUER

SIGNED for and on behalf of
NAM NGUM 2 POWER COMPANY LIMITED

By:
Name: Pp]
Authorized Signatory

in the presence of

By:
Name: Pp] (witness)

Signature Page — Debentureholders' RepresentatipeiAtment Agreement



THE DEBENTUREHOLDERS' REPRESENTATIVE

SIGNED for and on behalf of
BANGKOK BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

By:
Name: Ms. Pornnit Dunnvatanachit
Authorized Signatory

in the presence of

By:
Name: Mr. Vichien Chuenchomsaeng (witness)

Signature Page — Debentureholders' RepresentatipeiAtment Agreement
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE DEBENTURES
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Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited
Audil report and financial statements
31 December 2016
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nam Ngum 2 Pewer Company Limited
(*the Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 20186,
and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

in my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairy, in all aterial respects,
the financial position of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited as at 31 December 2018, and of
Its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accardance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilitizs for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Group In sccordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled
my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence |
have cbiained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
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working wolt

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for asses8i1g the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to geing concem
and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless management eitter intends to lquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but
15 not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arlse from
fraud or error and are considered material i, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | alsa:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial stalements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion,
The nisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
ane resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, infentional omizsions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a ma:enal uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Company's
ability to continue as a going concemn. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am
required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my epinicn. My conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

COMCErn.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial stalements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

| communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiercies in internal control
that | identify during my audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mr. Chatchai
Kasemsrithanawat.

Chobedoi [ 340msebe’
Chatchai Kasemsrithanawat
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 5813

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 17 February 2017

Lak



Mam Mgum 2 Power Company Limited
Statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2016

Assets

Mon-current assets

Plani-and equipment, net

Project costs during construction phase
Advance for project costs
Long-term resfricted bank deposits
Defarrad fax AsRRLR

Other non-cument asssts

Total non-current assets
Current assets

Spare parts and supplies

Trade and other receivables

Cther current assels

Cash al bank and on hand
Short-term restricted bank deposits
Total current assets

Total assats

18
o

11, 19
12
13
13

The accompanying notes are an integral par of the financlal statements

{Unit: Baht)

2018 2015
23,203,851,589 24 365 963, 084
1,038,312 624 376,703,422
100,268 8BS :
734 944 551 1,220,677 307

25,057 325

3,000.450 13,230,857
25183430428  25976,574,650
37 T E7E 36.879.678
487,365,055 929,871,233
40,075,194 25,894 181
1,165,970,217 1,378,458,524
213,556,232 528,774,885
1.944,759,473 2.889.878.470

27,138,189,801

28,876 453,129
T




Nam Mgum 2 Power Company Limited

Statement of financial position {continued)

As al 31 December 2018

Eguity and liabilities

Equity

Issued capital

Retained earnings

Statutory resena

Cash fiow hadge resarve

Total squity

Mon-current liabilities

Long-term loang from financial institutions,

net of current portian

Provision for long-term employes benefits

Cther long-term liabilities - related party

Total non-current liabllities

Currant liakilities

Trade and other payables

Current portion of long-term loans from financial

instifutions

Retention payable

Income lax payable

Other current liabilties

Total current liabilities

Total fabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral parl of the financal statements,

br Plaw Trivisvavet

\LU—&

M. Vaorapote U .Chospaiboonvong

Motes

T4

15
21

18

17,19

18, 19

18
14

{Unit: Baht)
2018 2015
8,80%,000,000 8.809,000,000
2,002,252 455 3,838.217.793
88,080,000 88,080,000
{508 589 30%) (699.586.850]

10 300 743 056

17,140 TR 943

15,754 750,273 14, 701,857,854
3,208,367 2,486,267
168,687 694 167 687 658

15,927 643.338

14,562,071,878

308, 842,533 365,364,521
Go2 692,073 1,507,007 880
T18.455 7,200
4,798,252 -
1,852 153 1,282 706

a0a BO3 508 1,873,662, 307
16837 446 845 18,735, 734,186

27 138 188,901

28,876 453,129




Mam Mgum 2 Power Company Limited
Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Profit or loss:

Operating income

Revenue from sales of electricity
Gain on exchange

Qthar incoma

Total operating income
Dparating expenses

Cost of sales of electnaily
Adrmenisirative expenses

Loss on exchange

Total operating expenses
Profit before flnance costs
Finance costs

Frofit before income tax expenses
Income tax expencses

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income;

Lt cdvnprefansive meorme o be reclassiied

lo prafl or iess 0 subseguen! periods:

Cash flow hedges

Raeclassification during the year {o profit or lass

Unrealised gain (loss) from cash flow hedges

Add: Income tax afect

Cther comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic earnings per share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financal statemanis,

19

18
18

27
27

{Unit: Baht)
2018 2015
3,814 924797 3,683,153, 483
- 41,975,027
18,216,353 15,422,165
3,833.141,150 3,944 550,681

{1,659,871,381)
{642,831,830)
(45,373.571]

(1,780,518,136)
(245,257 861}

12,248,076 BEZ)

(2035 773.9457)

1,485 064,288 1,808,776 684
(B53 063 245) (894 860,831
631,101,022 1.013,815.803
(13,456, 360) =
17 644 562 1,013.815,803

48,811,770 42 223 860
35,125,356 (457,081,740
23,052,325 .
56,089,451 (414 857 880)
714,634,113 508,957,923
0.70 115




Ham Ngum 2 Power Company Limited

Statement of changes in equity

Far the year ended 31 December 2016

As at 1 January 2015

Profid for the year

{Hher comprehensive incoms
Totel cormprehensive incorme
Divideend payment [Naote 204
As at 31 December 2015

As at 1 January 2016

Profit for the yesr

Oiher compranensive income
Totel comprehensive ncome
Dihicignd payrment [Mote 20)
As at 31 Decamber 2016

(Unit: Bahi)
Issued end
paid-up Refained Statutory Cash fiow
Sheirs cinpalal EATTINEIE FBEEMNE hadge resene Total
608,000 000 S2TT.TE1.900 BB, 000,000 (2607308700 11,894 121,020
1,013, 815,803 - 1,013,848 03
- {414 BET 880} (414,857 880)
- 1,013,815,803 {414 RRT AA0] ARk 857 073
- (252 360,000 2 {352 360.000)
B804, 000,000 3,030,217 703 83,090,000 (695, 588 8600 12,140,718, 543
B BOS, 000,000 3938217, 783 B8, 080,000 [BB5, 588 BE0) 12,140, 71B,842
317644 662 - BT 644 GE2
- = = b5 989,451 G D88 451
- B17 G4 862 DG 989,451 T14,634.113
* {2 554,670,000 5 = {2.554 810,000
B, 805 000,000 2 002,262 455 BB, 090,000 [SBE 509,288 10.500,743.056

The: accempanying rmotes ame an integral part of the financzal statements




Mam Mgum 2 Power Company Limited
Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit from cperating activities
Ediustment to reconcile profitto net cash flows;
Depfeciation
Armortisation of inlerest rate reduction fee
Unrealised {gain] loss on exchange
Wite-aff project costs during constructicn phase
Lees an equipment wrile-off
Provision for long-term employee banefits
Interest expenzes
Crperating profi before working capital changes
{Increasel/decrease in
Trade and cther receivables
Spare pars and supplies
Cihar currant assets
Dther non-current assets
Increaselidecreass) i
Trade and other payabies
Fetention payalde
Cther current Nakilities
Cash flows from operaling activities
Cash paid for Income fax expenses
Met cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Decréase (Increase) in short-term restricied bank deposis

Decrease (increass) in long-term restricted bank deposits

Increase in project costs during construction phase
Incraase in advance for project costs

Increase in plant and eguipmeant

Met cash flows from [used in) investing activities

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of the financal slaterments.

(Unit: Baht)
2016 2015
£31,101,022 1,013,815,803
1,081,331,805 1,086,541 748
7,750,138 8,883.963
15,808,881 15 ARR 450)
377,608,838
10,865 12,544
719,100 TGS 247
837,008,804 879,303,774
2,855,441,331 2,953,668,687
442 402 802 55,964 851
(912 202) (2,893.461)
11,145,818 782,508
10.230.407 {10,181.850)
(211,590,916 166,072,567
711,265 (2 266 280
369447 (92,270)
3,207,797 042 3.171.037,744
(8 658 068) -

3,199,139,874

3,171,037, 744

313,024,905 (12.828,015)
468,396,871 {2,661,083)
(905,283,755) (12,452 364)
(100,268,863 s

(8,885,311 (11,761,762
(235, 126,175) {33, 703,224}




Mam Mgum 2 Power Company Limited
Statement of cash flows [continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Cash flows from financing activities

Increase (decresse} in long-term loans from financial institutions
Cash paid for loan arrangement fes

Cash paid for interest expenses

Davidend payment

Met cash flows used in financing activities

Metincrease (decrease} In cazh and cash equivalents

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flows information
Mon-cash transactions
Increase in project costs during constructicn phasa

from praject payables

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stalemenls.

iLnit: Baht)
2018 2015
E47 524,930 (1,700,180,500)

(3B3,579.254)

(786,557 949} (868,657 270)
{2 554 510,000} (352 360,000
{3,176,922 273) {2,921 157.770)

(717,808 67R) 710,138,750

420,271 2,333,003
1,278,458 524 1,165,988, 771

1965870217

1,378 458 524
—

133,825,334



Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited
Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

1.

Corporate information

a

o)

Mam MNgum 2 Power Company Limited (“the Company”) is a limited company
incorperated under the laws of the Lac People’s Democrasic Republic, The major
shareholder of the Company is SouthEast Asia Energy Limited {"tha Parent Company™),
which was incorporated in Thailand. The major shareholder of SouthEast Asia Energy
Limited is CK Power Public Company Limited (“the Parent Company of the Group"),
which has control over the Company through SouthEast Asia Energy Limited.

The Company is principally engaged in the generation and szle of electricity from the
Mam Mgum 2 Hydroelectric Power Praject in the Lao People's Democratic Republic. Cn
26 March 2011, the Company has commenced the Initial Cperation Date (10D) as
specified in the Power Purchase Agreement with the Electricity Generating Authority of
Thailand.

The Company's registered office is located at 215 LanexangAvenue, Baan Chiengyuen,
Muang Chantaburi, Kamphaeng Nakom, Vientiane, Lao Peaple's Democratic Republic.

The financial staternents of Nam Ngum 2 Power Company Limited for the year ended
31 December 2016 were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on
17 February 2017

On 27 December 2007, the Company entered into an agreement to transfer all Fights
and obligations under the Power Purchase Agreement ["PFA") with the Electricity
Generating Authority of Thailand ("EGAT") from the branch of the Parent Company to
the Company at the energy tariff rate specified in the PPA for a period of 25 years
commencing from the Cemmercial Operation Date.

On & January 2008, the branch of the Parent Company entered into novation
agreements to transfer all nghts and obligations under the Concession Agreement and
other agreements relating to the Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Fower Project, including
the exclusive rights under the Memorandum of Understanding with the Government of
the Lao People’'s Democratic Republic on 11 April 2007 to carry out the feasibility study
and the development of the Nam Bak Hydroelectric Power Project fo the Company.
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d)

&)

The Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project’s Concession Ag-eement, fransferrad from
the branch of the Parent Company to the Company, is the agreement made with the
Government of the Lao People's Democratic Republic on a BOOT basis (Build-Cwn-
Operate and Transfer) to design, develop, construct and opsrate the Nam Ngum 2
Hydroelectric Power Project for a period of 25 years commencng from the Commercial
Operation Date (1 September 2013) to sell electricity to EGAT, At the end of the concession
period, the Company shall transfer the Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project to the
Government of the Lao People's Democratic Republic. However, the Company has the
right to a contract period extension under terms and conditions as may then be agreed by
the parties,

Under the Concession Agreement, the Company has commitmant tc pay royalty fees and
taxes to the Government of the Lao People’s Democratic Republic for a certain period and
at the rates specified under such Concession Agreement.

On 25 June 2008, the Company entered into an Agreement on Operation and
Maintenance of Dam and Powerhouse for Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project
with a related company at the rates specified in the agreement. The period of this
agreement is valid until the end of the concession period of the Nam Ngum 2
Hydroelectric Power Project.

Subsequently, on 1 Apnl 2016, the Company enfered into an Agreement to transfer rghts
on Operation and Maintenance of Dam and Powerhouse for Nam hgum 2 Hydroelactric
Power Project from the related company to a Major shareholder of a shareholder of the
Parent Company at the rates specified in the agreement. The period of this agreement is
valid until the end of the concession period of the Nam Ngum 2 Hydroe ectric Power Project.

On 15 January 2010, the Company entered into an Agreemen: on Operation and
Maintenance of Transmission Systems for Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project
with a related party at the rates specified in the agreement. The period of this agreement
Is valid until the end of the concession period of the Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power
Project.

Significant accounting policies

Basis for preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board (IASB).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost tasis. The financial

staterments are presented in Thai Baht ("Baht").
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2.3

(a)

{b)

Standards that became effective in the current year

Below is & summary of new and revised accounting standards that became effective in the
current accounting year.

*  IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
*  Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

. Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amontisation

*  Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Planis

*  Amendments to IAS 27, Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
. Annual Improvements Cycle - 2012-2014

*  Amendments to 1AS 1 Disclosure Initiative

¢ Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the
Conzsolidation Exception

These standards do not have any significant impact on the financial statements.
Summary of significant accounting policies
Forelgn currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Baht, which is the Cormpeny's functional and
presentation currency,

Foreign currengy transactions are translated into Baht at the rates riling on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies outstanding on the
reporting date are retranslated info Baht at the rates ruling on the reporting date. All
differences are taken to profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. The
exchange differences relevant to the construction of the hydroelestric power project are
included as part of project costs during the construction phase. Non-roretary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translaed Jsing the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial fransactions.

Revenues and expenses recognition
Revenue from sales of efectricily

Revenue from sales of eleciricity is recognised when the significant risks and rewards pass fo the
buyer,



inferest ncamaea

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest method. that is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset).

Other revenues and expenses

Other revenues and expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.
Income tax

Current income lax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authcrities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.

Deferred fax

Deferred tax Is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporing purposes.

Deferred tax liabilites are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- where the deferred tax iiability arises from the initial recognition of gecodwill ar of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss: and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investmants in subsidiaries,
assoclates and interesls in joint amangements, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the tempaorary differences
will not reverse in the foresesable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary diffe~ences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except;

- where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference anses from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not & business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss, and



(d)

= in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investmenis in
subsidiaries, associales and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assels are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets
are reassessed al each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the year when the assel is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprahensive income or directly in equity,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Financial assets

Financial assels are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-matunty financial investments, or available-for-szle financial investments,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets on initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this desgnation at each financial
year end.

FPurchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way purchases) are
recognised on the trade date, |.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sel the

asset.



(e)

(f)

(a)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market After initial measurement. |oans and
receivables are subsequently carmed at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in
statement of comprehensive income when the loans and receivakles are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date
is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for
long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduct.on for transaction costs,
For financial instruments not traded in an active market, fair vale is determined using
valuation techniques. Such technigues include using recent arm's lergth market fransactions;
reference to the currant market value of another instrument which is suostantially the same;
a discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an onginal maturity of three months or less and without restrictions.

Spare parts and supplies

Spare parts and supplies are valued at the lower of cost (Under the weighted average method)
and net realisable value and are charged to production costs whenever zonsumed.

Financial liabilities

All interest-bearing loans are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received
less directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in statement of comprehensive income when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method
amortisation process.

Amartised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fee or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The amortisation aof
elfective interest is included in finance cost in profit or loss.



(h)

(i)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial pesition if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an Intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assels and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assels

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when,

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired: or

- the Company has transferred its nights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay o a
third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred itz rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered Into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Company's continuing involvament in the asset,

In that case, the Company also recognises an associated Rability. The transferred asset and
the asscciated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantes over
the transferred assel is measured at the lower of the original camrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the | ability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an ewisting financial liabilty is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recagnised in profit or foss in statement of comprehensive income,



Ul

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidance that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial asseis is deemed to be impaired If, and only if, there s objective evidence of
iImpairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred "loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial rearganisation and
where cbservable data indicate that there is 2 measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defauits.

Financial assets carred al amoriised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables camied at
amortised cost has Deen incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as tha difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flaws
{excluding future expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial assel's original effective interest rate (ie., the effective irterest rate computed at
initial recognition), The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of the impairment loss shall be recognised in profit or loss in
statement of comprehensive income.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant ar collectively for financiz| assets that are not
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the 2sset s included in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics anc that group of financial
assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or confinues to be recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related impairment allowance.
Subseguent recoveries of amounts previguely written off are credited directly to the cradit
loss expenses.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent thal the carrying value of the
assel does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of an
impairment l0ss is recognised in profit or logs in statement of comprehensive incomea



(k)

N

(rm)

Plant and equipment/depreciation

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any, These costs include the cost of replacing patt of such equipment
whan thal ¢ost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met,

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference fo their costs on the straight-
line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project 27 years

Leased asset improvements 24 years
Furniture and office equipment o years
Matar vehicles 5 years

The carrying values of the plant and equipment are reviewed for impairrent when events or
changes in circumstancas indicate that the carrying values may not oe recoverable.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from itz use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in statement of comprehensive income in the
year the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of the azsets are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Project costs during construction phase

All expenditures and other related expenses which are incurred during the construction of the
hydroelectric power plant to enable it to become operational are caplalised as assets, Such
project costs during the construction phase include, inter alia, project construction costs,
direct project management costs, consulting fees, borrowing costs and costs of testing
whether the assat is functioning properly.

Mo depreciation is provided on project costs during construction phase,
Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at tha inception date: whether the fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assels or the arrangement conveys a right to

use the asset



{n)

The Company as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease
at the fair value of the leased proparty or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges znd a reduction of the
lease liability so as lo achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
lisbility. Finance charges are recognized in profit or loss in statement of comprehansive

income.

Leased assets are depreciated cver the useful lives of the assets. However, if thare is no
reasonable cerfainty that the Company will obtain ownership by tha end of the lease term,
the assel is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease

term,

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in statement of
comprehensive income on the straight-line basls over the lease term,

The Company as a lessor

Leases under which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the assel are classified as operating leases.

The Company considers that the arrangement under the Power Purchase Agreement ("PPA")
with EGAT contains a lease. Since the Company retains the principal risks and rewards from
its ownership in the power plant, the arrangement is considered to be an operating lease,

The power plant is capitalised as plant and equipment and depreciaed aver its useful life.

There is no future minimum payment by EGAT under the terms of the PPA. it is deemed
appropriate to recognise revenue on the basis of actual electricity sales, referdng to the
number of units sold and the applicable tanff rates

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of the hydroalactric power project, which
necessanly takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use, are capitalised
as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that are insurred in connection
with the borrowing of funds,

10



(o)

(p)

(9)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indicazion that an azset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An assel's recoverabie
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sall and its
value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset dees not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the assal is considered im paired
and iz written down to its recoverable amount, In assessing value in Jse the estimated futura
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assat, In
determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuatior model is used These
caloulations are coroborated by valuation multiples, guoted share prices for public traded
companies or other available fair value indicators,

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previcusly recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount. A previausly recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used 1o
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impaiment loss was recognised, If
that is the case, he camying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That
ncreased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the assat in prior years. Such a
reversal is recognised in profit or loss in statement of comprehensive income, and after such
a reversal, the depreciation charge Is adjusted in future periods to allocats the asset's revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, er are controlled by, the
Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They alzo include asscciated companies and individuals which directly ar indirectly own a voting
interest in the Company that gives them significant infiluence over the Company, key
management personnel, and directors and officers with authonty in the planning and direction
of the Company's operations,

Employee henefits
Shorl-term employee benafits

Salaries, annual rewards and related employment welfare are recogrised as expenses when
incurred,

11



{r)

Past-employment benealils

Defined benefit plans

The Company has cbligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees
upon retirement under labor law, The Company treats these severance payment obligations as
a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by & professionally qualified
independent actuary based on actuanal techniques, using the projectad unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised im mediately
in other comprehensive incomea

Hedge accounting - Cash flow hedges

The Company applies cash flow hedge accounting in order to hedge the foreign exchange
exposure on a certain portion of its forecasted revenue from sales of electricity in USD currency,
which are designated as the hedged item and long-term loans in USD are the hedging

instrument.

The Company will recognise the effective portion of the change in value of the cash flow
hedging instrument in other comprehensive income due to movements in foreign exchange
rates, The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised n profit or loss, Gains or
losses accumulated in other comprehensive incame are then transferred 1o profit or loss in the
penod when the hedged items affect profit or loss.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’'s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assels and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent lizbilitizs, at the reporting
date. However, changes in these assumptions and estimates could resJlt in outcemes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or lability affected in future
periods. Significant judgements and estimates, including the key assumprions cancarning the
future and other key sources of estimation, are as follows:

Concession Agreement

The Company's management considers the arrangement under the Sorcession Agreament
with the Government of the Lao People's Democratic Republic to ke cutside the scope of
IFRIC 12, and recorded all expenditures and other related expenses incurred during the
construction of the hydroelectric power plant as property, plant and equipment in the
statement of financial position.

12



Power Purchase Agreemont

The Company's management considers the arrangement under the Power Purchase
Agreement with EGAT to constitute a lease under IFRIC 4. Further details are contained in
note 2.2 (m).

Functional Currency

The Company's management considers the Company's functional currency to be the Baht,
since this is the currency that will mainly influence the selling price of ele ctricity, and the costs
of the Company's sales. It is also the currency in which, in comparison with the US dollar,
funds from financing activities are more likely to be generated, and in which receipts from
operating activities are more likely to be retained.

Standards issued but not yet effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company's financial
statements are listed below. The Company intends to adopl these standards, if applicable,
when they become effective.

IFRS 8 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement (effective 1 January 2018}
*  IFR3 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective 1 January 2018)

. Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint WVenture

. 1435 7 Disclosure Initiative - Amendments to IAS 7 (effective 1 Janiuary 2017)

*  1AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses - Amendments 1o 1AS 12
(effectve 1 January 2017)

. IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - Amendmerits
to IFRS 2 (effective 1 January 2018)

. IFRS 16 Leases (effectve 1 January 2019)

At present, the management of the Company is evaluating the impact of this standard to the
financial statements in the period of initial application,

13



Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

1Unit: Thousand Baht)

2015 2015

Depreciation 1,081,351 1,088,542
Operation and maintenance of power plant and 328,0€5 456,989

transmission systems
Royalty 130,261 132 588
Walershed and livelihood expenses 24320 30,581
Salary and other employee benefits 44 787 32,803
Directors' remuneration 12,420 12,420
Traveling expenses 36,372 28,355
Consultant expenses 33,600 22,015
Management fee charged by the Parent Company of 137 447 134,483

the Group
Insurance expenses 59,390 65,623
Wirite-off project costs during construction phase (Note 8) 377,610 -
Income tax

Income tax expenses of the Company is calculated by multiplying taxable profits by the tax
rate as specified in the Concession Agreement for each period commencing from the Initial
Operation Date (26 March 2011) to the end of the concession period. However, for a perod
of & years from the Initial Operation Date, the Company has been granted exemption from
the corporate income tax, The corporate income tax rate for current year is 3%.

Earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic eamings per share

computation;
2015 2015
Profit (Baht) 617,644 622 1,013,815,803
Weighted average number of erdinary shares for
basic earnings per share (shares) 880,900,000 880,900,000

14



Plant and equipment

Cost

1 Janiary 2015
Addifions

Transfar in {owt)

Wirite off

31 December 2015
Addditbons

Wite off

31 December 2016
Aceumylated depreciation
1 January 2015
Deprecation for the year
Wirite off

31 December 2015
Depreciation for the year
Write off

2 Decamber 2016

Het book value

31 Decamber 2015

31 Decemnbear 2016

(Unit: Thousand Bahly

Marm Mgum 2 Furmilure
Hydroglecinic  Leased assel  and offios Mofor
Powes Project  improvements squipment vehices Total
20428113 21,732 48 817 43,644 20 548 406
1.834 3,672 3,082 B,558
(2,070 2,000 a
= - (56} = (5E)
284259 113 21,498 Ha B3 51,685 28,668 008
- 2,048 7,182 . B.230
{251) - {251
20,428,113 23 544 51,534 51,606 _I'@I:EEE.BE?
4,043 448 3,600 28,208 28,162 4,104 4445
1,072,800 1,078 T-53T 8. 128 1,086,542
= (43) (43)
5.116.228 4 578 35,700 34 321 5,100,945
1,072,789 1.157 4 542 2,033 1,081,331
- [240) (240)
8,180,047 6.833 40,302 35 254 6,272,036
24,312 885 16,820 18,803 17,375 24 365 963
23,240,088 17 21,232 14,842 23,293,851

The Company has morigaged immeovable assets and pledged other meovable assets of the Nam
Mgum 2 Hydroelectric Power Project with a group of lenders fo secure the long-term loans,
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10.

11.

12.

Project costs during construction phase

As al 31 December 2016, the balance of project costs during construction phase represents the
upgrade and construction of the Nabong Substation Project (2015 the balance of project costs
during construchon phase represents the project cost of Nam Bak Hycroe ectric Power Project),

On 24 November 2016, the Parent Company of the Group's Board of Directors Meeting
WNo.7/2018 had approved the termination of Nam Bak Hydroelectric Power Project
development and write-off the costs duning the construction phase for this project, amount of
Baht 377 8 million as expenses to profit or loss in the statemeant of comrprehensive income.

Long-term restricted bank deposits

The Company has pledged and assigned rights of clalm on bank ascounts with outstanding
balances as at 31 December 2016 totalling approximately Baht 735 million (2015: Bant 1 221
million) with lenders to secure long-term loans of a group of that companias in accordance
with conditions stipulated in the long-term loan agreements. Those nank accounts have
resinctions on withdrawal in order to reserve cash for the major mairtenance of the Nam
Ngum 2 Hydroelectric Power Praject and the loan principal repayment and Interest payment
under the long-term loans agreements, in the event that the Comoany is unable to repay
principal or interest when due.

Trade and other receivables
(Unit: Thausand Baht)

2016 2015
Trade receivable - refated party 483,426 923,471
Other receivable - related party 141
Advance - 22
Interest recevable 3,709 5,_3?3
Total trade and other receivables 487 366 929 B71
Other current assets

(Unit :Thousand Baht)

2016 2015
Frepaid expenses 38,507 29,471
Others 568 423
Total 40,075 25,804
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13.

14,

18.

Cash at bank and on hand/Short-term restricted bank deposits

Cash at bank and on hand
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2016 2015
Cash 501 445
Bank deposits 1,165 45¢ 1,378,014

1,186 87C 1,378,459

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, cash and cash equivalents comprised cash at banks and
on hand only. The Company has pledged and assigned rights of cla m in bank accounts with
outstanding balances as at 31 December 2016 totalling approximately Baht 1,019 million
(2015: Baht 836 million) to secure the long-term loans of the Coempany with its lenders.
In accordance with conditions stipulated in the long-term loan agreements. However,
the Company is able to withdraw these deposits for payments of its regular operating
expenses, in accordance with the purpose of each account.

Short-term restricted ban osits

The Company has pledged and assigned rights of claim in bank accounts with outstanding
balances as at 31 December 2016 totalling approximately Baht 214 million {2015; Baht 529
million} with lenders to secure long-term loans of the Company, in accorgance with conditions
stipulated in the long-term loan agreements. Those bank accounts have restrictions on
withdrawal In order to repay loan principal and interest due within 6 morths.

Issued capital
(Unit :Thousand Baht)
2016 2015

Authorised:

880,900,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each §.808,000 8,809,000
Issued and paid up:

880,200,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each,

fully called up 8,808,000 8,809,000

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, the Company is required to annually
appropriate 10% of its net income to a statutory reserve until the statutory reserve reaches
1% of the registered capital. Furthermore, the Board of Directors may propose to the Annual
General Meeting to appropriate net income for other reserves as it deemed useful for the
Company's business operations.
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18.

Long-term loans from financial institutions

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

206 2015
Long-term loans 16,347 442 16,208,806
Less: Current partion of long-term |oans (5E2,892) (1,507.008)
Long-term loans, net of current portion 16,754,750 14,?GT,EEE_

Movements in the long-term loans account during the year ended 31 December 2016 are
summarised below.

(Urit: Thousand Baht)

Balance as at 1 January 2018 16,228,730
Add:  Additional borrowings during the year 16,738,161
Unrealised loss from exchange rate 08,304
Less. Repayment (16,274,580)
Unrealised gain from cash flow hedges (73,8937)
16,717 788
Less: Transaction costs = (370,328)
Balance as at 31 December 2016 16.347 442

On 26 May 2008, the Company and the branch of the Parent Company antered into long-
term loan agreements with a consortium of commercial banks in Thailand to abtain the
following 3 credit facilities:

1} Tranche A Facility: Baht 15,003 million for use in the payment of project costs.
2)  Tranche B Facility. USD 180 million for use in the payment of project costs.

3)  Tranche C Facility: A bank guarantee of USD 25 million previded to guarantee the
Company's obligations under the Power Purchase Agreement with the Electricity
Generating Authority of Thailand.

The rate of interest under Tranche A Facility is MLR plus a stipulated margin (MLR + margin)
commencing from the Initial Operation Date. Subsequently, the lenders have approved a
reduction in the interest rate of the Tranche A Facility to be MLR per annum, effactive from
April 2012 onwards. On October 2013, the lenders have approved a raduction in the interest
rate of the Tranche A Facilty to be MLR less a stipulated margin (MLR - margin) per annum
for the three years, effective from November 2013 onwards. The rate for the Tranche B
Facility is LIBOR plus a stipulated margin (LIBOR + margin) per annum. The principal
repayments under Tranche A and B Facilities shall be made semi-annually in 22 installments,
in the amounts stipulated in the long-term loan agreements. The first resayment date is the
earlier of {a) the last Business Day of the 12th calendar maonth after the month in which the

18



Initial Operation Date falls or (b) the calendar manth falling 72 months after the date of the
long-term loan agresment.

On 14 September 2016, the Company entered inlo leng-term loan agreements with a consortium

of commercial banks in Thailand o refinance the existing long-term loans and finance the

upgrade and construction of the Nabong Substation Project. This comprises the following credit

facilifies:

1) Tranche 1 Facility: Baht 10,887 million and USD 138 million to refinance the existing
long-term loans.

2)  Tranche 2 Facilty: Baht 1,720 million and USD 38 million to fund the upgrade and
construction of Nabong Substation Project.

3)  Guarantee Facility. A bank guarantes of USD 25 million provided to guarantee the
Company's obligations under the Power Purchase Agreement with the Electricity
Generating Authority of Thailand.

4)  Working Capital Facility: Baht 50 million set aside as a rese-ve to fund the jssue of
letters of guarantee, and to make payment of various costs that arise in the normal

course of business.

The rate of interest of the Baht loans is MLR less a stipulated margin (MLR - margin) per annum
and the rate of interest of the USD loans is LIBOR plus a stipulated margin (LIBOR + margin) per
annum. Principal repayments are to be made semi-annually in 29 installments, in the amounts
as slipulated in the long-term loan agreements. The first payment of principal under the Tranche
1 Facility is due on 30 September 2016 and the first payment of princ:pal under the Tranche 2
Facility is due o the earfier of {a) the last working day of the 30th montt after the first draw down
of the loan and (b) 30 September 2018

Under the long-term loan agreements, the Company is to conform with covenants imposed by
the lenders in respect of, among other things, the maintenance of a certain debt to equity ratio
and the securing of long-lerm loans through the mortigage of immaovabie properties, the pledge
of movabde properties located in the Lao People's Democratic Republic, the pledge of the share
certificates of the parent company and some of the share cerlificates of the Company, the pledge
and assignment of rights in bank accounts, the assignment of beneficiary rights under Insurance
palicies, and the assignment of rights and obligations under the agreements relating to the Nam
Ngum 2 Hydreelectric Power Project

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had fully drawn down the Trasche 1 Facility and Baht
1,042 million and USD 26 million of the Tranche 2 Facility had not et been drawn down including
Working Captal Facility of Baht 50 million,
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17.

18.

Other long-term liabilities - related party

The balance of other long-term liabilities is excess cash which the Company received from

sales of electricity as excess energy in the Nam Ngum 2 Hydroelectr c Power Project to EGAT
and has the obligations to repay to EGAT in 2022, in accordance with a condition in the Power
Purchase Agresment. The Company initially records such long-term liabilities at the present
value of the amounts to be repaid, calculated using a discount raze tied to the cost of the
financing rate of the Company, and records them as a deduction against sales of elaciricity

85 excess energy. In addition, the carrying amount of the liabilities noreases in each period

to reflect the passage of time, with the Company recognising this increase as a finance cost

Trade and other payables

Trade payables - related parties
Trade payables - unrelated parties
Project payables - related parties
Project payables - unrelated parties
Amaounts due to related parties
Other payables - unrelated parties
Accruad expenses

Accruad finance cost

Total trade and other payables

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

2018 2015
106,550 308,725
* 5,807 20 483
174,698 1,200
4 765 755
5.326 13,866
B.624 1,818
10,833 13,028
£3,040 4,589
309,943 365,365

20



19.

Related party transactions

During the year, the Company had significant business transactions with related parties; related
via shareholding, as well as through comman shareholders andior common directors. These
transactions were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon in the ordinary course
of businesses between the Company and those related parties, Belew is a summary of those

transaciions

Relationships
Iransactions with the Parent

Company of the Group
Managemeant fes

Project administratned

Iransactions with related pariies

Revenue frarm sales of electricity Major shareholder of a shareholde-
of the Parent Campany
Cost of sales of electricity Major shareholder of a shasebolder of
the Company, A shareholder of the
Perent Company, Major shareholder of
a shareholder of the Parent Compary,
Common shareholders of the Parert
Comgpany, A group of sharehokder of
the Company, Comman Direciors
Administrative expenses Kajor shareholder of a sharshokder of the
Company, Cammon sharehoider of the
Farznt Company, & shareholder of the
Parent Company
Project cost and administration!! Commaon sharehaldar of the Parent
Company, Majar shareholder of a
shareholder of the Parent Company
A sharehoider of tha Parent Company

M inckided &% part of project cosls dunng construchion phase

(Unit: Millian Baht)
2016 2015
138 135
a7 ’
3815 3,883
430 570
1 7
35§ 3
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The balances of the accounts as at 31 December 2018 and 2015 betwean the Company and

those related parties are as follows:

Trade an = d parti

Trade accounts receivable - related party

= Elactricity Generating Authaority of Thailand

Qther recelvable - rolated party

« Elnctricty Generating Authority of Thalland

Trade and oiher recesvables - refated paries

Advance for projgct costs - related party

= LM, Karnchang {Lag) Company Limited

and other -
Trade accounts payable - related parties
- LK Povier Public Company Limibed
« PT Sole Compary Limitad

- RATCH - LAD Services Company Limited
- Elecincdé du Laos

- The Government of the Lao People's
Democratc Repubc

- Electricity Generating Auiharity of Thaitand

igs (Mote 1

{init: Thousand Baht)
Relationships 2018 2015
hajor shareholder of a
shareholder of the Pansn
Comgany 483 4268 823471
Major sharshcider of a
sharehoider of the Paren;
Company 141 -
483,567 B234T
Common sharsholder of
the Parer] Comgany 100,268 -
widnit, Thousand Baht)
Eelalionships eL18 £015
Parand Company of the Group 5,084 G008
A shamholder of the Farent 5413 42 141
Cormgsany
Comman sharsholder of the 184 B47
Parent Company
Major shareholder of a 1,708 1,703
ehareholder of the Comgary
A group of sharsholder of the s e ] i)
Compsany
Major sharehalder of a 21416 3,147
sharehoider of the Panent
Cioenpany —
108,550 08,725
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Befationshipg 2019 25
Other payables - related parties
&) Project payable - related parties
= PT Sole Company Limited A sharehoidaer of the Paren 1,000
Company
- CH. Kamchang (Lao) Company Linvited Cormenon sharehokier of 110,668
the Parent Company
- CK Power Public Company Limited Parent company of the Group 4230 -
114,858 1,000
by Amounts due to related partips
- K Power Public Company Limited Farant Company of the Group 5,320 5.2
= FATCH - LAD Services Company Liméed Comman shareholder of tha
Parent Company - 1,333
- Xayaburi Power Company Limied Common dineciom 254
- CH. Kamehang (Lao) Company Limiled Common shareholder of
the Parent Company - 6.980
5435 13888
Trade and octher payabées - related parties 226,774 324 501
Retention payable - related party
- PT Eole Company Limited A sharehalder of the Parent
Compafy 6574
mn lisbilities - e 17
- Electrcily Genarating Authonty of Thaidland Major eharsholdar of a
shareholder of e Parend
Company 169 666 157 B84

(Umit: Thousand Bahl)

Directors and management’s benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company had shor-term employee benefit
expenses of its directors and management amounting to Baht 28.0 million (2015: Baht 27 4

millign).
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20.

21.

21.1

Dividend payment

On 10 September 2015, a Meeting of the Company's Board of Directors passed resolutions
approving the payment of an interim dividend for the six-month period ended 30 June 2015
of Baht 0.40 per share to the Company's shareholders, or a total of Baht 252.4 million. The
dividend was paid on 7 October 2015, |

On 26 August 2016, a Meeting of the Company's Board of Directors passed resolutions
approving the payment of an interim dividend for the six-month perod ended 30 June 2016
of Baht 2.90 per share to the Company’s sharehalders, or a total of Bah: 2,554 8 million. The
dividend was paid on 25 October 2016.

Financial instruments
Financial risk management and policies

The Company's principal financial instruments comprise loans from financial institutions, ather
long-term liabilites - related party, trade and other payables, trade and cther receivables and
cash at banks.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The Company will use derivative instruments, as
and when it considers appropriate, to manage these risks. It is the Comaany's policy that no
trading in denvatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken

Credit risk

Credit nsk is the risk that counterparties will not meet their obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The credit risk associated with
operating activities and financing activitiss of the Company and how they are managed is
described below:

Bank deposits

The Company has no significant credit risk in respect of cash at banks because the Company
has deposited cash from sales of electncily, loan drawdown, loan and interest repayment and
equity injection in bank accounts in accordance with the Accounts Agreement bath in Thal and
and the Lao People's Democratic Republic with only creditworthy banks

As at 31 December 2016, total cash at banks of the Company amounted to Baht 2,114 million.
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21.2

21.3

Trade receivable

The Company has no significant credit risk with respect to trade receivable from sales of
electricity. Although the Company has only one customer under the Powsr Purchase
Agreement ("FPPA’) entered info between the Company and the Electricity Generating
Authority of Thailand (“EGAT"), EGAT has a strong financial positior as it is a state enterprise
in Thailand. In addition, there have been no receivable from sale of electricity that is past dus
or impaired.

Liguidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Company management considers and monitors the
torecasting of its liquidity reserve with undrawn loans, uncalled share capital. cash from =ales
of electricity and the balance of cash and cash equivalents on the basis of estimated cash
flows, which are maintained for the appropriste cash funding to meat the Company’s
expenditure under its interim payment schedule and budget, including reasonable short-term
operational needs.

Based on the undiscounted amounts contractually payable, as at 31 December 2018 the
Company has financial liabiiities dus within one year amounting to Baht 1,777 million,
lang-term loans from financial institutions and expecled interest peyment due within 2 to 5
years amounting to Baht 8345 million, and long-term loans from “inancial institutions,
expected interest payment and other long-term liabilities to related partv due in over 5 years
amounting to Baht 17,281 million

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates,

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to
the Company’s bank deposits and the future long term loans with floating interest rates. The
Company will use derivative financial instruments, as and when It considers appropriate, to
manage this risk

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 2015 classified by type
of interest rates are summarised in the table below, with those finan=ial assets and liabilities
that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the earlier of {a) maturity date and
{bj the repricing date.
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Financial assels

Traace and other recenables

Cash & bank and an hand
Snoelsamn reairicted hark depesils
Long-lam rasincled bank dapasis

Financial linbiitias

Lorig-term fcans from financial instiuiians

Cther kang-tem fiabilties - relsed perty

Trade ard ofher payables

Financial assets

Trade and olbar resaivables

Cash & bank snd on hand
Short-serm eskncied bank deposils
Larg-tem resiricted bank deposils

Financial liabilities

Long-tesm loans fom fnancal inaliulions
Oithar fong-ieem iakiites . relaled paity

Trade ang gthar payatias

A5 al 31 Dacembes 2076

(Urst: Mifian Baht)

Freed Floating Morrinbenes
Inlereat rabas intmnsd rata baarrg Tata Inimress rads
(%mal
487 45T
1152 14 1,166 005 o0 80
& 214 2 0.0510 0,375
500 aa% 7y 0.05 b2 1,06
S0 1,604 S0 282
- 16,347 18,347 MLR-1.0 and
LIBOR+3 25
= 150 1M
- 310 313
- 18,347 480 18827
{lrit: Mifian Baht)
Az el 3 December 2015
Fioed Flaating Men-intenes
inberesd rplees - inbarest raie bmaring Tatal Inlesaat rabs
(Bmal
- = Bl g3p
= 1,374 4 1,578 005 is 080
] 529 29 .05 13 0.375
a51 2m 122" 004 ko 1,50
Bt FA kS 934 40548
16,208 - W28 MLR-0.E6 and LIBOR#2.5
158 158
- . I6h a8
= 16 208 523 16, 732

Interest-rate risk sensitivity for the year ended 31 December 2016, if interest rates had been
30 basis points higher/{lower), with all other varlables held constant, profit would have
decreasedincreasad by Baht B1 million
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21.4 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency nisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes In foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to
foreign exchange risk related primarily to its long-term loans from finan=ial institutions, trade
and other payables and trade and other receivables,

The Company manages its exposure to foreign currency risk by balancing net position of receipt
and payment of the foreign currency iransactions in each period. The Company will use
derivativie financial instruments, as and when it considers appropriate, to manage this risk,

The balances of financial assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at
31 December 2016 and 2015 are summarised below.

Financial Financial Averege exchange rate
Foreign currency N assets lizbilties as at 31 Dat:aml:-gu_r
2016 2015 2018 2015 2018 2015
(Miltion) (Million) {Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US dollar 30.0 .8 147.5 140.6 26,0025 36,2538
CHF - - - 0.1 25.5041 36. 7180
JPY . 2.1 452 351 03113 03027

As at 31 December 2016, the Company does not utilise any derivative contracts to hedge
foreign exchange rate risk.

The fareign currency sensitivity for the net balance of financial assets and liabilities as at
31 December 2016, if Thai Baht had strengthened/(weakened) 5 percent against the US
doliar, with all other variables held constant, profit would have decrezsed/{increased) by Baht
30 million and equity would have Increased/(decreased) by Baht 242 million,

Since July 2013, the Company has applied cash flow hedge accountng in order to hedge the
foreign exchange exposure on a certain portion of its forecasted revenue from sales of
electricity in USD currency, which are designated as the hedged item ard long-term loans in
USD are the hedging instrument with an outstanding balance, as at 31 December 2016, USD
134 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has no ineffectivensss from cash flow
hedge requiring recagnition through profit or loss and therefare recogrised an unrealised loss
of Baht 74 million from changes in value of the long-term loans in USD used for cash flaw
hedging due to movements in foreign exchange rates, in other comerehensive income, This
balance will continue to remain deferred in equity and will be released to the profit or loss, in
the same period that the anticipated hedged US dollar denominated sales of electricity to
which the deferred gain/{losses) are designated, ocour.
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As at 31 December 2016, the outstanding of the hedging instrumert are expected fo mature
and affect to the profit or loss were as follows.

(Million USD)
As at 31 Cecember
Recyclable: 2015 2015
Inupto 1 year 5 13
In over 1 and up to 5 years 29 73
In over 5 years 100 54

21.5 Fair value

Since the Company’s financial assets and trade and other payables are short-term in nature,
and the majority of the Company's financial liabilities comprise loans from firancial institutions
which bear interest at rates close to market rates, the Company's management balieves that
the fair values of the Company's financial assets and liabilities zre approximate to their
carrying values. The fair value of long-term loans from financial institutions is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for dabt on similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. Based on this evaluation, the carrying amount of such long-
term loans were not matenally different from their calculated fair values.

21.6 Capital management
Capital includes ordinary shares and equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ersurs that it maintaing its
ability to continue as a going concern and maintains an approorats capital structure,
stipulated in the long-term loan agreements with financial institutions.

The Company menitors its capital structure with reference to its long-term loans from financial
institutions to its paid up share capital ratio, which is long-term loang from financial institutions
divided by pald up share capital, The Company intends to maintain this ratio at less than 2.5
times

Az at 31 December 2016, the long-term loans from financial institutions to paid up share
capital ratio in the Company's financial statements is 1.50;1 (2015: 1.84 1).
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22,1

22.2

22.3

Commitments and contingent liabilities
Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has capital commitments in respect of the following
agreaments.

a)  The Company has commitments in respect of Engineering, Procurement and Construction
Contract for the upgrade and construction of the Mabong Substation Project with a related
company totalling Baht 369.1 millon and USD 24,2 million

b)  The Company has commitments in respect of consultancy, administration and other
service agreements for the upgrade and construction of the habong Substation Project
with the Parent company of the Group and other companies ‘ota ling Baht 85.8 million
and CHF 0.1 million.

Operating lease commitments

The Company has entered inte an agreement leasing the location of its office in the Lao
People’s Democralic Republic. The term of the agreement is 25 YEArs.

As at 31 December 2016, future minimum lease payments required under this operating lease
contract were as follows,

(Unit: Thousand USD)
As at 31 December

2016 2013
Fayabile within:
1 year =28 (equivalent to Baht 2 million) 54 {equivalent ta Baht 2 millkon)
2 -G years 230 (equivalent to Baht 8 million) 220 {equivalent to Baht B million)
Mare than 5 years 681 (equivalent to Baht 25 milllon) 820 (equivalent to Baht 30 million)

Management service agreements

The Company has commitments in respect of consultancy, administration and other service
agreements with the Parent Company of the Group and other companies for the Nam Ngum
2 Hydroelectric Power Project totalling Baht 105.7 million and Baht 12 1 million per month
{2015: CHF 0.1 million, JPY 52.9 million, Baht 91.9 millicn and Baht 11 A4 million per manth),
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22.5

22.6

23.

Operation and maintenance agreements

a) The Company has commitment in respect of the Agreement on Operation and
Maintenance of Dam and Powerhouse for Nam Ngum 2 Hydroslectric Power Project
with a related party, until the end of the concession period of the Nam Ngum 2
Hydroeleciric Power Project, with the service fee as specified in the agreement and
subject to increase on an annual basis at the rate specified in the agreement.
The service fee for 2017 is approximately Baht 8.6 million per month.

b}  The Company has commitment in respect of the Agreement on Operation and
Maintenance of Transmission Systems for Nam Ngum 2 Hydroslectric Power Project
with a related party, until the end of the concession period of the Nam Ngum 2
Hydroeleciric Power Project, with the service fee as specified in the agreement and
subject to increase on an annual basis at the rate specified in the agreement,
The service fee for 2017 is approximately USD 0.05 million per menth.

c)  The Company has commitment amounting to approximately Baht 25.0 million per year
in respect of the Service Agreement with a related company for consultancy services
relating to operation and maintenance of the Nam Ngum 2 Hycroelectric Power Project,

d) The Company has commitment in respect of the Agreement on Major Maintenance of
Dam and Powerhouse for the Nam Ngum 2 Hydreelectric Power Project with a related
party, until December 2018, with the service fee as specified ir the agreement and
subject to increase on an annual basis at the rate specfied in the agreement,
The service fea for 2017 is approximately Baht 4.3 million per mo-th

Royalty

The Company has a commitment to pay a royalty for a period of 25 years to the Government
of the Lao People's Democratic Republic commencing from the Initial Operation Date
(26 March 2011) to the end of the concession period, which will be =alculated by multiplying
revenue from sales of electricity by the royally rate for each perios as specified under
Concession Agreemant.

Bank guarantees

Az at 31 December 2016, there were oulstanding bank guarantess of USD 25.0 million
{equivalent to Baht 800, 1 million) issued by banks on behalf of the Company in respect of the
guaraniee required under the Power Furchase Agreement with tre Electricity Generating
Autherity of Thalland (2015: USD 22.5 million).

Events after the reporting period

On 17 February 2017, the Board of Directors of Meeting of the Comaany No. 1/2017 passed
a resolution to pay a dividend of Baht 0.7 per share, or a total of Baht §16.63 million, to the
shareholders of the Company in respect of the profit for the year 20°8. The resolution will be
proposed to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company for the year 2017
for approval,

30



TRIS.

RATING

A strategic partner of S&P Global

CreditUpdate

2
o

@337} 59/2560

U3EN NN 2 910a

31 §9%1AN 2560

Qa Qa a I3

DWALLATANDIANT: A

e« o« a e

DWALLATANATIETH:

wur ludaand ludwanuszniu A-

U s s a

u NI BAULATAR: Stable

a a a I3 s

AUALLATANDIANI LD AN

o o o o a 19

I ARALLATAR wwaliia
DWAULATAG/
LASAANTD

26/07/60 A Stable

Anna:

a a 6 =)

wEuANg eslum

sermwit@trisrating.com

lsziqy dotusns, CFA
pravit@trisrating.com

Fuen tazyugaTand, CFA
wiyada@ftrisrating.com

WWW.TRISRATING.COM

LRARNA

NIFINAIAIOUALLATAARIANTVEI USEN TuiihTy 2 377a Aiszay “A” wiaunui
nismasdiiaauauiasdaiug idenans hidwandsznuluraiuliiv 6,000 éﬁumﬂmaa

@ '
(=1 va v

‘]Jﬁ‘]:iﬂ‘l’]ﬁ“‘@]ﬂ ‘A @ N9t E’J‘LW]‘IJLﬂi@]@]%%ﬂ‘ﬂ%aF.Iﬂ’J’]ﬂu@]ULﬂi(ﬂ@]aOﬂﬂiﬂ&l 1 3“’@1‘]J‘1«L%

© 0.

azﬂaumanwmzmaammaﬂammﬂﬂsmsw (Structural Subordination) Ba9¥uiveILTIN
Waifisuriy L‘Suﬁﬂ%qﬁuﬁﬁagﬁuﬁmms lasusunazih Lﬁuﬁvlﬁ%"].lﬁ]’mﬂ’]iaaﬂﬁugﬂﬂi‘ﬁ'ﬁ’ﬁ:
AnIuLaNUEIUIBILTEN

suaLInTRnszrauinszumIusaiuineniiusin lasuanmeisyyany Wszes
£17 (Power Purchase Agreement - PPA) fumslnvdronaauvadszmelng (nvie.) 4
I¥unssasusUIATaA “AAA" 2 nnSTITAsuazUTraUMIailumsusmsamlss i nas
ﬁwaansju;‘Tﬁaﬁmm:;@%mﬂaw%ﬁ'ﬂ wonanit MIRasansusuasandsdilsfsszau
m’lmj’msaaLﬁTmf':mﬂsléTmmi”Nﬁ'nujrgwha g Tulassnsvasnivnuazinaluladfeinu
msw“gaﬁuﬁaﬁlﬁﬂsﬂﬂﬂnwsﬁﬁ’maau?ﬁmﬁSJ a4 lsfiony auaLiaTRaadnaNTadna
nawliuinenvessanisinavesnszusiiluuiininazanuidosUsainaves
s1vmiglszm sy lasdszmauan (sUd. a) Fadudaalselnrimwainaesusends
ﬂ%aﬁﬂu sl o 1d30suduIAsAaRszel “BBB+/Negative’ :NNN3aLsnas

viEnlnwsinga 2 Lﬁuﬂﬁaluu‘%ﬂ'ﬂﬂﬁ'ﬂlugiﬁﬂﬂﬁmmﬂa‘;u 5, 59 U3ENIAN
i 2550 melanguansves sy, a1 Wardwsaasussdnfinmslssninwaainiidae 2
nﬁjuQﬁaﬁwﬁﬂﬁtﬂuQﬁaﬁquqﬂmaou‘%ﬁ'ﬂﬂi:ﬂauﬁar_l USEN Fia wales dna (WniTw)
%aﬁaﬁulué’@dm 42% UTHN Nﬁmiﬂﬁﬂswq‘ﬂaaﬁv\*y 0@ (WN1TH) 25% WA EDL-
Generation PLC (EDL-Gen) 25% USundia wW1a1285 Lﬂuu%ﬁ'ﬂiaaéa@Tﬂuwé'amumaomju
%, N3N 6‘5\1ﬂ?ﬁ;ﬂ'uﬁmimnuvﬁﬂuﬁﬂﬂﬁwmmL§ﬂ (Small Power Producer -- SPP)
ilsslnimssnunaunuludszinalng LL@}:TN"LWV?WW&'&&WVLM:H%M aud. a1 e
ﬁ’l%{UU%‘fMNﬁ@ﬂﬂﬂ’li’lﬁju%{aaéﬂ (le5LaUALLIATAR “AAA" aNnMSaLINGa) %oﬁaﬁui@ﬂ
niw. lugasan 45% mfmﬂuu‘%ﬁmﬁmvlw%Lan’ﬁuﬁimy'ﬁq@iuﬁs:mﬂ"lﬂw‘ﬁaﬁr‘iﬁammﬁ@
YA 6,496 LnzTad o iiaufiuian 2560 §3u EDL-Gen ffmﬂuu‘%ﬁwgﬂmaa Electricite du
Laos (EDL) G‘Jﬁm‘ju%fg"samﬁwaa gud. 812 Jﬁ]ﬂqﬂu EDL-Gen lad3usuauLaIaa
“BBB+/Negative” MNNIALINGS

@
o a a o

Laslwhwasiindu 2 dhasnandedaas 615 wnziad lsalWwuvstiasaguuds

v v

¥ = o o v o 9 o o a o v ¥
wdihTudgoagrannlssingaiiiie 1 @damwda 150 wnzdad) lumaduii 35

v v

Alawas (nu.) nsnesslssiWiingadniingiy 2 LLa”aLf;ﬁamwL'sam"wauamuﬂ&oﬁyu
Yszanms 31,000 s1mun LaslselWwisudifinen (nitial Operation) lwidauiiuiny 2554
waTAL AW INELTE (Commercial Operation) lulfiauunsna 2556
snwnizlassaesyanlulasimslsslwwmasihasssisntioussmanadadan
Twgraslasins anudssdunsamadiulngldsunmssnmssdndyan PPA Afify
. szezm 25 Tivandudwassadondiod Tag nviu. az3udelwwlusnsusinee
Inwyisnuedsmansnsonsvlnrsudialiasulalunnenas (Take-or-Pay) 99 nuw. a2

1ATAAIIIE {CredltUpdate) Hj%‘?/%ﬂau%%\7Z%ﬂi&’ﬂ?%ﬂ’]ﬂ’lﬂ?’l?Ha%ﬂﬂLﬂ?ﬂ@?}aJadﬂﬂi%53@5’7{‘775‘”%1’)7I5M?’W@J‘Zﬂﬂ%ﬂ7ﬂNNYUL£N? szﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ’]ﬂ’)ﬂﬂ?%@dﬂﬂ’l?ﬁh775»‘7)’707&2@3’72/”1/3\7
amm’mmm‘rms LLE);’W?UNNL&IE]F)?USE]U]? Alm‘,mwuumnwmm‘rumnm?aanmﬁmmuZm/ mamm/mmmimmawwmwmmiwwmvaﬁnwmmﬂduwawmwmuu6] LLL‘J‘”.&/"JJB&INNNN?.»WU
LWEIJWQWE]:?J?UEJ%@ULH?WW mamamW@Z%wawnmnau@mmmmw W?Zﬂ?‘ﬂﬂﬁ):’ﬂ?&n?ﬂ NATAMNINT" UITEITI TS Zﬂymau@mmmaw LWZJ‘Z/H: (Upgraded) "saav" (Downgraded) "IN

(Affirmed) 38 "gnidn" (Cancelled)


mailto:suchada@tris.co.th
mailto:pramuansap@tris.co.th
mailto:watana@tris.co.th

TRRF,IT%{ CreditUpdate

A strategic partner of S&P Global

%’u%ﬂﬂﬁﬂuﬂ%mmgoq@imﬁu 2,310 duflaiadsalus (§uniag) defl (Annual Supply Target) lupmsilsslnvasdoadanunioning
wasow v litesndn 10 FalusdaiuniaisurindundsawlnwhUszanm 1,722 suwntiaeded wisUszanm 77% 289 Annual Supply
Target ahué’miﬂ@i'}‘lﬂﬂﬂfuﬁﬂﬁizq‘ﬁar_i'm"ﬁ'@Laulu PPA Fazmunsadsuduledszana 7.8% ludl 2562 Tasaswnitsvassasenlwviazdng
Tusnaiuun d’auﬁnﬂéwﬁw:ﬁhﬂluaqaﬁumaaaﬁwﬁ'g%

n37AwA Annual Supply Target ifummnSmimﬁvlmmam{wLiﬂt“ﬁau@iaﬁéﬁaﬁﬁuaﬁﬂagjﬁ 6,270 Augnunaniuas (au.a.) lag
dwmandoyadaunadszninei 2492-2546 vl fadnassanmilnavesingdeulutasd 2554-2559 ayj’ﬁl 6,529 §1% AL.4. éﬁagandw
duadsluafalszann 4.1%

wananit PPA  daiinalniivnlinszuaingaasuisndiadosanudinysunalwriingeldiuezannwiedesnin Annual Supply
Target Tagnalnsansdalwusdnsmansam el ldunniAuninysuathnansludidiunn lwasAdiditesandsinalwriinga
dnindhmineiuussneldsususannmain v Andaiunindhminesanaianld wassnlunsdifussnanglnwrlddrninAnnual
Supply Target Ussnaslwvihlusauianadifisnansnti lunusy Annual Supply Target Tulsa ¢ /16

AMUFBINNMIELRIUTBILS BN Aaa N Ha 9N NNk, L‘ﬂu;&”ﬁwLﬁumukﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁmu%ﬁﬂ Tanusunledvindyandmaiouas
111393n®1 (Operation and Maintenance Agreement -- OMA) AU NWH. %amamguma@ ogFy PPA nww. danudimguazd
Yszaumsoifsnwmlumsdniinnulss rnssinludszanelng aoin msfidamsiwues nvn. 39grsaannudssanmssiiivenuasly
Ieann siuasudusniinanuwlss v ludaudiwan 2554 uduan mmww%”awaﬂsavlw#q{[@ﬂtaﬁumaqﬁﬂ'ﬂayflmm”ugaﬂiw 96% LA
é’ﬂmumwﬁwL%ﬁﬂumiﬁwLé‘mm%mﬁgdmﬁ 99% lawiadn wananit visnivhayyteutihsilna (Major Maintenance Agreement --
MMA) NU NWw. 8neae I@mJauLmWuaaé’zuuzmtfmmﬁaﬂwﬁauﬂﬁaL%aﬁaaﬁ’uuazmitm’% é’zyzwa:ﬁmq 7 JBsazasurinwualul 2562 udlu
Léauvlwaaé'tytuﬁﬁs:qmqLﬁaﬂslumi@iaé%ytynmvﬁﬁ’m %ammhﬁmwmﬂuvlﬁvlﬁgqﬁu'%ﬁ'm:siaé’zyzym”aﬂdn

@maJL&immmmﬂauua:LLanLﬂﬁsuaqaLGuUiimemﬂmsﬁeﬁytywé’uﬂmu (Concession Agreement -- CA) nu3guna aly. a17 la

o o

va & a o ) [y o A 9 { o o4 > % A e < § waa
sypravdnulaliiniuienlunmsivmelduaswniduludndiaguen aud. anld Samoldannmnolivhilesoann nwe. suldigde

A

@ o a a o & o o @ wva a5 Ao xS 3 & a & 2 a nfL a
L’iJ’l‘inyl%ﬁJa\‘]‘lJi‘]:mluﬂizmﬂvLVlﬂ wanannu afgfyﬂﬁ&lﬂ“ﬂ’lumlﬁa‘nﬁ‘]ﬁﬂ‘nluﬂﬁﬂ’nu’lmﬂLL&Iu’l\‘]&Iluﬂ’liNa@]vLWN’] UUIFNDLUNIINDAID

Aaulasnardenuisensiuinasanilunisldawunadnlassnsuazmessinds agnelsiany uSEninifidesiiseaansautnim
(Royalty Fee) uazm@iiulafidyaaalduniguna aud. an aafitmua luswandudnu wenanit visnsiezdasdnfinmanld
Lmumuﬁ’mmﬁmmiﬁaani”auLLaf:Lqumuw”@um@Tﬁué’qﬂu’lunsﬂﬁtﬁﬂNaﬂi:ﬂmia;‘jhﬁmﬁaﬂ@ﬂ1ﬁtﬁm:auﬁ'v%‘ﬁ'ﬂﬁﬂ“ﬁmm']mgnu
FNRANAIE

sunalniiinuelludyan PPA Sedsnalwusiniinglduszinlsneunendodns mE dufaunen wazdrdasiwing (EBITDA)
Aaudnanaf winunedesivsinasi nadndeudinindaasluedafiany 1eldlugel 2554-2557 88j3:1I19 3,800-4,200 uundal
Lz EBITDA ag’slu*’ﬁu 3,000-3,300 s1uunead ﬂ%mmmﬂmmaaﬁwLiﬂt“ﬁauayjszmw 5,800-6,700 81 au.y. dal dwiud 2558-2559
indsinavihlnadidaudinindadslueda 2 Daasornu vlrusenuda Wi ldnszau 2,104 sumiaolud 2558 waz 2,109 Suminely
9 2559 atnglsAanu swyvlﬁmaau%ﬁ'wﬁ'amag:ﬁﬂs:mm 3,800 auunaad luvme? EBITDA ifua@aamag}'@%’m’hﬁs:@”u 3,000 suunaad
Wniasdelnaidnenuda 2-3 ruan nsnaa W iaassludl 2558-2559 analigsnansznudenszuaSusavasusenluszozananie
sinalnwhsiufianaain Annual Supply Target sanaaansnin lunuiy Annual Supply Target dwsudda o Tl

vswnfsanusmemaiuluszauthunas Tassaeneldansaniudelinhan nvw. wazlavseinadugzasuiuniliuisndany
L?uaéﬁué’m’lu,anLﬂﬁﬂm’ﬁumwagjﬂ”’mLﬁaqmnn’%ﬁ'wﬁﬁzlvl,ﬁﬁ"’ﬁ’]szl,ﬂwﬁuwm 50% wasiuiIuaaamianizy 50% 1%%1:%:“71‘1@30&%"’1%’3%27
Usznoudsdudanalium 70% uazliujanaiuaaamianigy 8n 30% wanini u3ENSfanadssandanaeniofifouulas
Lﬁaqa’mmaﬂLﬁm‘iuﬁ’lﬂﬁﬂﬁmaau’%ﬁ'mﬂmmnaauﬁ'ﬁaSﬁaﬁaﬁué'm’maﬂLﬁm’iuﬁgﬂﬁﬁmlﬂ@ﬁaﬁ (MLR) d@wiuiduianaiiuuinuas
fredaiudanaaniduszninmmansluamaseuaau (LIBOR) fmindufanaliunaaaianizsy

Tuawnan3atsndadszanmnisin EBITDA va9uT¥NIzagluza4 3,000-3,600 Autneaillutiei 2560-2562 %qmiﬂi:mmmmﬁaag
uuauuagm’jm‘%ﬁmzmmmNﬁ@l"l,w“ﬁﬂvlﬁmw Annual Supply Target # 2,310 Suntinededlagesiusinmmslnavesigdend 6,270
U AN, ﬂa"l,ﬂﬁ's:g'lu PPA '«a:?hﬂlﬁu?ﬁ‘ﬂmmsnmmql,ﬂmmﬂf:"l@mﬁdm:ﬁmmw”umumaaﬂ‘%mmﬁﬂmma:ﬂﬁmu uSEnleas
Judszn i I 3,120 a”mm‘ﬂém%‘umma’qwumﬂﬁmﬁ"LWﬁﬁiiaﬂmuﬂuﬁNﬂ 2559-2561 tivalwiduldanudaimuelu PPA wazana

3N TlHsinsa 2 91nm 31 F9K1AN 2560



TRF}:IT%EV CreditUpdate

A strategic partner of S&P Global

)
o v

ANNEBINMTI89TLA AUy, a2 sl daen1ad EBITDA uazmisanuluszaufidszanmnsaindy visnazdidanaiwiuiiuse EBITDA

agjizwm 4-5 11

¥ o o a
tLWJT%NEl%ﬂSULﬂiﬂGI

v o o a N S [ & a & . aw o a a a0 M

LL%’JIHN@%@UL@?@@] Stable” %38 “AIN a:“naumﬂ’]iﬂ’l(ﬂﬂ’]im"ﬂa\‘mimi"n@'N’J’lUiHﬂﬂ:ﬂdﬂa&Jﬂi:LLmaua@‘ﬂLLuuauﬁl’mINvLW‘V\h

A @ oA a o o a 9 A A o o a YRS N & 3 3

wanINH EJ\‘lﬂ’]@’J’l‘.Ui‘l:Wlfﬂ:a’lmiﬂlﬁﬁ’liﬁ]@ﬂ’ISINVLWW’ILLaxﬂi&J’lmWﬂ‘V\mLW?.IGWaa’msumima@ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ(ﬂ’mtﬂ’mmUﬂaluﬁu’m’muatluu’]

v
way

Yo da a o a A o a A Ao a o A Aaf ' oA d‘ Ao a '
ﬂﬁ]ﬁ]UﬂuNaIuL“ﬁdU’mmaauﬂmﬂi@m"ﬂFNUSH‘YIQ’H]Lﬂ@ﬁ]’mﬂ’]i‘ﬂ‘UiE“nuﬂ’liﬂ’lLuud’m‘ﬂﬂ“ﬂuaF.I’]W]al,uad lmjmzﬂﬂﬁ]ﬁ]{lﬂuwalumdaU@]a

'
A o

o« o a a o a { a o a { { a o = o a
auALLATAATBILUS ENNiaIINMINUSEhinTumSusannanauad %%amiﬁmmﬂﬁmiamwm miﬂmjﬁuﬁuﬂﬁmrmmiﬁamuzmswu

PRIV HNE DULDR

u3En TH1ia3a 2 310m (NN2PC)

[ o a &

AWALLATANDIANT: A
U

AWALLATAAATIANTH:

v I a a A Qs e a A v ' T a

wur hidanand lafinandsznulwindulaifin 6,000 Suum linaunsluszozialahiv 10 3 A-

W RN RAULATAR: Stable

[

] ] ¥
ayanansaniwunidagalssldilnzanida 2

HANIIAL BTN DILS9 I

wasrwlnviingald @wwing) 794 2,109 2,104 2,215 2568 2,180
fAMUNWIaNIY (%) 99.4 97.6 96.5 97.1 97.3 96.5
MIRYATINANUHY (SwAIE) 11.2 106.4 60.3 81.9 86.2 122.5
MIRLYATOUBDNUN (FIUAINEL) 2.8 19.8 57.2 52.8 54.6 425
quwﬁauqmﬁu (G E)) 0.0 1.0 8.4 24.9 3.2 9.7
AMSU3MIITANTEaLALH

srauth o Fwe (wasilaszaunzistunas - snn.) 3454 371.1 372.4 373.7 372.3 370.7
Ysunminlnadhenafiusih (éﬁuﬁnmﬂﬁmm — 8% AU.Y.) 952 5,360 5,806 6,342 7,029 5,858
Usanawilugns m fuoe (§w au.a.) 2,620 4,747 4779 4,851 4714 4,440

*  doumismduasavaiousa (I0D) tuiudi 26 Gurau 2554

%R 3
3N TlHsinsa 2 91nm 31 F9K1AN 2560



TRIS. CreditUpdate

RATING

A strategic partner of S&P Global

v

TayAIUNIBHUALIATIEMNWMIBUNdAY *

VUL A1ULIN

o A o
o AINN 31 SWINAN

2557

ole 1,441 3,815 3,883 3,976 4,115 3,852
aan L‘]‘.Irilii'] HR 494 854 895 987 1,225 1,282
'y @anu) gnianmaduiinau 123 1,041 972 1,080 1,116 721
WuwnuanMsainan 652 1,777 2,095 2,185 2,150 1,823
flsnauaanidosne mi dufeunan uazddasming 1,118 2,997 2,962 3,165 3,337 3,072
inldinorhony 890 1,015 24 25 12 48
FUNTWITI 27,359 27,138 28,876 29,737 30,412 30,903
Liiuﬁsw 16,701 16,347 16,209 17,485 18,928 20,043
fuvaidtiarnu 9,995 10,301 12,141 11,894 11,113 10,565
sanswilsnnmsuinnutendniaumauazd 77.3 78.1 75.8 79.4 80.9 79.6
aasnsine/ele (%)

AATIFIRHAADLUNWAIUNUDNIT (%) 6.0 ** 6.9 6.5 7.0 74 6.5
sansumlsnanaanidosng nn dudeusan uazen 23 35 3.3 3.2 27 2.4
dasmihemandoing @vin)

2AMFIUIUNUNNNIAURUINWAIUGTIN (%) 8.8 ** 10.9 12.9 12.5 11.4 9.1
sanEwIuivIu/lasaaTunm (%) 62.6 61.3 57.2 59.5 63.0 65.5
é"m’]d’;ul,‘iuijs’m/ﬁwvlsﬁau@anlﬁﬂﬁim m# duFeuman 6.1 * 5.5 5.5 55 5.7 6.5

LRZAAaIIRNY (171N)

* VUATITUTIN
*x suiludgariarndudaradnazy 12 igautaunay

2

VTN NIFLINGY NG
Tns. 0-2231-3011 Aia 500 @1ANTRANABNINENT T 24 191 0. Fan NFILNNY 10500, www.trisrating.com

© U5 vi3aINas $1im aeanduiing we. 2560 shudliuanale 17 iawme duwimeuns usnsy V\SaLﬂUVL’JLWE‘L‘Iﬂ%ﬂWUV&MLWB‘]JS’IU’MH@"’] Tynggunietayan1aing uau
wnsan lidminuaniaiiesnnagin wazlddlustuuy wieanemslag wiedieatnslag Tmuwm"l,u"lmuaummﬂumﬁanwm dnwynn wish yFanis S1ia nay, MIIABUAL
wnsdaiidldunasdaians maﬂ}auauuﬂma Iy wiahaaaInila g LmLﬂmwmmmmu,mmnummLammammmmanamamﬂmwuuuq wiguauisniug laglaniz
anuiyfiszylunssadydiiasdaidldiduduuzinfiunsasmm mamuwm’luanwmvaul@ mitasuduuazdayafitngluzionulag isar w3 eRusimsunslas usen
vaanda $1na "lmmmw‘(muu"lmmumamwmaamimummu wnamsal anad wazianusraeduas mumaummlmmv\m asuw diudayamisdsziiugnuminzanyasdoys
mnmanaumau’hamu UTEN NIFINGEI 1na ”meauaﬁlmmmumﬂ@aumummmumnuswuautmawamauq Mdaindefiold aatu UM nSmInds s aa"meJs L)
anugndas mwmmwa mamwmumuaummjawaua'l,ﬂq aInay uazazlifufareudannugny.dy mamﬂmawmlm aumﬂmnmw'l,unnmaq anwliifisana wienw
umumuaummuu uszazlisuAnTaudatafianaa nsomsaz Tunaf lasunsamsnszila qimnawﬂwammnma 9% MeuasldoaraditnITaauaLLATAAYEY UTHN NIFIINGS
na mf_luwsazmu Website: http://www.trisrating.com/th/rating-information-th2/rating-criteria.html

w4
3N TlHsinsa 2 91nm 31 F9K1AN 2560


http://www.trisrating.com/th/rating-information-th2/rating-criteria.html



